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Transforming lives





At Bimputh Finance PLC, our mission to help the people remains at the heart of 
all we do. Our strong foundation is built on values of service excellence, trust, 
professionalism and care, enabling us to pursue a powerful vision to empower 
entrepreneurs across the island. We are helping them to grow beyond their 
wildest dreams through our inclusive solutions, as we uphold our enduring 
pledge to drive development across the Sri Lankan economy.

Today, Bimputh Finance is a strong and vibrant micro-finance company, 
with a strong track record of empowering livelihoods and offering resource 
development and knowledge sharing to the thousands of visionary entities 
with whom we partner. This report reviews a year of hard work, one in which 
we have stayed our course, continued to serve the nation, unlocked our 
customers’ true potential, and made a lasting impact on the lives of the myriad 
stakeholders we serve. Here at Bimputh Finance, we are transforming lives.

Transforming 
Lives
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About this Report
This year, we build on the foundation put in place last year by progressing further 
on our Integrated Reporting journey. The content included in the Report has been 
presented in a manner that we believe best represents our value creation story, 
allowing stakeholders to obtain a balanced assessment of the Company’s operating 
environment, strategy, performance and outlook. The Report has been prepared on 
the fundamental concepts prescribed by the <IR> Framework of the International 
Integrated Reporting Council. 
Scope and Boundary
We adopt an annual reporting cycle and this 
Report covers the operations of Bimputh 
Finance PLC (“Bimputh” or “the Company”) 
for the period 1st of April 2017 to 31st March 
2018. The content in this Report is anchored 
by our material topics given on page 02 of this 
Report. There are no significant restatements 
of information published in our most recent 
report for the financial year ending 31st March 
2017. There were also no significant changes 
to the Company’s size, structure, ownership or 
supply chain during the year.

Standards and Principles
The Financial Statements from page 70 to 
101 have been prepared in accordance with 
the Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standards 
and external assurance on the same has 
been provided by Messrs. SJMS Associates, 
Chartered Accountants. The Report also 
complies with the requirements of the Finance 
Companies (Corporate Governance) Direction 
No. 3 of 2008 and subsequent amendments 
thereto issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, 
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange 
and Code of Best Practice on Corporate 

Concept/Principle How we complied

Connectivity Navigation icons and signposting are used across the report to demonstrate connectivity of information.

Completeness We have included all information that is deemed material to our value creation process.

Consistency Information has been presented in a manner that enables comparability across years and with other organisations.

Balance The Report represents both the positive and negative impacts of our financial, social and environmental performance.

Reporting improvements
Every year, we seek to improve the readability and meaningfulness of our Report. Key improvements in this year’s Report include,

• Adoption of GRI Standards for sustainability reporting
• Increased connectivity to the Sustainable Development Goals
• Enhanced connectivity between information through using navigation icons and signposting

Navigation icons

Feedback
We understand that Integrated Reporting is 
a journey of continuous improvement and 
welcome your comments and suggestions in 
improving the readability of our Report. Please 
direct your feedback to,

Eranda Weerasinghe
Chief Financial Officer,
erandaw@bimputhfinance.com 

Governance issued jointly by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and 
the Securities and Exchange Commission 
of Sri Lanka. For the first time, we have also 
adopted the Global Reporting Initiative’s (GRI) 
Standards for Sustainability Reporting and are 
reporting ‘In accordance’ with the ‘Core’ criteria 
prescribed by the standards. 

The table below demonstrates how we 
adopted the key principles/concepts of <IR> 
in this Report;

Further 
information

Human 
Capital

Manufactured 
Capital

Financial 
Capital

Intellectual 
Capital

Social and 
Relationship 

Capital

Natural 
Capital

Director’s Responsibility
Bimputh’s Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for ensuring the integrity of this Report. 
We hereby confirm that the 2017/18 Report addresses all relevant material matters and fairly 
represents the Company’s integrated performance. The Report is approved and authorised 
for publication.

Signed on behalf of the Board,

102-10, 102-12, 102-45,102-48,102-50,102-51, 102-52,102-53,102-54,102-56
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Performance Highlights

Financial 
Capital

For the year ended 31st March Metric 2017/18 2016/17 Change (%)

Financial Performance  

Gross income Rs. Mn 2,758 2,910 -5 

Net Interest Income Rs. Mn 1,594 2,044 -22 

Operating profit before tax on financial services Rs. Mn 305 908 -66 

Pre-tax profit Rs. Mn 223 776 -71 

Taxation Rs. Mn 76 260 -71 

Profit for the year Rs. Mn 147 516 -72 

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent Rs. Mn 167 516 -68 

Gross dividends for the year Rs. Mn - 108 0 

Financial Position  

Total assets Rs. Mn 10,094 11,734 -14 

Loans and advances (net) Rs. Mn 7,520 9,309 -19 

Total liabilities Rs. Mn 8,289 9,988 -17 

Total deposits Rs. Mn 2,184 2,936 -26 

Shareholders’ funds Rs. Mn 1,804 1,745 3 

Profitability  

Net interest margin % 16.79 22.18 -24 

Non-performing-loans ratio (%) % 6.33 2.99 112 

Return on assets (%) % 1.45 4.40 -67 

Return on equity (%) % 8.86 42.01 -79 

Cost to income ratio % 91.75 62.96 46 

Investor Information  

Net asset value per share (Rs.) Rs. 16.75 16.20 3 

Market value per share (Rs.) Rs. 44.50 59.30 -25 

Earnings per share-basic Rs. 1.36 4.79 -72 

Price earnings (times) Times 32.65 12.38 164 

Dividend per share (Rs.) Rs. - 1.00 0 

Dividend cover (times) Times - 4.79 0 

Dividend yield (%) % - 59.30 0 

Market Capitalisation Rs. Mn 4,794 6,389 -25 

Regulatory ratios  

Capital adequacy ratios:  

 Tier 1-(minimum ratio of 5%) % 18.47 16.28 13 

 Tier 1 & 11-(minimum ratio of 10%) % 18.47 16.28 13 

Liquid assets ratio % 32.03 19.63 63 
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For the year ended 31st March Metric 2017/18 2016/17 Change (%)

Manufactured 
Capital

Property, plant and equipment Rs. Mn 298.80 287.93 4

Branches No. 50 50 0

Branches outside Western Province No. 46 46 0

Capital expenditure Rs. Mn 44.03 46.17 -5

Investment in technology Rs. Mn 15.18 5.22 191

Intellectual 
Capital

Total employees No. 759 808 -6

Payments to employees Rs. Mn 355.09 301.45 18

Employee retention rate % 77 78.7 -2

New recruits No. 132 122 8

Female representation-overall % 10 7.3 37

Female representation-senior management % 0.20 0.11 80

Total training hours No. 232 216 7

Training coverage ratio % 74.70 62.5 20

Average training hours No. 4.79 4.16 15

Promotions No. 48 30 60

Workplace injuries No. 0 0 0

Revenue per employee Rs. Mn 3.63 3.41 6

Profit per employee Rs. Mn 0.19 0.64 -70

Human 
Capital

No. of customers No. 110,420 154,121 -28

Female borrowers No. 91.43 95.32 -4

Investment in entrepreneur development Rs. Mn 16.25 13.10 24

Training hours of customers No. 245 210 17

Loans disbursed Rs. Mn 7,724 9,612 -20

Customer retention rate % 71.65 90.32 -21

New loans disbursed Rs. Mn 8,815 12,743 -31

Customers outside Western Province % 92.64 91.52 1

Average loan size per customer Rs. Mn 69,950 63,250 11

Natural 
Capital

Loans to the Agriculture Sector Rs. Mn 1,545 2,211 -30

Fuel consumption Litres 16,807 15,976 5

Water consumption Litres 42,369 45,277 -6

Environmental non-compliance No. Zero Zero 0
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efforts on improving monitoring and 
collections. Resultantly the Company’s total 
credit portfolio contracted by 25% which led 
to a 5% decline in interest income. Impairment 
charges surged to Rs. 472.68 Mn further 
impacting profitability; consequently, the 
Company’s profit for the year declined to  
Rs. 146.84 Mn from Rs. 516.22 Mn the 
year before. The Company’s funding and 
capitalisation position remains healthy, 
providing us an ample capital buffer to expand 
our credit portfolio over the medium to long-
term.

Given our vision, our performance extends 
beyond financial results as we continued 
to drive our financial inclusion agenda 
among the country’s most underprivileged 
communities. With approximately 91% of our 
lending directed to females, an average loan 
size of Rs. 69,950 and 93% of lending outside 
the Western Province our loan facilities are 
aimed towards driving entrepreneurship and 
promoting rural economic development. 
Despite pressures on our financial 
performance we continued to offer a holistic 
value proposition to our customers, providing 
opportunities for skill development and 
entrepreneurial support. During the year we 
invested Rs. 16.25 Mn in such programmes, 
providing 245 training hours to our micro-
finance customers. 

As operating conditions became increasingly 
difficult we sought to strengthen our 
governance and risk management 
frameworks. These measures included 
revamping the performance management 
system, strengthening pre and post-
disbursement criteria and leveraging on 
technology. These initiatives are discussed in 

detail in the CEO’s Review on page 09 of this 
Report. Increasing exposure to asset-backed 
lending products is a strategic focus and 
during the year we set up a Leasing Approval 
Committee at executive level to ensure good 
lending practices in this segment.

Despite the short-term moderation in the 
country’s economic growth, we believe 
the long-term outlook remains promising. 
Government’s policy reforms, increased 
emphasis on the SME sector, development 
of a cohesive export strategy and improving 
international relations are expected to lay 
a firm foundation for long-term economic 
prosperity. In this context, we see considerable 
opportunities for growth and hope to 
pursue expansion in both SME and leasing 
segments. We hope to adopt a more cautious 
approach to growth in the micro-financing 
sector, although this will continue to be 
the Company’s mainstay. Driving process 
efficiencies and improved risk management 
through deploying technology is also a key 
strategic focus and measures have already 
been implemented to drive the use of mobile 
technology to improve collections and 
achieve a sustainable improvement in credit 
quality. 

I would like to take this opportunity to extend 
my appreciation to the Company’s previous 
Chairman Mr. Kingsley Bernard for his valuable 
guidance over the years. I wish to thank the 
team of Bimputh Finance led by the Deputy 
Chairman/Acting CEO Mr. Chamindra Gamage 
for their efforts in delivering the results set 
before you. I also thank my colleagues on the 
Board for their value contributions and insights 
and would like to take this opportunity to 
extend my gratitude to Mr. Daya Gamage, the 
Company’s visionary founder for his long-
standing efforts to bring this Company to its 
current standing. Finally, I would like to extend 
my gratitude to the officials of the Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka for their continued guidance as 
well as our valuable customers, shareholders, 
funding partners and other stakeholders who 
have supported us throughout the years.

Sudath Jayasundara
Acting Chairman

Dear Shareholder,
It is my pleasant task to set before you the 
Annual Report and Accounts of Bimputh 
Finance PLC for the financial year ended 31st 
March 2018 and welcome you to the 11th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

Sri Lanka’s macro-economic and climatic 
conditions in 2017 had an adverse effect on 
the Company’s performance, with overall 
profitability below expectations for the year 
under review. Economic growth moderated 
to 3.4% (compared to 4.3% in 2016) while 
inflationary pressures and rising interest rates 
directly impacted the repayment ability of 
our customers, a segment which is highly 
vulnerable to economic shocks. These 
trends had a direct impact on the non-bank-
financial-institutions sector which saw total 
asset growth moderating to 11% in the 
year ending March 2018 (compared to 15% 
the year before) and profitability declining 
by 15% y-o-y. Most NBFI’s also witnessed a 
deterioration in credit quality, with the gross 
NPA ratio increasing to 6.33% in March 2018, 
from 2.99% in March 2017. We note with 
concern the increasing prevalence of informal 
money lenders and unregulated micro-
financing institutions who provide credit at 
exorbitant rates, thereby leading to over-
indebtedness on the part of the borrowers. 
Inability to repay results in considerable social 
pressure and given the grave socio-economic 
implications of this phenomenon we request 
the government to take necessary action to 
regulate such operations. 

In view of these external dynamics, the 
Company pursued a strategy of consolidation 
during the year. We sought to curtail lending 
to the micro-financing sector while focusing 

WE SOUGHT TO CURTAIL LENDING 
TO THE MICRO-FINANCING 
SECTOR WHILE FOCUSING 
EFFORTS ON IMPROVING 
MONITORING AND COLLECTIONS. 

102-14
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finance lender with substantial exposure to 
the North and East provinces we were directly 
impacted by these dynamics, as borrowers 
experienced substantial cashflow pressures. 
Meanwhile, a surge in informal lending 
operations and unscrupulous micro-finance 
lenders have led to over indebtedness, 
particularly in the North and Eastern regions. 
We urge the Government to implement 
mechanisms to regulate the informal lending 
sector as over indebtedness is threatening 
community livelihoods leading to numerous 
socio-economic issues while impacting the 
commercial viability of the regulated micro-
finance lenders. 

Strategy in action
Strategic efforts during the year were 
directed towards curtailing the influx of non-
performing-loans and achieving a sustainable 
improvement in credit quality. These measures 
included setting up a fully-fledged call centre 

to strengthen the credit verification process, 
increased centralisation of approvals and 
investment in robust data analytics to drive 
improved decision making. We also leveraged 
on digital capabilities to enhance collections 
and monitoring by providing tablet computers 
to all field officers. These efforts have now 
begun to bear fruit with the influx of NPL’s 
declining on a month-on-month basis. We 
also revamped our incentive schemes to drive 
increased focus on collections and nurture a 
high-performing culture. As such, appraisal 
schemes were revised to widen the inclusion 
of collection and credit quality parameters, 
which over the medium to long-term will 
support the inculcation of a more risk 
conscious culture. 

Emphasis was also placed on diversifying our 
credit portfolio to achieve better risk-return 
dynamics. Accordingly, we sought growth in 
asset backed lending including leasing and 
gold loans during the year; the Company’s 
leasing portfolio expanded by 96% while gold 
loans increased to Rs. 89.48 Mn from Rs. 5.29 
Mn the year before. Meanwhile we curtailed 
exposure to micro-financing lending which 
resulted in the portfolio contracting by 23% in 
2017/18. 

Performance in 2017/18
The Company’s performance during the year 
reflected the challenges in the operating 
landscape. Interest income declined by 
5% to Rs. 2.76 Bn as the total loan portfolio 
contracted by 25% in view of our efforts to 
consolidate the micro-financing portfolio. 
Meanwhile the increase in market interest 
rates and diversification into asset-backed 
lending products led to a contraction in the 
net interest margin (NIM) which narrowed to 
16.8% from 22.2% the year before. Impairment 
charges escalated to Rs. 472.68 Mn  

Bimputh Finance PLC experienced 
unprecedented challenges during the year, as 
the country’s weak agriculture sector, rising 
interest rates and subdued economic growth 
directly impacted our target market. The 
Company’s interest income declined by 5% 
during the year while profit after tax declined 
to Rs.146.84 Mn from Rs.516.22 Mn the year 
before. Despite these short-term challenges, 
we remain committed to our vision of 
inclusive lending and rural empowerment 
and have taken proactive measures to achieve 
a sustainable improvement in our operating 
model and financial performance. 

Context to our performance
Sri Lanka’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 
growth slowed to 3.4% during the year, 
reflecting a weaker agriculture sector, 
tighter monetary policy conditions and the 
government’s fiscal consolidation efforts. 
Meanwhile, an increase in the policy rate in 
September 2017 led to a gradual rise in market 
interest rates while inflationary pressures 
also increased due to supply constraints in 
agricultural produce and rising international 
commodity prices. 

Persistently adverse weather conditions 
continued to impact the country’s 
agriculture sector which contracted for the 
2nd consecutive year; in 2017 the sector 
contracted by 0.8% due to floods and 
prolonged droughts in many parts of the 
country. Given the agriculture-based nature of 
Sri Lanka’s rural economy, this had cascading 
effects across several sectors. As a micr0-

QUICK LOOK
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(from Rs. 165.67 Mn) the year before reflecting 
the challenging economic conditions and 
the weakening of the agriculture sector. The 
Company’s profit for the year of Rs. 146.84 
Mn reflects a decline of 72% compared to the 
previous year.

Despite the weaker performance during the 
year, the Company’s financial position remains 
healthy supported by its funding strategy, 
strong capitalisation and healthy liquidity 
levels. We have continued our strategy of 
limiting exposure to public deposits and 
funding loan growth through borrowings 
from banks and funding agencies.  In 2017/18 
deposits contracted by 26% and accounted for 
just 22% of total funding thereby mitigating 
exposure to potential funding and liquidity 
risks. The Company’s capitalisation position 
also remains strong, well above the CBSL’s 
guidelines on minimum capital requirements 
and a Tier 1 and Overall risk weighted 
capital adequacy ratio amounting to 18.5% 
comfortably within the statutory minimum 
ratios. 

Stakeholder value creation
Despite short-term challenges stemming 
from the operating landscape, we remain 
deeply committed to our long-term vision 
of empowering vulnerable communities 
through providing affordable financing 
avenues. During the year, total disbursements 
amounted to Rs. 7.72 Bn with 93% of our 
portfolio outside the Western Province. The 
Company’s value proposition to its micro-
finance customers extends beyond a mere 
financial transaction to include ongoing 
investments in customer education and skill 
development. In 2017/18, we invested  
Rs. 16.25 Mn in such programmes, translating 
to approximately 245 customer training 
hours. Meanwhile, we continue to strengthen 
our employee value proposition with an 
18% increase in payments to employees, 
despite a 6% reduction in our employee 
count compared to last year. The Company’s 
performance appraisal scheme is designed to 
identify and retain high performing employees 
through providing opportunities for career 
progression and during the year 48 employees 
were promoted. We also provided 232 training 
hours to our employees with 75% of our 
workforce undergoing training during the year. 

Way Forward
Over the immediate term, continued 
emphasis will be placed on driving further 
improvements in credit quality. The Company’s 
medium-term strategy for 2018/19 will focus 
on achieving further diversification of the loan 
book by pursuing growth in asset-backed 
lending products including gold loans and 
leasing facilities. We hope to also achieve 
better risk-return dynamics through increasing 
lending exposure to the SME segment; an 
industry veteran has already been recruited 
to drive our growth aspirations in this 
segment. We will also continue to leverage 
on technology to drive increased efficiencies, 
performance management, customer service 
and portfolio management through ongoing 
investments in robust information systems.

Appreciation
I would like to take this opportunity to thank 
the Chairman and my colleagues on the Board 
for their valuable guidance, as well as the 
founder of Bimputh Finance Mr. Daya Gamage 
for his vision on which the Company’s strategic 
aspirations are based. Our dedicated team of 
employees will play a vital role in achieving 
our objectives and I thank them for their 
efforts and commitment during the year.  I 
appreciate the continued support provided by 
our shareholders customers, funding partners, 
the officials of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka 
and all other stakeholders who have partnered 
us in our journey. 

Chamindra Gamage
Executive Deputy Chairman / Acting CEO
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Board of Directors

Mr. Sudath Jayasundara 
Non-Executive / Acting Chairman

Appointed to the Board in January 2013

Skills and Experience
An Attorney-at-Law, Mr. Jayasundara, holds 
a Bachelor’s Degree from the University of 
Colombo and a Diploma in International 
Affairs from the Bandaranaike Centre for 
International Studies. 

Other Appointments
Board positions in Harischandra Mills Matara 
PLC, Bogawanthalawa Plantations PLC, 
Metropolitan Resources (Pvt) Ltd, Sithara Ltd, 
Electronic Technologies (Pvt) Ltd, Sraddha 
Media Networks (Gte) Ltd, Lakviru Radio (Pvt) 
Ltd, Blue Diamonds Jewellery Worldwide 
PLC, Compassion Products (Pvt) Ltd, Sri Lanka 
Arbitration Centre (Gte) Ltd. 

Mr. Chamindra Gamage
Executive Deputy Chairman/Acting CEO

Appointed to the Board in March 2013

Skills and Experience
Prior to being appointed to the Board of 
Bimputh Finance, Mr. Gamage served the 
Company in the capacity of General Manager- 
Marketing and Business Development. 
He holds substantial post qualification 
management experience having served 
in several conglomerates including MAS 
Holdings and Sampath Chinkara Securities. 
He holds a B.Sc (Hons.) Degree in Economics 
and M.Sc. in Accounting and Finance from the 
London Schools of Economics and Political 
Sciences. 

Other Appointments
He holds board positions in several companies 
within the Daya Group.

Mr. Asoka Hemachandra
Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director

Appointed to the Board in November 2010

Skills and Experience
Mr. Hemachandra counts nearly 40 years of 
entrepreneurial and business management 
expertise.

Other Appointments
Director of the M.Y. Hemachandra Group 
of Companies and holds board positions in 
several companies within the Daya Group.

Mrs. Sherani Godamunne 
Independent Non – Executive Director

Appointed to the Board in April 2013

Skills and experience
With over 40 years’ experience in finance 
and management, Mrs. Godamunne has 
previously held several senior positions in the 
government and private sectors. She is an 
Associate Member of the Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants of UK.

Other appointments
Previously held the positions of Senior 
Accountant of Sri Lanka Land Reclamation and 
Development Corporation, Assistant General 
Manager (Finance) of Airport and Aviation 
Services (Sri Lanka) and Financial Controller 
of Arthur C. Clarke Institute for Modern 
Technology.

Mr. Sudarshana Piyatillake
Independent Non – Executive Director

Appointed to the Board in October 2016

Skills and experience
A career banker, Mr. Piyatillake has over 25 
years of multi-disciplined experience in the 
banking and financial services sectors. He 
holds professionals qualifications from the 
Institute of Data Processing Management, 
London, Diploma in Computer Systems 
Design from the National Institute of Business 
Management and part qualifications from the 
Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka.

Other appointments
He previously served in the Indian Overseas 
Bank, gaining exposure to all facets of 
commercial banking including imports/
exports, foreign exchange dealing, fund 
management, HR & Administration, Customer 
relations and Credit among others. He also 
previously served as the CEO of Bimputh 
Finance in 2010. 

Mrs. Manjaree Gamage
Non-Independent, Non – Executive Director

Appointed to the Board in October 2016.

Skills and experience
Mrs. Gamage’s prior experience includes 
a stint at the global insurance and human 
capital consultancy firm, Willis Tower, as 
well as Daya Group and MAS Holdings. She 
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics 
from the University of Durham and an MSc 
in Management and Human Resources from 
the London School of Economics. She is 
also a member of the Chartered Institute of 
Personnel Development.

Other appointments
Managing Director of Blue Diamonds 
Jewellery PLC
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Management Team

Eranda Weerasinghe
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Darshana Wijesinghe
Head of Operations and Administration

Kasun Chamika
Senior Manager Operations

Romesh Christy 
Senior Manager Operations

Rohan Peiris
Chief Innovation Officer (CIO)

Dhanushka Athulatheja
Senior Manager Operations

Kelum Weerathunge
Senior Manager - Administration and Recoveries

Tamara Wijesinghe
Chief Operating Officer (COO)

Kashmi Kapuwella
Company Secretary / Head of Legal

Gihan S. Wickramasinghe
Senior Manager - Business Development

M. N. H. Nashwaq
Senior Accountant
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Branch Locations 

 Branch Service Centre Address

1 Pepiliyana 362, Colombo Road, Pepiliyana, Boralesgamuwa

2 Ampara 182, Kalmunai Road, Ampara

3 Sevanagala 18, Danduma Junction, Sevanagala

4 Padiyathalawa 306 A6, Seram Building, Main Street, Padiyathalawa

5 Dehiattakandiya No. F/77, New Town, Dehiaththakandiya

6 Uhana No. 15, Kandy Road, Uhana 

7 Mahaoya No. 63, Wijethunga Building,Mahaoya

8 Siyambalanduwa ‘Lakmini Building’ Ampara Junction, Siyambalanduwa

9 Monaragala No. 213, Wellawaya Road, Monaragala

10 Thirukkovil Main Street, Thirukkovil - 03

11 Panadura No. 40/1/1, Horana Road, Panadura

12 Jaffna No. 275/1/2, Clock Tower Rd, Jaffna

13 Negombo No. 34/A, Colombo Rd, Negombo

Service Centre 

Branch 

Head Office 

Avissawella 

Ratnapura 

Kaduwela 

Homagama
Pepiliyana 
Head O�ce  

Panadura

Aluthgama

Matugama

Gampaha

Naththandiya

Negombo 

Chilaw

Mannar 

Mullathive 

Mallavi

Ja�na

Nelliyadi

Puttalam

Nikaweratiya 

Kurunegala

Matale

Dambulla

Higurakgoda

Batticaloa

Valachchenai

Trincomalee 

SeruvawilaAnuradhapura 

Vauniya

Galgamuwa

Kalawanchchikudi

Kalmunai
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 Branch Service Centre Address

14 Puttalam No. 3A, Out Circle Road, Puttalam

15 Nelliyady No. 58/1, Jaffna Point Pedro Road, Nelliady

16 Embilipitiya No. 70, New Town Road, Embilipitiya

17 Batticaloa No. 43, Bailey Road , Batticaloa

18 Wattala No. 591 1/1, Negombo Road, Wattala

19 Beliattha No. 77, Walasmulla Road, Beliattha

20 Bandarawela No. 444, Badulla Road, Bandarawela

21 Kaduwela No. 502/10, Awissawella Road, Kaduwela

22 Gampaha No. 355, Colombo Road, Gampaha

23 Kalawanchikudi Main Street, Kalawanchikudi

24 Aluthgama No. 301/1A, Galle Road, Aluthgama

25 Mallavi Main Street, Anithichiyankulam, Mallavi

26 Kalmunne No. 345, Batticaloa Road, Pandiruppu ii, Kalmunai

27 Mullaittivu Thanniyoottu, Mulliyawalai, Mullaittivu 

28 Homagama No. 114/ 1/1, Awissawella Road, Homagama

29 Naththandiya 6th Mail Post, Kuliyapitiya Road, Naththandiya

30 Valachchenai Main Street, Karuwakerna, Valachchenai

31 Nikaweratiya No. 182/1, Mahawa Road, Nikaweratiya 

32 Mathugama No. 121/B2, Agalawathta Road, Matugama

33 Nawalapitiya No.116/B, Gampola Road, Nawalapitiya

34 Higurakgoda No. 12, Air Port Road, Higurakgoda

35 Mannar Cooperative Building, 1st Cross Street, Pettah, Mannar

36 Dambulla No. 25C , Kurunegala Road, Dambulla

37 Anuradhapura No. 337/16, Mosque Road, Bank Place, Anuradhapura

38 Matara No. 301, New Tangalle Road, Kotuwegoda, Matara

39 Ingiriya No. 68 A 1/1, Ratnapura Road, Ingiriya

40 Ratnapura No. 22, Kirialla Building, Panadura Road, Ratnapura

41 Galgamuwa No. 391, Market Place, Galgamuwa

42 Seruwavila No. 05, Batticaloa Road, Serunuwara

43 Chilaw No. 299, Railway Crossing Road, Puttalam Road, Chillaw

44 Trincomalee No. 283/2, North cross Street, Trincomalee

45 Kandy No. 675, William Gopallawa Mw, Kandy

46 Kurunegala No. 35, South Circular Road, Kurunegala

47 Vavuniya No. 39, 2nd Cross Street, Vavuniya

48 Avissawella No. 29/1/1, Gem Land, Kudagama Rd, Avissawella

49 Matale No. 403, Trincomalee Road, Matale

50 Badulla No. 67 C, New Passara Road, Badulla
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Our Company
Bimputh Finance PLC is one of Sri Lanka’s leading micro finance lenders, providing access to equitable finance 
to economically underprivileged communities across 22 districts. Since its inception in 2007, the Company has 
directly contributed towards the socio-economic empowerment of over 150,000 individuals, providing financing 
for agricultural and self-employment ventures. The Company operates 50 contact points, providing direct 
employment to 759 individuals. Headquartered in Colombo, Sri Lanka Bimputh is a fully-fledged finance company, 
licensed by the Monetary Board of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka under the Finance Business Act No.42 of 2011.

Our Philosophy
Vision
To lead the non banking financial services industry.

Mission
To alleviate poverty in Sri Lanka by satisfying the 
financial requirements of micro, small and medium 
sized enterprises through an innovative product mix 
whilst empowering our employees, supporting our 
local communities and creating shareholder value.

Snapshot of Financial Position

Economic Impact

Our Network
50 contact points with 46 outside the 
Western Province

Our Relationships
Total customers: 150,000
Average length of customer relationship: 3 years
Customer retention: 72%

ASSETS:

Rs.10.10 Bn.

TAX PAYMENTS: 

Rs.76.40 Mn.

DIRECT EMPLOYMENT: 

759

REVENUE:

Rs.2.76 Bn.

EQUITY: 

Rs.1.80 Bn.

DEPOSITS :

Rs.2.18 Bn.

MICRO FINANCE LENDING: 

Rs.5,970 Mn.

LENDING OUTSIDE WESTERN 
PROVINCE: 

93%

PRE-TAX PROFIT:

Rs.223.24Mn.

102-1,102-3,102-4

Core Values
DELIVER 
amazing service

TAKE OWNERSHIP
in everything

COMMIT
to continuous improvement

EMBRACE
creativity and innovation

RECOGNIZE
leadership and hard work

BUILD
a positive team environment

PERSEVERE
from start to finish
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Value Creation and Impacts
We utilise various capitals through our value creating process to generate business outputs and long-term 
outcomes for our stakeholders. Our financial capital comprises shareholders’ funds, public deposits and 
borrowings which are in turn disbursed as loans to our customers. Our human capital plays a vital role in facilitating 
the customer experience and driving our strategy and we continue to invest in strengthening our human capital 
proposition. We also invest in mastering our intellectual capital- by continuous innovation and improving our 
processes to drive further efficiencies. Stakeholder relationships are vital to our long-term sustainability  
and we continue to expand and nurture relationships with customers, business partners and communities.

Outputs and Values Delivered

Shareholders 
Consistent returns 
commensurate with the 
risk undertaken and capital 
appreciation which reflects 
upside growth potential 
(Refer Shareholder returns on 
Page 30)

Employees 
 Attractive remuneration, a 
conducive work environment 
and opportunities for 
professional and career 
development 
(Refer Human Capital Report 
on Page 33)

Customers 
Providing access to 
affordable financing 
solutions 
(Refer Social & Relationship 
Capital Report on Page 37)

Suppliers 
Mutually beneficial 
relationships with our 
smallholders and other 
suppliers 
(Refer Social & Relationship 
Capital Report on Page 37)

Communities 
We maintain productive and 
sustainable relationships 
with the communities we 
operate in 
(Refer Social and 
Relationship Capital Report 
on Page 37) 

•  Revenue: Rs. 2.76 Bn
•  Profit for the year:  

Rs. 146.84 Mn
•  Earnings per share: Rs. 1.36
•  ROE: 8.86%

• Employee remuneration 
paid: Rs. 355 Mn

•  Investment in training and 
development: Rs. 25.60 Mn 

•  Total training hours: 232

•  Payments to suppliers:  
Rs. 8.4 Bn

•  Investments in 
community engagement: 
Rs. 10.40 Mn

•  Number of Beneficiaries: 
3,280

Capital Input

Financial Capital
• Shareholders’ funds:  

Rs. 1.80 Bn
• Public deposits: Rs. 2.18 Bn
• Borrowings: Rs. 5.95 Bn
 (Page 28)

Manufactured Capital
• Property, plant and 

equipment:   
Rs. 298.80 Mn

 (Page 31)

Human Capital
• The skills, values 

and attitudes of 
759 employees

 (Page 33)

Social and Relationship Capital
• 150,000 Customers
• Relationships with our 

business partners
• Community relationships
 (Page 37)

Intellectual Capital
•  Tacit knowledge
• Systems, processes 

and standards
• The BIMPUTH brand

Natural Capital
• Energy
• Water
• Raw Material
 (Page 41)

Impacts

Paper consumption Fuel consumption:  16,807 litres Water Usage: 42,369 litres Carbon footprint

Strategic Framework

Growth and portfolio 
diversification

Developing human capital Improving digital structure
Increasing operational 

efficiency
Community Relationships

Key Activities

Funding
Mobilizing Deposits

Borrowings from funding partners

Investing/Lending 
Microfinancing 
SME Lending 

Leasing

Supporting Activities 
Nurturing Client Relationships 

Creating Brand Awareness
Innovation and Product Development

Value Creating Activities

Operating Landscape (Page 20)

Vision

Mission

Corporate Governance (Page 48) and Risk Management (Page 43)

102-2,102-7,102-9
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Our Operating Context
Engaging with our Stakeholders
Ongoing engagement with our stakeholders enables the Company to clearly identify issues which matter most to our stakeholders and formulate our 
strategy to address these needs. Engagement is facilitated through both formal and informal mechanisms and supported by an extensive network of 
stakeholder contact points. Feedback obtained and concerns raised through this engagement forms the foundation for identifying material aspects 
which are a vital input in our strategy formulation, planning, operations and reporting.

Stakeholder 
Group

Shareholders Customers
 Employees Business partners (including 

funding partners)
Government and Regulators Communities

Method and 
frequency of 
engagement

• Annual General Meeting 
• Quarterly financial results released 

to the CSE
• Corporate website (ongoing)
• Press releases through the CSE 

(ongoing)

•  Engagement with marketing teams 
(ongoing)

• Engagement through branches and 
marketing officers (ongoing)

• Weekly/fortnightly meetings with 
borrowers

• Promotional and marketing activities 
(ongoing)

• Annual performance appraisals
• Staff meetings
• Open door policy with senior 

management (ongoing)
• Year-round event calendar 

including work life balance 
initiatives, sports activities and 
cultural activities 

• CSR programmes (ongoing)

• One-to-one meetings (as and 
when required)

• In depth due diligence and 
Site visits (as and when 
required)

• Written communication 
(ongoing)

• Ongoing regulatory 
reporting 

• Consultations and meetings 
when required

• Announcements to the CSE 
when required

• Written communication with 
the CBSL (ongoing)

• Industry forums (ongoing)

• Regular community 
meetings

• CSR initiatives

Topics and 
concerns 
raised in 
2017/18

• Sustainable growth in earnings
• Returns commensurate with risks 

assumed
• Proactive risk management 

practices
• Macroeconomic environment and 

potential impacts on the Group’s 
Outlook

• Financial inclusion
• Client Development
• Ease of transactions
• Access to affordable funding
• Communication in language of choice

• Attractive remuneration schemes
• Opportunities for talent and skill 

development
• Career progression opportunities
• Injury-free, safe working 

environment

• Responsible business practices
• Financial strength and stability
• Corporate Governance
• Compliance 

• Responsible Business 
Practices

• Financial inclusion
• Compliance 
• Contribution to on-going 

dialogue on financial sector 
reform

• Stability and growth of 
financial sector

• Generating employment
• Responsible Business 

Practices
• Community support

Our response Our strategy was directed towards 
generating sustainable shareholder 
returns and maintaining transparent 
and ongoing shareholder 
communication.

Our customer value proposition 
is centred on innovation, product 
responsibility, accessibility and customer 
service.

Our value proposition to 
employees comprise of providing 
attractive remuneration, 
opportunities for training and 
development and a dynamic work 
environment.

We maintain mutually 
beneficial relationships with our 
business partners. 

The Company strives to 
maintain transparent and 
ongoing communication 
with our regulators and 
have mechanisms in order 
to ensure compliance to all 
relevant regulations.

As a responsible corporate 
citizen, we strive to add 
meaningful value to the 
communities we operate 
in. 

Financial Capital (Page 28) Social & Relationship Capital (Page37) Human Capital (Page 33) Social & Relationship Capital 
(Page 37)

Social & Relationship Capital 
(Page 37)

Social & Relationship 
Capital (Page 37)

Identification of 
stakeholders to engage 

with

Prioritise stakeholders 
depending on their ability 

to impact our value 
creation process the 

impact of our decisions

Conduct engagement 
(formal or informal 

platform)

Prioritise feedback

102-40,102-42,102-43 ,102-44
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Stakeholder 
Group

Shareholders Customers
 Employees Business partners (including 

funding partners)
Government and Regulators Communities

Method and 
frequency of 
engagement

• Annual General Meeting 
• Quarterly financial results released 

to the CSE
• Corporate website (ongoing)
• Press releases through the CSE 

(ongoing)

•  Engagement with marketing teams 
(ongoing)

• Engagement through branches and 
marketing officers (ongoing)

• Weekly/fortnightly meetings with 
borrowers

• Promotional and marketing activities 
(ongoing)

• Annual performance appraisals
• Staff meetings
• Open door policy with senior 

management (ongoing)
• Year-round event calendar 

including work life balance 
initiatives, sports activities and 
cultural activities 

• CSR programmes (ongoing)

• One-to-one meetings (as and 
when required)

• In depth due diligence and 
Site visits (as and when 
required)

• Written communication 
(ongoing)

• Ongoing regulatory 
reporting 

• Consultations and meetings 
when required

• Announcements to the CSE 
when required

• Written communication with 
the CBSL (ongoing)

• Industry forums (ongoing)

• Regular community 
meetings

• CSR initiatives

Topics and 
concerns 
raised in 
2017/18

• Sustainable growth in earnings
• Returns commensurate with risks 

assumed
• Proactive risk management 

practices
• Macroeconomic environment and 

potential impacts on the Group’s 
Outlook

• Financial inclusion
• Client Development
• Ease of transactions
• Access to affordable funding
• Communication in language of choice

• Attractive remuneration schemes
• Opportunities for talent and skill 

development
• Career progression opportunities
• Injury-free, safe working 

environment

• Responsible business practices
• Financial strength and stability
• Corporate Governance
• Compliance 

• Responsible Business 
Practices

• Financial inclusion
• Compliance 
• Contribution to on-going 

dialogue on financial sector 
reform

• Stability and growth of 
financial sector

• Generating employment
• Responsible Business 

Practices
• Community support

Our response Our strategy was directed towards 
generating sustainable shareholder 
returns and maintaining transparent 
and ongoing shareholder 
communication.

Our customer value proposition 
is centred on innovation, product 
responsibility, accessibility and customer 
service.

Our value proposition to 
employees comprise of providing 
attractive remuneration, 
opportunities for training and 
development and a dynamic work 
environment.

We maintain mutually 
beneficial relationships with our 
business partners. 

The Company strives to 
maintain transparent and 
ongoing communication 
with our regulators and 
have mechanisms in order 
to ensure compliance to all 
relevant regulations.

As a responsible corporate 
citizen, we strive to add 
meaningful value to the 
communities we operate 
in. 

Financial Capital (Page 28) Social & Relationship Capital (Page37) Human Capital (Page 33) Social & Relationship Capital 
(Page 37)

Social & Relationship Capital 
(Page 37)

Social & Relationship 
Capital (Page 37)
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Operating Landscape
Economic Environment

Economic Growth 
Sri Lanka’s economic growth slowed to 3.1% 
in 2017 (compared to 4.3% in 2016) reflecting 
a weaker agriculture sector and a tighter fiscal 
and monetary policy stance. Adverse weather 
conditions affected the country’s agriculture 
sector, which had cascading effects on other 
sectors of the economy. The Industry and 
Services sector grew by a respective 3.9% and 
3.2% during the year. 

Inflation
Inflationary pressures increased in 2017 
resulting from supply constraints of 
agricultural produce, VAT revisions in 2016 
and rising international commodity prices. 
Volatilities in food inflation were reflected in 
the Headline National Consumers’ Price Index 
(NCPI) which fluctuated between 6.3% and 
8.8% (y-o-y) during the year. The regulator 
plans to move towards a flexible inflation 
targeting regime over the medium term and 
this is expected to support macro-economic 
stability, leading to sustained low inflation. 

Interest rates
A relatively tight monetary policy stance 
was adopted during the year with a view to 
curbing inflationary pressures. The standard 
deposit facility rate increased to 7.25% in 
September 2017 compared to 7% in 2016 and 
standard lending rate increased to 8.75% in 
September 2017 compared to 8.5% in 2016. 
This resulted in a gradual upward trend in 
market interest rates. The Government also 
pursued fiscal consolidation, which led to 
an increase in tax rates and a slowdown in 
private consumption expenditure. Meanwhile, 
progress was made on the policy front, with 
economic reforms targeted towards fiscal 
consolidation, stabilizing macro-economic 
fundamentals and increasing foreign 
investment inflows expected to bear fruition 
over the medium-to-long term.

Outlook 
The Government’s efforts towards fiscal 
consolidation is likely to affect headline 
growth over the short-term. Over the medium 
to long-term however, the government’s 
policy reforms and improving international 
relations are expected to lay a firm foundation 
for long-term economic development. 
Growth prospects are more promising over 
the long-term, underpinned by broad-based 
reform targeted towards fiscal consolidation, 
development of a cohesive export strategy 
and a renewed drive to attract foreign 
investments. 

Performance of the NBFI Sector
Sri Lanka’s non -bank financial sector 
comprises forty-five licensed finance 
companies (LFCs) and six specialized leasing 
companies (SLCs). The sector plays a vital role 
in catering to the financial requirements of the 
rural and relatively risky customer segment, 
which is often overlooked by the banking 
sector. 

Growth
The Sector’s total asset growth moderated 
to 11% during the 12 months to March 2018, 
compared to 15% in the previous year as 
the lending portfolio was impacted by the 
policy and macro-prudential measures of 
the government. Growth in both leasing and 
loan product segments decelerated during 
the year and LFC’s increasingly focused on 
other lending areas such as micro-financing 
and gold loans. Pawning advances increased 
by 39% YoY during the year as gold prices 
rebounded. Other loans such as real estate 
and hire purchases declined during the year. 

Earnings
Total interest income increased by 12% during 
the period supported by credit growth. 
Interest expenses however accelerated at 

a faster 20% due to the rising interest rate 
scenario, which affected the net interest 
margins. Total operating costs increased by 3% 
during the year, resulting in the efficiency ratio 
increasing 64.6% from 61.6% the year before. 
Profitability weakened due to the contraction 
in NIM’s and higher impairment costs resulting 
in the Company’s profit after tax declining by 
15% to Rs.24.07 Bn. Return on equity (ROE) 
declined to 14.58% from 14.73% the year 
before. 

Asset quality
Most players witnessed a deterioration 
in credit quality, with the gross NPA ratio 
increasing to 5.82% in March 2018, from 
4.89% in March due to the unfavourable 
weather conditions and rising inflation that 
impacted performance of several economic 
sectors. Agriculture Sector customers also 
faced repayment pressure, resulting in higher 
delinquencies from the segment. The Sector’s 
loan loss provisions more than doubled to 
Rs.17.84 billion during the year, whereas the 
provision coverage ratio declined to 62.84% 
from 64.78% the year before.
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Capital and Funding
The Company’s capital base increased by 9% to Rs.166.61 Bn driven by growth in retained profits. 
Deposits dominated the funding profile with a share of 54% during the year. With increasing market 
interest rates, deposits increased by 24% during the year ending March 2018 while exposure to 
borrowings declined by 4% during the year. Total regulatory capital base amounted to Rs.133.29 Bn 
and increased by 11% during the year. Core Capital adequacy ratios however declined marginally to 
11.17% from 11.31% in March 2018 and remained well above the regulation.

FUNDING PROFILEFUNDING PROFILE
%

Shareholders' funds
Customer deposits
Borrowings

13

54

33

+
Increased regulatory demands on 
governance and risk management 

Increasing regulatory demands and 
governance requirements have resulted 
in higher compliance costs and increased 
the complexity of doing business. During 
the year, a ‘Financial Customer Protection 
Framework’ was introduced for all LFC’s and 
SLC’s to ensure the protection of rights and 
interests of financial customers. In addition, 
a new capital adequacy framework will be 
introduced by the regulator, encompassing 
a more risk sensitive focus on covering 
credit and operational risk under the basic 
approach of the BASEL accord.

Emerging risks and opportunities

+
Government’s financial inclusion agenda

Promoting regional economic development through facilitating access to finance is a key 
economic priority for the Government and several policy measures have been taken to 
support effective credit delivery to the Micro and SME (MSME) Sectors. In 2017, the banking 
sector channelled Rs.165 billion in loans to the micro-finance sector, including Government 
credit schemes with the objective of promoting entrepreneurship, self-employment and 
strengthening the agricultural sector.

_
Talent attraction and retention

Attracting and retaining skilled employees continues to be a challenge and is exacerbated by 
increased poaching of staff by other micro financing providers. As a relationship-driven mode, 
this also affects the Company’s ability to retain its customers and achieve sustainable growth.

_
Over-indebtedness and financial illiteracy

Over-indebtedness among micro finance borrowers and weak financial discipline as well as 
lack of awareness on how to access and use funds in productive and value creating ways can 
result in significant risks to borrowers. This has led to increased delinquencies from the sector, 
pressurising asset quality.

+
Increasing connectivity and digitisation

Sri Lanka’s internet subscribers have more than tripled over the past 3 years and mobile 
penetration is more than 100% attesting to the increased connectivity and digital literacy 
in Sri Lankan households. This has paved way numerous opportunities for financial sector 
companies, with prospects of transforming customer interactions, enhancing efficiency, 
strengthening monitoring and risk management practices among others. We have also invested 
in strengthening our digital infrastructure, particularly in improving data analytics and portfolio 
monitoring. 
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Determining Material Issues

Material issue and why it is material to us Corresponding 
principles

Topic boundary and change in boundary Materiality in 
comparison to 

2017/18

(1) Financial Performance
This is a pre-requisite to creating shareholder value 
and ensuring sufficiency of resources to drive 
strategic aspirations

- The Company’s financial performance is an 
internal measure but has implications on both 
internal and external stakeholders including 
employees and customers.

No change

(2) Portfolio Diversification 
As a Company catering to an inherently risky 
segment, we understand the importance of 
diversifying our risk exposure to ensure sustainable 
growth

- Relates to the Company’s lending portfolio and 
growth strategy.

(3) Geographical reach
Increasing customer accessibility through an 
extensive network, particularly in rural regions is 
essential for growth.

- Relates to the Company’s branch reach and has 
implications on customers, employees and the 
wider community.

No change

(4) Brand recognition
In an intensely competitive operating landscape, 
brand recognition is vital to sustaining a competitive 
edge.

- Our brand reputation relates to how we are 
perceived by our stakeholders and includes 
both internal and external dimensions. 

No change

Identity
Based on stakeholder feedback, operating 
landscape and our value creation model

Prioritise and act

DiscloseMonitor and Review

This Report is anchored by our material topics, which have been selected and prioritised following a materiality analysis, reflecting issues which could 
potentially have the most significant impact on our ability to create value. Material issues are determined based on the feedback obtained from our 
stakeholder engagement, emerging risks and opportunities in the industry landscape and our strategic agenda. This year, we have also included the 
material topics recommended by GRI and clearly shown how our topics correspond to the GRI topics. 

The process we have followed for determining material issues is given below;
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4

2, 5, 8
1, 3, 6, 7, 9, 

10, 11

Significance of impacts

Material topics identified for 2017/18 are given below;

102-46,102-47,102-49
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Material issue and why it is material to us Corresponding 
principles

Topic boundary and change in boundary Materiality in 
comparison to 

2017/18

(5) Efficiency
As cost pressures escalate, ensuring efficient and 
productive processes are essential in driving long-
term profitability.

- This is an internal measure and relates to 
process efficiency and employee productivity

(6) Talent Management
Our human capital plays a vital role in driving our 
strategic aspirations and facilitating the customer 
experience.

GRI 401: Employment

GRI 403: Occupational 
health and safety

GRI 404: Training and 
education

GRI 405: Diversity and 
Equal Opportunity

GRI 406: Non-
discrimination

Our human capital management relates to our 
direct employees.

No change

(7) Portfolio Quality
Given the relatively risky target market we operate 
in, maintaining portfolio quality through solid 
underwriting and proactive monitoring is vital to 
maintaining profitability. 

- This is an internal measure relating to the 
management of our lending portfolio.

(8) Responsible lending practices
We are committed to upholding the rights of our 
customers through transparent and fair terms.

GRI 417: Marketing and 
Labelling

GRI 418: Customer 
privacy

Our lending practices directly affect our 
customers and therefore impacts of this topic 
arise externally.

No change

(9) Customer education
Our value proposition to customers extends beyond 
mere financial support and is designed to improve 
financial discipline and literacy.

GRI 203: Indirect 
Economic Impacts

Relates primarily to our customers and the 
services we offer to them.

(10) Community Engagement
Maintaining meaningful and sustainable 
relationships with the communities we operate in is 
crucial to meeting our social objectives. 

GRI 413: Local 
Communities

GRI201: Economic 
performance

GRI 202: Market 
presence 

Boundary extends to the communities adjacent 
to the regions we operate in.

No change

(11) Minimising our environmental footprint
The environmental impacts of our operations 
are limited, but as a responsible corporate citizen 
we strive to minimise the adverse impacts of our 
business. 

GRI 302: Energy

GRI 303: Water

GRI 305: Emissions

GRI 306: Effluents and 
Waste

GRI 307: Environmental 
Compliance

- No change
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Our Strategy

Strategic 
Pillar

Growth Profitability Developing our People Sustainable Relationships

Drivers in 
2017/18

The Company focused on 
consolidating its micro finance 
portfolio while seeking growth 
through diversification- including 
growth in the SME, gold and 
leasing segment.

• Improve loan 
collection and 
monitoring 
through proactive 
engagement and 
data analytics

• Technology-driven 
process efficiencies

• Ongoing focus on training and 
development

• Optimising talent pool

• Digital capabilities to drive 
reduced paper consumption

• Focus on community 
engagement initiatives 

Achievement 
against 
target

KPI’s in 
2017/18

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION
%

Lease and HP
Loans
Gold loans

98 
5 1

• 95% growth in leasing
• 23% decline in micro-finance
• Over 16-fold growth in gold 

loans

Profitability 
indicators were 
below expectations 
during the year, 
resulting from a 
significant increase in 
impairment charges 
and the contraction in 
income. 

Operating profit 
declined by 66% 
during the year, while 
pre-tax profit also fell 
by 71% during the 
period.

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

PEOPLE DEVELOPMENT

2016/17  2017/18

Promotions
(No.)

Total training
hours

Payments to
employees

(Rs.Mn)

17/18 16/17

Customer 
training 
hours

245 210

Investment 
in customer 
education  
(Rs.mn)

16.25 13.10

Investment 
in CSR (Rs.
mn)

22.3

Outlook for 
2018/19

• We will pursue growth in the 
SME and gold loan segment

• Cautious growth in micro-
financing 

• Credit quality KPIs 
introduced to field 
officers

• Data analytics to 
aid more proactive 
decision making

• Ongoing investment in skill 
development

• Financial literacy programs 
for our micro financing 
customers

 Target not met

 Target achieved

The Company’s long-term strategy is centred on four pillars which are driven towards the creation of sustainable value to our stakeholders. During the 
year, we revisited our strategic drivers in view of changes in the operating landscape, to ensure that our strategy is designed to respond to emerging 
risks and opportunities. For instance, weakening credit quality in 2017/18 compelled us to revisit our collection and monitoring processes to stem 
further deterioration and achieve an improvement in overall credit fundamentals.
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Our Commitment to the Sustainable 
Development Goals
In September 2015, 193 nations committed to the Sustainable Development Goals galvanizing global efforts to end poverty, promote prosperity and 
protect the environment. Governments, private sector entities and all communities are expected to play a role in the achievement of these goals and 
as an Organisation we have sought ways in which we can contribute most effectively. The infogram below lists out the goals which are of greatest 
relevance to us and how we are currently contributing towards the achievements of these targets.

SDG How we contribute Our contribution in numbers

The Company’s primary product of micro financing is targeted at  
Sri Lanka’s most vulnerable segments and our facilities directly 
contribute towards alleviating poverty.

Total disbursements: Rs. 8,891 Mn

Total beneficiaries: 89,591

In addition to developing employee skills through providing training 
opportunities, we also place strategic emphasis on customer 
education with focus on nurturing financial discipline and managing 
entrepreneurial ventures.

Investment in employee training and 
development: Rs. 25.60 Mn

Training coverage ratio:74.7%

Investment in customer education: Rs.16.25 Mn

Our micro financing facilities are disbursed primarily to women 
facilitating their economic and social empowerment. In addition, 
we are an equal opportunity employer and do not practice gender 
discrimination of any sort in determining promotions, rewards and any 
other benefits.

Proportion of female borrowers: 91%

Female representation among employees: 10%

We offer attractive rewards and opportunities for career and skill 
progression in a challenging and conducive work environment.

Payments to employees: Rs.355.09 Mn

Training hours: 232

Promotions: 48

We provide access to finance to the country’s most under-served 
communities, facilitating sustainable socio-economic progress and 
contributing towards reducing disparities in income distribution.

Customers outside the Western Province: 92%

Average loan size: Rs.69,950

We engage employees in the responsible consumption of resources, 
particularly energy, water and paper. We have introduced tablet 
computers to our field officers, thereby leading to a significant 
reduction in paper costs.

Water consumption: 6% reduction in water usage

Anticipated reduction in paper cost
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Success Stories

• A. D. Kusumawathie is the centre leader of the 
Doolgolla Bimputh micro-finance centre and has 
successfully cultivated a range of crops including 
beans, tomatoes and carrots through multiple loans 
obtained from the Company. She has also provided 
employment to several neighbouring individuals 
who support her cultivation. Through the income 
generated from her venture Kusumawathie has 
acquired assets including land and a three-wheeler, 
built her house and supported her four sons.

• Paskaran Saroja first learnt the art of weaving as a 
young student. After her marriage, she was keen 
to further her skills and purchased a hand weaver 
using her savings. She subsequently obtained 
membership in a Bimputh micro-financing cluster 
which provided her access to several loan facilities. 
She utilised these funds to expand production 
capacity and is currently the owner of 10 such 
machines. She has empowered nearly 25 individuals 
by providing training and an opportunity for an 
additional income of around Rs. 25,000 per month. 
As a mother of 2 sons and a daughter, Saroja’s 
business has helped her to educate her children, 
improve their socio-economic status and enhance 
the overall quality of life.

• R. Kuwaneshwari (72) and her family 
fled Mankulam in 2009 as military 
hostilities intensified, returning in 2010 
with no option but to start life from 
scratch. Her daughter, Gayathri, obtained 
membership in a Bimputh micro-finance 
group in 2013, obtaining an initial facility 
of Rs. 40,000 followed by a Rs. 100,000 
facility which was used for farming 
purposes. She also obtained a 
housing loan of Rs. 300,000, 
which was utilised to renovate 
and complete the house in 
which she now resides happily 
with her family. 
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• Niroopa Damayanthi from Ella, 
Sapumalthanna operates two 
tourist inns, Real View and Angel 
View in the popular tourist 
destination of Ella. As a pioneering 
member of the Bandarawela micro-
financing group, Niroopa obtained 
several facilities from Bimputh 
which were utilised to expand 
her business. She also obtained 
a housing loan of Rs. 300,000 
which has been invested in the 
construction of a new cottage. 

• Abhish Products is a well-known manufacturer of 
Northern fried products such as murukku, mixture 
and chips in Puthukuduirippu. It is owned and 
managed by Ilankumaran Selvamalar who started 
this journey with just 2 KGs of flour and a few 
product varieties. With the support of Bimputh, 
she has expanded her operations providing 
employment to 13 persons and building a 
reputation for quality in several adjoining 
areas including Mankulam, Jaffna, Malawi and 
Trincomalee. She is extremely grateful to the 
support rendered by Bimputh in building her 
business.

• Shrimathi Jayalath is the centre leader 
at the Bimputh micro-finance centre 
in Uduwarawewa. She, together with 
her husband Priyantha, cultivate nearly 
15 acres of maize, water melon and 
cashew among others. She obtained 
several loans from Bimputh, which 
were utilised to expand their farming 
activities. Now, they are successful 
farmers with a sustainable source of 
income.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

“The Company experienced unprecedented challenges during the 
year, as a weak agriculture sector and slowdown in economic growth 
affected customer repayments, resulting in a deterioration in credit 
quality. In responding to these trends, we sought to curtail lending 
to the micro-financing segment during the year while implementing 
several measures to strengthen collections and monitoring”.

Review of our Financial Capital

What it entails
Financial capital is the pool of funds available to the 
Company including shareholders’ funds, public 
deposits and borrowings.

Relevance
Financial Capital is reinvested in other capital inputs and forms a vital 
component of our value creation process. Accessing and adequately 
managing our Financial Capital is essential for ensuring sustainable 
growth and fulfilling our growth aspirations

Material topics
Financial Performance Portfolio Quality Portfolio Diversification Efficiency

Highlights in 2017/18 

Challenges 
• Weakening portfolio quality

• Subdued performance of the 
agriculture sector

• Cost escalation

• Over indebtedness among 
borrowers

Strategic priorities
• Strengthen collection and monitoring mechanisms

• Portfolio diversification

• Driving process efficiencies and cost savings through digital 
capabilities

Outlook 
• Anticipated improvement 

in credit quality following 
strengthened monitoring 
mechanisms

• Growth in gold loans and 
leasing
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Financial Performance

Interest Income
The Company’s interest income declined by 
5% to Rs. 2.76 Bn as we sought to consolidate 
our micro-financing portfolio due to the 
unfavourable industry conditions and 
weakening credit quality. Accordingly, the 
Company’s credit portfolio contracted by 25% 
during the year resulting in interest income 
from customer advances declining by 7%; 
interest income from investments more than 
doubled to Rs. 113.65 Mn due to the rising 
interest rate scenario.

Net Interest Income
Interest expenses for the year surged by 34% 
to Rs. 1.16 Bn given the uptick in market 
interest rates, despite a reduction in total 
borrowings. Interest payments on bank loans 
and other borrowings accounted for 73% of 
the Company’s total interest costs, reflecting 
the composition of its funding profile which 
has a relatively low exposure to public 
deposits. As a result of these dynamics, the Net 
interest income (NII) for the year contracted 
by 22% to Rs. 1.59 Bn. The increase in funding 
costs had a direct impact on the Net interest 
margin (NIM) which contracted to 16.8% from 
22.2% the year before; despite the contraction 
the Company NIM compares favourably 
against industry counterparts, a result of the 
relatively risk target market we operate in. 

Operating Income
Other income comprises Fee and commission 
income and other income, which is 
represented by recoveries, default income and 
dividends among others. Fee and commission 
income is directly linked to the credit portfolio 

and therefore declined by 33% during the year. 
Other income increased from Rs.47.42 Mn to 
Rs. 153.68 Mn in 2017/18, mainly due to bad 
debt recoveries of Rs.107.21 Mn. Overall, the 
Company’s Operating income declined by 
18% to Rs. 1.94 Bn during the period under 
review.

Impairment charges
Impairment charges escalated to Rs. 472.68 
Mn (from Rs. 165.67 Mn) the year before 
reflecting a weakening of quality in the 
micro-finance portfolio. This is attributed to 
the persistently subdued performance of the 
agriculture sector, the overall weakening of 
macro-economic conditions and an increase 
in indebtedness arising from a sharp increase 
in the prevalence of informal money lenders. 
The sector we operate in is amongst the 
most vulnerable to economic shocks and 
the adverse economic conditions directly 
impacted the repayment ability of our 
customers. We have taken proactive efforts to 
curtail the deterioration in credit quality, this is 
discussed in detail on page 44.

Cost Management
Disciplined cost management and 
investments in digitisation enabled the 
Company to contain the increase in 
overhead costs to 10% during the year. 
Personnel expense increased by 18% while 
Administration expenses widened by 7%. The 
Company’s cost to income ratio increased to 
92% from 63% the year before mainly due to 
the contraction in income. 

Profitability
Pre-tax profit for the year declined to  
Rs. 223.24 Mn from Rs. 776.35 Mn the year 

before mainly due to the decline in interest 
income and higher impairment charges. 
Income tax contribution for the year 
amounted to Rs. 76.40 Mn resulting in a profit 
for the year of Rs. 146.84 Mn, a decline of 72% 
compared to the previous year. The Company’s 
Return on Assets in turn declined to 1.45% 
from 4.40% the year before. Meanwhile OCI 
for the year amounted to Rs. 20.22 Mn during 
the year, comprising mainly of changes in the 
revaluation surplus arising from land. 

Financial Position

Assets
The Company’s total assets declined by 14% to 
Rs. 10.09 Bn by end-March 2018, mainly due to 
the contraction in the lending portfolio. Credit 
assets accounted for 75% of total assets and 
declined by 25% as we consciously sought 
to consolidate our micro-finance portfolio. 
Resulting from the slowdown in credit growth, 
funding was channelled towards liquid assets 
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with cash and bank balances increasing by 
87% during the year. Investment property 
increased by 162% to Rs. 538.79 Mn due to 
the acquisition of two properties as well as fair 
value gains. The Company’s asset composition 
changed slightly during the year, in view of the 
contraction in credit assets.

Strategic efforts directed towards achieving 
diversification of credit assets resulted in 
the expansion of the leasing and gold loan 
portfolios while micro-financing declined 
in relative importance. The leasing portfolio 
grew by 96% as the Company pursued growth 
in two, three-wheel and four-wheel sectors. 
In gold loans, the Company maintains an 
average loan-to-value ratio of around 80% and 
recruited talent with industry experience to 
drive growth; gold loans increased to  
Rs. 89.48 Mn from Rs. 5.29 Mn the year before. 
Micro-financing still accounts for the largest 
share of the Company’s loan book, however 
its exposure declined from 98% to 94% during 
the year.

Asset quality
As discussed, the Company’s asset quality 
deteriorated during the year due to the 
unfavourable economic conditions and the 
weakening of the agriculture sector which 
had cascading effects across several sectors. 
The Company’s gross NPA ratio increased 
to 5.73% from 2.99% the year before. The 
Company has taken proactive measures to 
stem the deterioration in credit quality, efforts 
which will deliver more tangible results in the 
next financial year. These measures are listed 
alongside.

Measures to stem influx of NPLs
• Revised performance management 

system of field officers

• Set up a fully-fledged call centre which 
supports the pre-verification process in 
addition to post-verification

• Centralised credit approvals

• Strengthened digital capabilities 
facilitating access to robust, real-time 
data

Funding and Capital
The Company has consciously sought to 
minimise exposure to public deposits and the 
funding profile is dominated by borrowings, 
comprising banks loans and funding from 
international lending organisations such as 
Incofin Investments and Blue Orchard. Total 
borrowings declined by 13% to Rs. 5.95 Bn 
during the year, as funding requirements were 
limited given the Company’s decision to curtail 
lending. In contrast to industry counterparts, 
deposits accounted for just 22% of total 
funding, thereby mitigating exposure to 
potential funding and liquidity risks. Deposits 
also contracted by 26% during the year to 
Rs. 2.18 Bn by end-March 2018. Shareholders’ 
funds increased by 3% supported by retained 
earnings and revaluation surpluses. The 
Company’s capitalisation position remains 
strong, well above the CBSL’s guidelines on 
minimum capital requirements and a Tier 1 
and Overall risk weighted capital adequacy 
ratio amounting to 18.5% comfortably within 
the statutory minimum ratios. 

Liquidity
The Company’s liquidity position strengthened 
during the year, as lending was curtailed. 
Accordingly, liquid assets (comprising cash 
and placements with banks) accounted for 
10% of total assets. Cash and cash equivalents 
increased by 87% to Rs. 423.73 Mn as at end-
March 2018. The Company’s statutory liquid 
asset ratio clocked in at 32% well above the 
regulatory minimum of 10%.

Shareholder Returns
Despite a decline in earnings per share (EPS) 
during the year, the net asset value per share 
continued to record consistent growth. 
Given the Company’s relatively subdued 
performance, a dividend was not paid during 
the year. Meanwhile, the Company’s share 
price declined by 25% during the year to  
Rs. 44.50 reflecting volatilities in the broad 
market.

2018 2017

Earnings per share (Rs.) 1.36 4.79

Dividends per share (Rs.) - 1

Net assets per share (Rs.) 16.75 16.20

Share price (Rs.) 44.50 59.30

Market capitalization (Rs.
billion)

4.79 6.38

FUNDING PROFILEFUNDING PROFILE
%

Equity Deposits Borrowings
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Optimising our Manufactured Capital

“In 2017/18 we made considerable investments in strengthening 
our digital infrastructure to drive process efficiencies, stronger 
risk management practices and access to real-time data. Over the 
medium term, these investments are to generate tangible benefits 
in the form of improved asset quality, better decision and cost 
discipline.”

What it entails
Manufactured capital comprises the Company’s physical 
infrastructure such as branches and service centres as 
well as intangible infrastructure which include its IT 
infrastructure

Relevance
The physical infrastructure is crucial in ensuring customer accessibility 
while digital infrastructure drives process efficiencies, risk management 
and better decision making. 

Material topics
Geographical Efficiency

Highlights in 2017/18 

Challenges 
• Challenges in portfolio 

monitoring 

• Weak performance of branches 
in regions with significant 
exposure to agriculture

Strategic priorities
• Investments in digital infrastructure

Outlook 
• Leveraging on digital capabilities

• Conversion of service centres to 
fully fledged branches
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Digital infrastructure
Strategic focus was placed on strengthening 
digital capabilities during the year with 
the dual objectives of achieving process 
efficiencies and driving stronger risk 
management practices. Key initiatives during 
the year included;

• Accordingly tablet computers were given to 
all field officers, improving the transparency 
of transactions, efficiency and reliability 

of loans collections and facilitating better 
information for decision making. Further, 
all collection information is updated to 
the Core Banking System on an on-line 
real time basis eliminating the need to 
carry out any manual input using registers 
etc. The customer is also given a valid 
receipt generated by the system for record 
purposes.

• Solution to monitor branch level operations 

• Preliminary work and implementation of 
CEFTS (Common Electronic Funds Transfer 
System) whereby our customers can request 
online real time funds transfers to any Bank 
branch in the country

• Delinquency Management System for 
Loan Recovery follow-up, Automation of 
Loan Origination and Workflow and also a 
mechanism for customers to log complaints 
or request information, which is monitored 
with agreed Service Levels. 

•  The Company also invested in a cloud-
based information system providing 
real-time, comprehensive information on 
the Company’s credit portfolio and credit 
quality trends. The system also allows for 
policy violation reports on lending practices 
enabling us to immediately take corrective 
action. 

Value addition in 2017/18
Capital expenditure for the year amounted to 
Rs. 44.03 Mn, mainly reflecting investments in 
technology and office equipment. 
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Physical infrastructure
The Company’s network comprises 50 customer contact points which 
facilitate customer engagement, portfolio growth and deposit mobilisation. 
During the year, we maintained our branch and service sector count as 
conscious efforts were made to curtail lending. As a Company with a strong 
regional focus, it is noteworthy that 46 (out of 50) of our contact points are 
located outside the Western Province.

Western 
Province

Outside 
Western 
Province

Branches 1 18

Service centres 3 28
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Inspiring our Human Capital

“As a Financial Services organisation, our employees play a crucial 
role in facilitating the customer experience and driving our growth 
aspirations. The importance of our human capital is further 
compounded by the industry we operate in, which requires ongoing 
and proactive engagement with customers”.

What it entails
Our Human Capital comprises the skills, attitudes and work 
ethic of our 759 employees.

Relevance
Vital input in facilitating the customer experience, driving growth 
aspirations and enhancing our brand.

Material topics
Geographical Efficiency

Highlights in 2017/18 

Challenges 
• Employee retention amid 

increased competition for skilled 
labour

• Attracting employees for target-
driven roles

Strategic priorities
• Enhancing the performance management and incentive schemes 

• Ongoing focus on talent development

Outlook 
• Training drive for Field 

Executives

Our Approach to Human 
Capital Management
A high performing team is core to the 
continued creation of shareholder value. The 
Company’s approach towards managing its 
human capital is clearly set out in a robust set 
of policies which ensure equitable treatment 
of all employees. The HR framework complies 
with all relevant laws and regulations whist 
aligning with industry practices. A learning 
environment is key in a dynamic business 
landscape and we strive to develop an 

evolving team by engaging in both in-house 
and outbound training programs. In addition, 
the employee Code of Conduct clearly set out 
the expected conduct of employees when 
engaging with both internal and external 
stakeholders. 
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Our talent pools
Our human capital is represented by a team of 759 employees with 132 new employees added during the year. We are an equal opportunity employer 
and do not discriminate on the basis of gender, age, race or religion; during the year under review there were no reported incidents of discrimination. 

The new recruits during the year were primarily within the age group 18-30 years. Given the challenging operating environment during the year, we 
sought to cut back on recruitments. Due to our operating model, more than 80% of new recruits were represented by males. When attracting talent 
we seek to recruit employees from the locality in which the branches are located; in 2017/18 nearly 99% of our senior management were recruited 
from these locations.
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Governance and Policies

Sound HR framework

Effective performance
management

• Recruitment and Selection
• Rewards and recognition
• Training
• Grievances handling
• Non-discrimination

• Employee code of conduct.
• Sound HR policies
• Core values
• Health and safe environment
• Rewards and recognition

• Performance appraisals
• Career progression
• A learning environment
• Staff welfare schemes

Employee code of conduct

• Act and maintain a high standard of 
integrity and professionalism

• Perform duties with honesty, care and 
due diligence

• Ensure fairness, equality, courtesy, 
consideration and sensitivity in 
dealing with other employees, clients 
and suppliers

• Be thoughtful and respectful to the 
environment

• Be responsible and scrupulous in the 
proper use of Company information, 
funds, equipment and facilities.

• All employees need to present a 
professional image at work and work 
related functions

102-8, 404-1, 404-2, 404-3
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Rewards and recognition
We offer a host of attractive rewards and 
benefits to our employees which include 
both fixed and variable components. The 
Company’s remuneration package includes 
the following:
• Annual Bonus
• Health Insurance
• Group Life Insurance: “Bimputh Suwa 

Sahana Aramudala” Insurance policy 
• Contributions from the welfare fund upon 

death of employees’ close family members
• Foreign trips to all employees completing 

minimum of 2 years of service
• Contributions at marriage and/or birth of a 

child
•  Staff loans at concessionary rates
• Contributions to Employees’ Provident Fund 

and Employees’ Trust fund

During the year under review, we enhanced 
the incentive scheme to reward high-
performers. The performance management 
system is extremely transparent with 
employees made aware of the KPI’s 
underpinning the bonus computation.

Career progression
Our talent pool is relatively young, and we 
offer opportunities for career progression 
through an attractive talent development 
program. Structured mechanisms are in 
place to identify, develop and fast-track the 
progression of high-performing employees, 
enabling the creation of a strong talent 
pipeline. During the year, we promoted a total 
of 48 employees.

Training and Development
A learning environment is crucial in a dynamic 
business environment and drives a high 
performing team. We make considerable 
investments in upskilling staff, particularly in 
micro-financing which requires specialised 
skills. We provide a range of in-house and 
external training opportunities which includes 
overseas exposure. Training needs are 
identified at annual performance appraisals 
and a training calendar is prepared based on 
the Company’s growth plans and employee 

requirements. We also encourage continuous 
learning through providing full/partial financial 
assistance for professional examinations. Our 
training record during the year is illustrated 
below.

Foreign training during the year included 
the Micro Finance forum in India and the 
Asia Pacific Financial Inclusion Summit 
which was held in Vietnam. Local training 
programmes included Central Bank workshops 
on operational and financial sustainability in 
micro-finance institutions, management and 
leadership skill development programmes and 
Anti-money laundering and countering the 
financing of terrorism among others.
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Engagement
We maintain ongoing and proactive 
engagement with our employees through 
a range of formal and informal platforms. 
These include annual performance appraisals, 
staff meetings and other work life balance 
initiatives such as staff trips, new year 
celebrations and parties. A pictogram of such 
events held during the year are given below;

Grievance Handling
An open - door policy fosters transparency 
within the company. A structured process is 
in place to report employee grievances which 
are subsequently documented, escalated and 

evaluated. Minor grievances are handled by 
the supervisors while more serious grievances 
are escalated to a dedicated Grievance 
Committee. During the year, there were no 
grievances reported.

Healthy and Safety
We strive to create a healthy and safety work 
environment for our employees. The primary 
health and safety risks faced by our employees 
are the risk of motor accidents of field officers 
who operate through motor cycles. During 
the year, nine accidents and two deaths were 
reported. Insurance schemes such as the 
Suwasahana fund and group life insurance 
scheme cater to 78.9% of the workforce. All 

TURNOVER- GENDER
No.

Male
Female

0

55

110

165

220

275

TURNOVER - REGION
%

Western province
Central province
Southern province
Northern province
Eastern province
North Central province
North Western province
Sabaragamuwa province
Uva province

35

9

77

14

8

10

2
9

Employees who have worked more than 
one year are covered by Group life insurance 
scheme (Ceylinco Life Insurance Limited).

Retention
Employee retention is an industry-wide 
challenge, given the intense competition for 
skilled labour between industry operators. 
During the year, 270 employees exited the 
organisation, the profile of whom are given 
below;

TURNOVER - AGE
%

18-30 years
30-55 years

8317
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Social and Relationship Capital

Customers Business Partners Communities

As the focal point of our value creation 
activities, forming and maintaining customer 
relationships are critical to our financial and 
social objectives.

We engage with numerous funding and 
business partners who partner us in our growth 
journey.

We invest in the communities we operate 
in both as part of our normal business 
and through ongoing Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) initiatives.

Nurturing our Social & Relationship Capital

“Our micro-financing facilities are targeted towards driving 
meaningful change among the country’s most economically 
vulnerable communities; the relationships we have nurtured with 
our customers and surrounding communities enable us to work 
towards the achievement of our financial and social objectives”.

What it entails
The relationships we have nurtured with our customers, 
business partners, communities and other stakeholders.

Relevance
The relationships we have nurtured with our customers and 
communities are essential to the sustainability of our operations and 
provide us the social license to operate.

Material topics
Responsible lending practices Customer Education Community Relationships

Highlights in 2017/18 

Challenges 
• Rising indebtedness and 

financial illiteracy

Strategic priorities
• Increased focus on customer education

• New product

Outlook 
• Training drive for Field 

Executives
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No.

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

0

6

12

18

0

100

200

300

CUSTOMER EDUCATION
Rs.Mn.

Investment
Training Hours
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Customer Relationships

Customer profile
The Company’s customers are mainly micro-
financing borrowers and small and medium 
enterprises. The micro-financing customers 
are typically economically underprivileged 
women, between the ages of 18 and 50 who 
manage micro and small business enterprises 
which in most cases is the household’s sole 
income generating avenue. Business interests 
range from agriculture and animal husbandry 
to cottage industries and mobile vending. 
As at end-March 2018, the Company’s total 
customer base around 150,000/-. Customer 
retention has been relatively high, averaging 
72% in 2017/18.

Driving financial inclusion
The Company’s main product, micro-
financing, is targeted towards the country’s 
most economically vulnerable communities. 
Through providing access to funding at 
affordable rates, the Company directly 
contributes to entrepreneurial development, 
economic empowerment and socio-economic 
progress of these communities. More than 
90% of our borrowers are female and the 
economic empowerment of women is 
believed to directly contribute towards the 
well being of the family, including health, 
children’s education and housing.

Inputs
Financial support

Access
Education

Client Protection

Outputs and Outcome
Enterprise creation

Empowerment of women
Financial inclusion

Our products are designed to support clients through various stages of their lives, thereby 
enabling them to gradually lift themselves out of poverty. Our lending products range from the 
provision of funding for business start-ups to working capital, business expansion and leasing 
facilities. Bimputh also offers deposit products through its branch network including fixed deposits, 
savings deposits and savings for minors. During the year, we widened our SME proposition to 
include several lending products as listed below;

Micro-finance
• Lending for income 

generating purposes 
in agriculture, trading, 
manufacturing and 
services

•  Available for four 
cycles depending on 
repayment

SME
• Asset Development 

Loan

• Working Capital Loan

• Triple Loan

• Flash Loan

• Revolving Loan

Leasing
• Leasing facilities for 

agricultural vehicles, 
motor cycles and three-
wheelers

Customer education
The Company’s customer value proposition 
extends beyond that of mere financial support 
to encompass borrowers’ skill development 
through ongoing training programmes. The 
Centre Leader Motivational program provide 
an opportunity for all centre leaders to 
enhance their entrepreneurial and business 
management skills while inculcating savings 
habits. Sessions are conducted by third party 
resource personnel and have been extremely 
well received by participants. Programs 
conducted during the year are summarised 
below;

0

40000

80000

120000

160000

NO. OF CUSTOMERS

2016 2017 2018

91% female borrowers

93% lending outside Western Province

Customer retention rate 72%

Average loan size: Rs.69,950

Centre Leader 
Motivational program

Investment:

Rs.16.25 Mn

Customer training hours:

245

Total participant base:

3,395

Locations:

22

417-1, 417-2, 417-3, 418-1
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Branch Participants

Matara 150

Dehiaththakandiya 130

Badulla /Bandarawela 140

Beliatha 135

Balagoda/Rathnapura 175

Medawachchiya 150

Ampara/Uhana 140

Negombo 130

Putttalam 140

Nikaweratiya/Galgamuwa 230

Kurunegala/Matale 140

Anuradhapura/Dambulla 175

Monaragala/Siyabalanduwa 140

Mahaoya/Padiyathalawa 100

Hatton/Nawalapitiya 140

Welimada/Nuwara Eliya 120

Naththandiya/Chilaw 200

Gampaha/Kaduwela/Wattala 300

Avisawella/Ruwanwella 130

Mathugama/Aluthgama 160

Homagama/Ingiriya 150

Kandy 120

 3395

Client Protection
Customers’ over indebtedness amid a sharp 
escalation in the prevalence of informal 
money lenders has directly impacted the 
repayment capabilities of the micro-financing 
target market. As a licensed finance company 
and a responsible corporate citizen, we are 
committed to engaging with customers 
in an ethical and transparent manner. 
Comprehensive policy frameworks and 
documented procedures are in place to ensure 
that clients are aware of and fully understand 
all terms related to our services.

• Transparency: all terms and conditions 
including interest rates, computation of 
interest cost, and maturity periods are 
communicated clearly to borrowers and 
are educated on the nature of products, 
group liability mechanism, as well as roles 
and responsibilities during the three-week 
familiarization program. During the year, 
there were no instances of non-compliance 
to any marketing and labelling or marketing 
communication related regulations 

• Loan and Member protection: In-house 
loan protection fund is in place to provide 
financial coverage for complete and partial 
disability as well as funeral expenses of close 
family members. Upon the death of the 
member or spouse, the loan is written off in 
full. 

• Customer privacy: All efforts are made to 
ensure the privacy of customer related data. 
During the year there were no substantiated 
complaints regarding the loss of customer 
privacy.

Transparency

Customer privacy

Client Protection

Preventing over-indebtedness

• Preventing over-indebtedness: The 
Company takes multiple steps to ensure 
that clients are not extensively indebted, 
including regular evaluation of household 
income and expenditure levels, step-
up approach to loan facilities, house 
verifications, site visits and continued 
guidance on borrowers’ responsibilities as a 
cluster member. 

Relevance to SDG
Alleviating poverty
Micro finance loans 
disbursed: Rs. 5,971 Mn

Female empowerment
91% female borrowers

Customer Education
Customer training hours 
245
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Community Relationships
The Company’s community impacts arise from its normal course of business as well as its CSR initiatives. Our micro-financing program has generated 
long-term, positive socio-economic impacts to the country’s grass-root communities as illustrated below;

conditions of the family. During the year, 
we supported 85,627 female entrepreneurs 
through the disbursement of micro-financing 
facilities.

• Progression out of poverty
The long-term economic objective of micro-
financing is to alleviate poverty through 
financial inclusion. Overall, Bimputh’s poverty 
outreach is significantly lower than the 
national poverty rates in almost all districts, 
indicating the improvements in socio 
economic status of our borrowers. That said, 
the sustainable socio economic impact of the 
Company’s financial services can accurately 
be evaluated through the Progression from 
Poverty Index (PPI) which is designed to 
track the borrowers’ income levels across the 
passage of time. Measures are currently being 
implemented to track this Index in a cohesive 
and systematic manner. 

CSR Initiatives
The Company’s investment in CSR increased 
to Rs. 22.33 Mn during the year, as all 
branches engaged in numerous community 
engagement initiatives. These activities 
included sponsorships for religious festivals, 
infrastructure development, flood relief 
and educational support among others. A 
summary of these activities is given below;

• Education- Examination Support
Conducted as an ongoing program, we 
organise free seminars for students facing 
the GCE Ordinary level and Advanced level 
examinations. During the year we conducted 
09 such seminars benefiting a total population 
of over 2,250 students. The seminars are 
conducted in both Sinhalese and Tamil 
languages and are primarily focused on the 
country’s North and Eastern provinces. The 
locations in which the seminars were held are 
given below;

Impacting communities

Normal course of business

Enterprise creation
Progression out of 

poverty
OthersEmpowering women Health and wellnessEducation

CSR initiatives

Businesses supported: 40,000

Lending to females: 85,627

Normal Course of Business
• Enterprise creation
The Company’s micro-financing facilities 
are disbursed exclusively towards income 
generating avenues which would eventually 
enable borrowers to lift themselves out 
of poverty. Accordingly, we have directly 
supported enterprise creation, by supporting 
entrepreneurs to commercialize their business 
ideas. During the year, we supported the 
creation/expansion of approximately 40,000 
micro businesses in agriculture, manufacturing 
and trading among others. We also disburse 
facilities for expanding businesses, effectively 
allowing clients to transition from micro 
enterprises to small businesses thereby 
contributing towards job creation. Enterprise 
creation also leads to employment generation 
for the borrower’s family members, friends and 
relatives as well as external parties. 

• Empowering women
Our micro-financing facilities focus exclusively 
on female entrepreneurs which contribute 
towards female empowerment, resulting in 
additional income earning opportunities and 
increasing independence. Women also tend 
to invest in enhancing family welfare including 
investments in education and healthcare, 
thereby leading to improved socio-economic 

Location Beneficiaries

Arasaditheevu 
Vickneshwara Maha 
Vidyalaya 

400

Navatkadu Namakal 
Vidyalaya

300

Komari - Methodist Mission 
Tamil Maha Vidyalaya

115

Thampiluvil Maddya Maha 
Vidyalaya

360

Hospital Road, Paddiruppu 350

St/Joseph 
College,Trincomalee

300

Kiliveddy Maha Vidiyalaya 200

Vinayakar Vidiyalaya 
Alankeny.

150

Central College Vagarai. 100

• Cultural/Religious activities
Our branches support cultural and religious 
activities in adjacent localities, which enable 
us to maintain harmonious relationships with 
surrounding communities while creating 
meaningful change. During the year we 
supported numerous events organised 
by temples including processions, blood 
donation campaigns and alms giving in 
addition to infrastructure development within 
temples. 

• Educational/youth development sponsorships
We sponsored numerous youth sports 
clubs and community centres through 
several branches including Pepiliyana, 
Dehiattakandiya and Mallawi.

• Flood relief
The Company distributed over 8000 bags of 
dry rations, clothes and other necessities to 
Bimputh members who were affected by the 
flooding in May 2017. Total investment in this 
initiative was approximately Rs. 21.22 Mn.

413-1
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Managing our Natural Capital

“Management of our Natural Capital is driven through optimising 
the use of energy and paper and minimising waste material. As 
a financial intermediary we also have an important role to play 
in propagating sustainable agriculture practices among our 
customers”.

What it entails
The natural resources we consume and the ecological 
conditions which allow for the continuity of our 
operations

Relevance
The consumption of natural resources is limited to fuels, electricity and 
paper. Our impacts are mainly the generation of waste and carbon 
emissions.

Material topics
Minimising our environmental footprint

Highlights in 2017/18 

Challenges 
• Difficulties in data collection 

across branches

• Increasing impacts of climate 
change

Strategic priorities
• Reducing paper consumption

• Driving reductions in energy consumption

Outlook 
• Long-term goal of being 

paperless

• Improve the scope and 
coverage of energy 
measurement

Our Approach to Environmental 
Management
Our direct impact on the environment 
is limited to consumption of paper and 
energy in the form of fuel and electricity. 
However, we continued to minimize our 
impact on the environment by implementing 
measures, enhancing awareness among 
employees and monitoring. As a financial 
services organisation, we are also able to 
contribute positively to natural capital through 
propagating sustainable business practices 
across our network.

AGRI. SECTOR LENDING
Rs. Mn

2017 2018
0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

FUEL CONSUMPTION
Litres

2017 2018
0

3600

7200

10800

14400

18000

What we 
consumed

Paper

16,807 litres  
of fuel.

42,369 litres  
of water

303,555 Kwh  
of Electricity 

Outputs
Waste ( Paper and e-waste)

Emissions

Our Impact
Products and services.

Loans to Agri sector 
amounted to  

Rs 1,545 mn. 
Fully compliant to all 

environmental laws. 
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Our Input

Paper Consumption
During the year, we commenced monitoring 
paper consumption on a monthly basis. 
Our long-term objective to be completely 
paperless and as a first step towards achieving 
this goal, we introduced tablet computers 
to all field officers. In addition, we continued 
encouraging double sided printing and use 
of electronic media such as e-mails wherever 
possible. Resultantly, costs incurred on paper is 
expected to decline in the future.

2017/18
(Rs. Mn)

Head office paper cost 0.20

Branches cost 1.61

Printing documents cost 6.47

Energy
Electricity and auto fuel are the two prime 
forms of energy consumption. All electricity 
requirements are met by the national grid. 
Our efforts to consolidate our service centres 
enabled a decline in energy consumption. 
We also commenced monitoring of electricity 
consumption at head office and branches. 
As measures to reduce fuel consumption, 
managers have been given hybrid vehicles. 

Consumption of natural 
resources

 
Electricity consumption:  

303,555 KwH

 
Fuel Consumption Company-owned 

vehicles:  

20,270 litres

 
Fuel consumed for employee 

commute: 

16,807 litres

Output

Waste
The main forms of waste include paper, 
e-waste, food and plastic waste. All waste is 
appropriately disposed with minimal impact 
on the environment. Food and plastic waste 
are segregated prior to disposal. There is no 
hazardous waste disposed by the company.

Products and Services
The Company’s micro financing portfolio 
is largely directed towards the agricultural 
sector, and during the year Rs. 1.55 Bn was 
disbursed towards agriculture, amounting 
to 36% of our total portfolio. Meanwhile 
credit disbursements precede an evaluation 
of the borrower’s environmental impacts, 
thereby enabling the Company to positively 
influence borrowers to engage in sustainable 
environmental practices.

Compliance
We ensure that all branch offices and the 
head office is compliant with all relevant 
environmental laws and regulations. This 
includes local authority regulations and 
guidelines of the Central environmental 
authority. During the year, there were 
no instances of non-compliance to any 
environmental regulation. 

302-1
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Risk Management
“The Company operates in a relatively risky target segment thereby underscoring the 
importance of robust and ongoing risk management. At Bimputh, risk management 
is an evolving process including risk identification, prioritisation and mitigation. The 
Board of Directors hold the apex responsibility for risk management while execution 
is delegated to departmental/ divisional heads of the Company.”

Risk Governance
The Company’s Board of Directors holds 
apex responsibility for the oversight of 
risk which includes determining risk 
appetite levels, formulating risk policies 
and ensuring the effectiveness of the risk 
management processes and procedures 
in place. The Company’s risk management 
framework comprises of robust governance 

structures, formalized policy frameworks and 
mechanisms to identify, measure, monitor 
and report on our key risk exposures. The risk 
management framework complies with the 
requirements of the Finance Business  
Act No. 42 of 2011 and relevant CBSL 
regulations. The Board of Directors are 
supported by four sub committees in the 
execution of an integrated risk management 
framework. 

Risk Management Framework

Governance headed by the Board  
of Directors.

Setting of risk appetite. 

Adoption of sound policies.

Up-to-date systems.

Independent verification of internal 
controls and financial reporting. 

Sound internal controls.

Periodic monitoring and 
preparation of risk reports.

Board of Directors

Divisional Heads

Integrated Risk  
Management Committee

Internal Audit 
External Audit

Asset Liability Management 
Committee (ALCO)

Credit 
Risk 

Committee

Audit 
 Committee

(Hold the apex responsibility for risk management)

(Sub-risk committees)



BIMPUTH FINANCE PLC 
Annual Report 2017-1844

Risk Management

Risks Landscape

Credit Risk Exposure

Lending portfolio:  

Rs. 7.52 Bn

Micro-financing portfolio: 

Rs. 4.04 Bn

Principal Risks

Credit risk
Credit Risks are the potential financial losses 
arising from the failure of customers to fulfil 
their contractual obligation. Credit risk can 
arise through default risk and concentration 
risk. With the lending portfolio forming a 
core part of our business operations, credit 
risk has a significant impact on our day to 
day operations. The Credit Risk Committee 
comprising of two Executive Directors, Chief 
Financial Officer, Head of-Legal and Manager-
Credit continuously monitor the credit risk 
profile of the company. 

Type Possible drivers of risk Mitigation strategies

Default risk
Failure to meet 
contractual 
obligations by 
borrower or inability 
to recover sufficient 
amounts from 
borrower. 

• Bankruptcy of 
customers

• Over financing 

• Adverse weather 
conditions that impact 
earnings of customers. 

• Deliberate non – 
payment by borrowers.

• Pre- credit disbursements such as 
customer screening, centralized loan 
approvals, defined authority levels for 
loan approval. 

• Post credit disbursement such as 
continuous monitoring of NPL’s at 
multiple levels, meetings with borrowers, 
etc. 

• Prudent provisioning policy 

• Maintaining collateral wherever possible 
in the form of cash, vehicles, real estate. 
The fair value of collateral is assessed 
based on the guidelines of the Central 
Bank of Sri Lanka. 

Concentration risk
Losses incurred 
due to significant 
exposure to a 
particular segment 
of customers, 
product or 
geography 

• Macro factors 
impacting an industry/ 
particular product or 
customer group. 

• Setting pre -defined exposure limits/caps.

• Diversified portfolio by business type. 

• Centralized loan approval process with 
defined authority levels. 
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CREDIT QUALITY
Rs.Mn. %

Loans (Rs mn)
Gross NPL ratio
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Evaluate Monitored Managed through mitigation 
 strategies

• Global Events
• Competition

• Geopolitical
• Macro-economic
• Regulatory

• Credit
• Liquidity/funding
• Market
• Operational 
• Strategic 
• Compliance

Risk Performance indicators
The Company’s credit quality weakened 
during the year, as reflected by its gross NPL 
ratio increasing to 6.33% from 2.99% the year 
before. The increase in the NPL ratio was 
driven by tighter economic conditions and 
a weak agriculture sector which impacted 
borrowers’ repayment ability. In order to stem 
a further increase of NPL’s, the Company 
has taken several measures to improve the 
fundamental credit quality. These measures 
include setting up a call centre, refining the 
field officer incentive scheme, investments 
in customer education and portfolio 
diversification. We focused on widening our 
exposure to leasing and gold loans which 
recorded considerable growth during the year. 

2017 2018

Loans (Rs mn) 9,309 7,520

Growth (%) 38% (19%)

Net interest margin (%) 22.18 16.79

NPL (%) 2.99 6.33

Impairment charges  
(Rs. Mn).

165 472
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Market Risk Exposure

Interest sensitive assets:  

Rs. 8,031 Mn
Interest sensitive liabilities:  

Rs. 8,136 Mn
 Equity portfolio: 

Rs. 186 Mn

Foreign borrowings:  
Rs. 1,174 Mn

Market risk 
Market Risks are the potential losses to 
earnings arising from fluctuations in market 
variables such as interest rates, equity prices 
and foreign exchange rates. Interest rate risk 
arises from the Company’s lending activities, 
deposits and financial investments. The Asset – 
Liability (ALCO) Committee holds responsibility 
for the implementation of market-risk 
related policies. Movements in market 
interest rates are consistently monitored 
along with the Company’s asset and liability 
maturity mismatches. Equity risk is managed 
through consistently monitoring share price 
movements and economic trends which 
may impact share prices. Exposure to equity 
shares is monitored persistently to ensure 
compliance to Central Bank guidelines. 

Possible drivers of risk Mitigation strategies

Interest rate risk
Impact of fluctuating 
interest rates. 

• Movements in interest 
rates

• Need for repricing of 
assets and liabilities.

• Fluctuating net interest 
margins. 

• Monitoring of interest rate movements. 

• Gap analysis: Evaluating Asset/ liability 
maturity mismatches.

• Sensitivity analysis

• Maintain a balanced portfolio of fixed 
and variable rate assets and liabilities.

• More reliance on long-term borrowings

• Sound funding strategy with 100% of 
liabilities expiring within 1-5 years.

• Continuous monitoring of risk -based 
capital adequacy levels. 

• Setting of risk appetites

Equity price risk
Impact of changing 
share prices on 
the value of equity 
investments. 

• Political uncertainties

• Government policies

• Macro – economic 
factors.

• Monitoring of economic conditions 
and share price movements.

• Exposure to equity investments are 
monitored and kept in line with Central 
Bank guidelines. 

Exchange rate risk
Impact of changing 
exchange rates on 
foreign currency loans. 

• Currency depreciation. • Maintain a diverse funding base.

• Foreign currency denominated debt 
amounted to Rs 1,174 Mn 

GEOGRAPHICAL BREAKDOWN
%

Central Province
Eastern Province
North Central Province
North Western Province
Northern Province
Sabaragamuwa Province
Southern Province
Uva Province
Western Province

8

20

7

94
5
7

27

14

PORTFOLIO BY PRODUCT TYPEPORTFOLIO BY PRODUCT TYPE
%

Loans
Leases/HP
Gold loans

2017 2018

98
2

944
2

SECTOR BREAK UP
%

Agriculture
Construction
Manufacturing
Trading
Other

36

831

12

13

Risk performance indicators
Bimputh’s ALM mismatches in its rate sensitive assets and liabilities compare favourably against 
industry counterparts due to the short-term nature of its credit assets and the longer-term 
maturities of its borrowings, given its funding strategy. Resultantly, gaps in the immediate term are 
positive thereby limiting exposure to interest rate fluctuations in the short-term. 
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Maturity mismatch of interest sensitive assets and liabilities 

On demand

Rs Mn

Less than  
12 months

Rs Mn

1-5 years

Rs Mn

Over 5 years

Rs Mn

Interest earning assets 838 4,535 2,012 1,838

Interest bearing liabilities 924 4,713 2,497 -

Gap (86) (178) (485) 1,838

Gap as a % of interest earning assets -10% -4% -24% 100%

Trading portfolio
Investments in equity securities amounted to Rs. 210mn, a 13% increase compared to last year. Fair value losses on quoted shares amounted to  
Rs. (48 Mn) during the year. As a risk mitigation measure, we continued to maintain equity investments at a minimum 2% of total assets, thus limiting 
exposure to equity price risks.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the potential loss of earnings and/or erosion of capital arising from the inability to meet the Company’s obligations in a timely manner 
as and when they are due. The ALCO committee oversees the liquidity risks of the Company ensuring adequate capital buffers are maintained at any 
given time. 

Type Possible drivers of risk Mitigation strategies

Funding risk: 
Loss of earnings or deterioration of capital 
incurred due to inability to meet contractual 
obligations that fall due. 

• Mismatch of assets and liability 
maturities. 

• Setting Internal targets

• Capital adequacy ratios in line with regulatory min of 10% 

• Diversified funding strategy.

• Standby credit lines

• Capital buffers. 

• Periodic reviews of liquidity indicators such as capital 
adequacy ratios. 

Market liquidity risk
The risk of limited access to adequate funding 
due to, intense competition, increasing interest 
rates, etc. 

• Dependency on large scale 
depositors. 

• Illiquid assets in the balance 
sheet. 

• Maintain a diverse funding base in product and maturity. 

• Setting risk appetite

• Periodic review of funding profile. 

FUNDING PROFILEFUNDING PROFILE
%

Equity Deposits Borrowings

2017 2018

15

26

59

18

22

60

Risk performance indicators
Deposits account for just 22% of the 
Company’s total funding, enabling the 
Company to mitigate exposure to liquidity 
risks. Deposits are also granular in nature, given 
the Company’s target market with the average 
deposit size amounting to around Rs. 450,000. 

The liquidity position strengthened during the 
year as the Company curtailed lending, cash 
and bank balances increasing to  
Rs. 423.73 Mn from Rs. 226.35 Mn the previous 
year. Meanwhile statutory liquid asset ratio 
was 32% at the same date, well above the 
regulatory requirement of 10%.

The Company’s capitalisation position remains 
strong, well above the CBSL’s guidelines on 
minimum capital requirements and a Tier 1 
and Overall risk weighted capital adequacy 
ratio amounting to 18.5% comfortably 
within the statutory minimum ratios and a 
comfortable capital cushioning.

Operational risk
Operational risk is defined as potential losses 
arising from inadequate or failed internal 
processes, people and systems or from 
external events. Operational risk can arise 
through all areas of the Company’s operations 
including IT systems, employee behaviour, 
customer service and frauds among others. 
During the year, there were no significant 
internal loss events as a result of failure in 
people, systems and processes. 
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Type Possible drivers of risk Mitigation strategies

People • Difficulties in employee retention

• Fraudulent activities such as insider dealings. 

• Employee errors

• Theft

• Misuse of sensitive customer related data

• Segregation of duties

• Setting of authority limits

• Access controls

• Employee engagement

• Sound HR policies including grievance policies, etc.

• Insurance

• Policy manuals

Processes • System failures

• Lack of adequate legal documentation. 

• Data entry failures

• Manipulation of customer confidential 
information. 

• Access controls

• Back -up systems

• Centralized loan approval processors

• On-site audits by regulator.

Other external risks • Natural disasters

• Geopolitical tensions

• Disaster recovery site

• Business continuity plans

Risk of failure in 
technology

• Power outages

• Cyber attacks

• Up to date system infrastructure.

• Business continuity plan and comprehensive IT plans.

• Firewall

• Anti -virus

Strategic Risk
The risk of losses due to failure or inadequacy of business plans and strategies of the organization. 

Strategic Risk Risk sources Mitigation strategies

The risk of losses as a 
result of business plans 
and strategies being 
inadequate in dealing 
with the changing 
business landscapes. 

• Changes in external environment.

• Inaccurate projections of costs and other 
variables.

• Inadequate availability of resources.

• Setting of Key performance indicators.

• Integrated strategic planning.

• Budgeting and variance analysis.

• Review of business plans 

• Continuous review of economic and business landscapes. 

Legal/compliance
The Financial services industry is subject to stringent regulations imposed by the regulator - Central Bank. Being up to date and compliant to the 
regulatory framework is inherent for business continuity and reputation of the company. Hence, the Company has adopted the following risk 
mitigation strategies: 

1. Dedicated compliance officer monitoring compliance to all requirements

2. Periodic monitoring and reporting of risk indicators such as capital adequacy ratios. 

3. Internal and external audits for an independent verification of the company. 

During the year, there were no instances of non- compliance with the regulatory framework. 
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Corporate Governance
Robust corporate governance practices are the 
foundation of sustainable value creation. As a 
Company which mobilises public deposits and lends to 
a relatively risky target market, a sound framework of 
structures, policies and processes are vital in managing 
a business such as ours. Our governance structures and 
frameworks have continued to evolve in keeping pace 
with our expanding business, as well as regulatory 
developments and industry best practices.

Board highlights in 2017/18

• Appointment of an Acting 
Chairman 

• Implementation of a Lease 
Approval Committee at executive 
level

• Review and update policy 
frameworks

• Review progress against strategic 
plan

Regulatory Framework

• Directions, rules, determinations, 
notices and guidelines issued by 
the Central Bank of Sri Lanka

• Finance Business Act No 42 of 
2011

• Companies Act No 7 of 2007

• Listing Rules of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange

• Code of Best Practice on 
Corporate Governance issued by 
the SEC and ICASL 2013

Board of Directors
The Board appointed by the shareholders is 
the apex governing body and comprises of 
5 Non-Executive Directors and 1 Executive 
Director. Of the 5 NED’s 2 are deemed 
Independent. The Board is chaired by a 
NED while the Executive Deputy Chairman 
functions as the Acting Chief Executive Officer. 
Meanwhile, an Independent NED acts as the 
Senior Director of the Board.

Board mandate
Board responsibilities are clearly set out in the 
Board Charter and includes the following;

• Formulating the overall strategic direction of 
the Company and monitoring performance 
against strategic objectives

• Identification of risks and ensuring that the 
risk management framework in place is 
adequate in dealing with these risks

• Identification of authority and key 
responsibilities of the Board and those of 
the Senior Management.

• Provide oversight of affairs of the Company 
to assess the effectiveness of the Company’s 
governance practices.

• Review of policy and progress towards 
corporate objectives.

• Ensure compliance and adherence to 
regulatory requirements

Governance Structure
The Board has delegated functions that 
warrant greater attention to four (4) 
sub-committees which hold oversight 
responsibility for the same. This allows the 
Board to allocate sufficient time to matters 
within its scope, including formulation of 
strategy and other forward-looking agenda 
items. Several executive committees are also 
in place to drive implementation of Board 
strategy relating to specific areas. During 
the year, the Company also formed a Lease 
Approval Committee at executive level.

Shareholders

Board of Directors

Chief Executive Officer

Asset and Liability Committee Credit Committee IT Steering Committee

Board Audit Committee
Board HR and Remuneration 

Committee
Integrated Risk Management 

Committee
Related Party Transactions 

Committee

102-18
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Board Composition

  
2 Independent Non-Executive 
Directors

   
3 Non-Executive Directors

 
1 Executive Director

Board composition
The Board is diverse in its skills, experience, 
age and gender representation thereby 
bringing objectivity and professionalism to 
the Board. They bring together perspectives 
from the banking, finance, legal and corporate 
perspectives enabling them to explore matters 
from diverse points of view. The Board also has 
sufficient financial acumen and the details of 
qualifications and experience are set out on 
pages 11 to 12 in this Report. 

Role of Chairman and CEO
The Role of Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer has been segregated in line with best 
practices of corporate governance ensuring 
that no single individual has unfettered power. 
The Chairman is a Non-Executive Director 
while the CEO is appointed by the Board.

Director training
Directors receive regular briefings designed 
to keep abreast of changes in the business 
and industry landscape and legal/regulatory 
matters. Directors participate in relevant 
external training programs, such as those 
organised by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka and 
Institute of Directors. Non-Executive Directors 
also have unfettered access to the Chairman/
CEO to present matters of concern.

The Company Secretary
 The Company Secretary is responsible 
for advising the Board on all corporate 
governance matters and ensuring that Board 
procedures are followed at all times. The 
Secretary also assists the Directors in obtaining 
independent, professional advice whenever 
necessary and all Directors have access to the 
advice and services of the Company Secretary

Board calendar and activities
The Board convenes at least monthly and 
during the year 13 Board meetings were 
held. Meeting agendas and Board papers are 
circulated to all Board members electronically 
via secure platforms and in hard copy form at 
least 7 days prior to Board and sub-committee 
meetings. The agenda is set by the Chairman, 
assisted by the Company Secretary and CEO. 
Efforts are made to ensure that sufficient time 
is spent on matters that are critical to the 
Company’s success in addition to compliance 
related matters. Key matters discussed at 
Board meetings are listed below;

• Review progress against Strategic Plan

• Review and approve policies 

• Digitisation and upgrade of IT systems

• Compliance review

• Evaluate impacts from operating 
environment

• Review of shareholder communications and 
Annual General Meeting

Key activities of the sub-committees are listed below;

Sub-committee Mandate Composition

BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEES

Audit Committee Ensure that effective systems are in place to secure 
the integrity of information and internal controls.

Chaired by Independent, Non-Executive Director

1 Independent Non-Executive Director

1 Non-Executive Director

Integrated Risk Management 
Committee

Ensuring that the Company identifies, measures, 
mitigates and manages its key risk exposures in line 
with the defined policies and procedures.

Chaired by the Acting Chairman of the Board

1 Executive Director

2 Independent Non-Executive Directors

COO

CFO

Remuneration Committee Recruitment of KMP, determining remuneration 
of KMP, implementation of succession plan and 
organizational structure among others.

Chaired by Independent Non-Executive Director, 1 
Independent Non-Executive Director and 1  
Non-Executive Director

Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee

Development of a Related Party Transactions Policy, 
updating the Board on any relevant related party 
transactions and ensuring that appropriate disclosures 
are made on relevant related party transactions.

Chaired by Independent Non-Executive Director,  
1 Independent Non-executive Director

EXECUTIVE LEVEL COMMITTEES

Asset and Liability Committee Responsible for the management of the Company’s 
market and liquidity risks and management of balance 
sheet structures.

Chaired by Acting CEO

CFO

COO

Senior Accountant

Assistant Manager-Business Development
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Sub-committee Mandate Composition

Credit Committee Responsible for the management of the Company’s 
credit risk within defined parameters

Chaired by Acting CEO

CFO

COO

Senior Manager-Business Development 

Manager-Credit

IT Steering Committee To upgrade the Systems with appropriate 
modifications and enhancements to facilitate the 
spectacular growth in operations

Chaired by Acting CEO

CFO

CIO

IT Coordinator

2 IT Managers

Lease Approval Committee Chaired by Acting CEO

CFO

COO

Senior Manager-Business Development

Attendance at Board meetings

Director Board meeting Audit Committee 
meeting

Rem. Committee 
meeting

IRMC meeting Related Party Transactions 
Committee meeting

Mr. D. T. Kingsley Bernard 11/13 - - 3/4 -

Mr. S. A. S. Jayasundara 12/13 4/4 - 4/4 7/9

Mr. C. K. Gamage 13/13 - - 4/4 7/9

Mr. A. Hemachandra 13/13 4/4 4/4 - -

Mrs. P. M. K. Gamage 10/13 3/4 - - 7/9

Mrs. S. A. Godamunne 13/13 4/4 4/4 4/4 9/9

Mr. K. P. C. S. Piyathilake 13/13 3/4 4/4 4/4 9/9

Director Remuneration
The Remuneration Committee assists the 
Board in formulating the Remuneration 
procedure for Directors. The Board is mindful 
that the remuneration of Directors should be 
sufficient to attract and retain professionals 
while being in line with market expectations. 
The remuneration procedure is transparent 
and considers the skills and contributions of 
each Director. Remuneration for NED’s reflects 
the time commitment and responsibilities of 
their role, taking into consideration market 
practices. 

The remuneration of the CEO is structured 
to link rewards to individual and corporate 
performance and is designed to ensure 
alignment between the short and long-term 
interests of the Company. The aggregate 
remuneration paid to the Directors is disclosed 
in the Notes to the Financial Statements on 
page 94 of this Report.

Accountability and Audit
The Company’s financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka 
Financial Reporting Standards laid down by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 

Lanka and comply with the requirements of 
the Companies Act and the Finance Business 
Act. Furthermore, the Annual Report presents 
a balanced and comprehensive review of the 
Company’s performance against its strategic 
targets and included specialised information 
such as The Statement of Director’s 
Responsibility, Director’s Statement on Internal 
Controls and Independent Auditor’s Report 
etc.

The Board Audit Committee
The Board Audit Committee is chaired by an 
independent Non-Executive Director and 
comprises solely of Non-Executive Directors 
while the CEO, CFO and members of the 
Corporate Management Team are invited to 
attend meetings. 

Key responsibilities of the Audit Committee 
include,

• Provide oversight for the Company’s 
financial reporting processes and ensure the 
integrity of the financial statements

• The appointment of external auditors 
as well as the review of independence, 
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit 
process

• Ensure the sufficiency and effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal control systems.

• Review the adequacy of the scope, 
functions and resources of the internal audit 
department 

The Company’s external auditors are SJMS 
Associates and key oversight is provided 
by the Audit Committee, whose primary 
relationship is with the Audit Committee. 
Please refer to page 65 of this Report for the 
Board Audit Committee Report.

Internal and External 
Communication
The Company maintains a high level of 
engagement with shareholders through 
numerous structured mechanisms. The 
Annual General Meeting is the main platform 
which facilitates shareholder engagement; all 
required procedural requirements including 
the provision of relevant documents to 
shareholders are complied with. All Directors 
including the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee participate in the AGM and are 
available to respond to any points raised by 
shareholders. Other channels which facilitate 
shareholder communication include the 
regular press releases, Company’s Annual 
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Report, Corporate website and quarterly 
performance updates among others. 
Shareholders are also given the opportunity 
to direct their suggestions, feedback and 
comments to the Company Secretary. 

Institutional Shareholders
Institutional shareholders account for 5.44% 
of the Company’s total shareholding and 
are regularly kept informed of the Group’s 
performance trends, matters pertaining to 

governance and risk management through 
the Annual Report, announcements to 
the CSE and press publications. Retail 
investors are encouraged to participate at 
the AGM and investor forums and obtain 
an understanding of the Company’s 
operations and performance. We strive to 
maintain a continuous and open dialogue 
with all shareholders whilst ensuring a high 
level of transparency in all shareholder 
communications.

Disclosure Page Reference Compliance

Customer Value creation 17 Adopted

Stakeholder identification, engagement and effective communication 18 Adopted

Economic Performance 20 Adopted

Labour Practices 33 Adopted

Society 37 Adopted

Compliance to the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued jointly by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka and 
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

Corporate Governance 
Principle

SEC/ ICASL Code 
Reference 

Level of Adoption

Directors

A.1 The Board

The Board A.1 Adopted
The Board comprises of 6 professionals whose profiles are given on pages 11 to 12. Directors 
bring together a set of diverse skills, perspectives and industry experience, thereby enhancing 
the quality and depth of discussions and decision making. 

Meetings of the  Board A.1.1 Adopted 
The Board met 13 times and attendance at the meetings is given on page 50.

Responsibilities of the Board A.1.2 Adopted
Board responsibilities are set out in the Board Charter and include guidance in formulating 
strategy, monitoring effectiveness of implementation, establishing systems of risk 
management and internal control and developing a framework of policies, among others.

Access to independent 
professional advice

A.1.3 Adopted
The Directors jointly and severally act in accordance with the laws of the country as applicable.
Directors are free to seek independent professional advice in fulfilment of their duties at 
Company’s expense where necessary.

Company Secretary A.1.4 Adopted
All Directors are able to obtain the services of the Company Secretary as and when required. 
The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the Board procedures are followed and 
that applicable rules and regulations are complied with.

Independent judgement of 
Directors

A.1.5 Adopted
As experienced professionals, Directors use their independent judgement relating to issues of 
strategy, performance and business conduct. The composition of the Board ensures that there 
is sufficient balance of power.

Dedication of adequate time 
and effort by Directors

A.1.6 Adopted
Board papers are circulated well in advance, providing adequate time for Directors to review 
all relevant information. Members of the corporate management team also regularly make 
presentations to the Board on emerging risks and opportunities in the industry landscape, 
regulatory environment and other operations.

Corporate Reporting
The Company has embraced the principles 
of Integrated Reporting and continued to 
strengthen its corporate reporting processes 
to demonstrate its impacts and value creation. 
In further enhancing our sustainability 
reporting, we have adopted the GRI Standards 
this year and hope to further refine and 
improve our reporting in the coming years. 
The following sustainability disclosures (as 
required by the Code) are detailed in our 
Report.
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Corporate Governance 
Principle

SEC/ ICASL Code 
Reference 

Level of Adoption

Training for Directors A.1.7 Adopted
Directors are encouraged to participate in training sessions organized by the Sri Lanka Institute 
of Directors, seminars, workshops and symposia of relevance conducted by the Central Bank of 
Sri Lanka and other regulatory authorities.

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer 

Adopted
The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated in line with best practice 
to ensure that no one individual has unfettered powers of decision making.

A.3 Role of the Chairman

Role of the
Chairman

A.3.1 Adopted
The Chairman provides leadership to the Board, preserving order and ensuring that all 
Directors contribute effectively. 
 

A.4 Financial Acumen

Availability of sufficient 
financial acumen and 
knowledge

A.4 Adopted
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Associate Member of the Chartered Institute 
of Management Accountants of UK, while 2 Directors hold Masters Level qualifications. The 
Executive Director holds an MSc in Accounting and Finance.

A.5 Board Balance

Presence of a strong 
independent element on the 
Board

A.5.1
 to

A.5.5

Adopted
The Board comprises 6 Directors, of whom 5 are Non-Executive, facilitating an appropriate 
balance of power. Two Non-Executive Directors are deemed independent.

Senior Independent Director A.5.6
A.5.7

Adopted
The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated. As required by the 
Central Bank of Sri Lanka, the Board has appointed the Independent / Non-Executive Director 
Mrs. S.A Godamunne as the Senior Independent Director.

Meeting of Non-Executive 
Directors

A.5.8 Adopted
The Chairman meets with the Non- Executive Directors without the presence of the Executive 
Directors as and when necessary.

A.6 Supply of Information 

Information to the Board 
and adequate time for Board 
Meetings

A.6.1
A.6.2

Adopted
Board members receive information pertaining to matters set before the Board, at least 7 days 
prior to the meetings. The Board also has access to the KMP to clarify matters of relevance.

A.7 Appointment to the Board

Nomination Committee A.7.1 Not adopted
The entire Board is involved in appointment of new Directors. Board believes that this is a 
more meaningful and transparent process.

Assessment of Board 
Composition

A.7.2 Adopted
The combined knowledge and experience of the Board is assessed at least annually in relation 
to the Company’s strategic plans and required skills.

Disclosure of details of new 
Directors

A.7.3 Adopted.
Appointment of new Directors is promptly communicated to shareholders and CSE through 
press releases and announcements.

A.8 Re-election 

Appointment of Non-Executive 
Directors

A.8.1
A.8.2

Adopted
To the extent applicable and provided for by the Articles of Association of the Company.

A.9 Appraisal of Board Performance

Board Performance A.9.1
 to

A.9.3

Adopted
The performance of the Board and Board appointed Committees is appraised by the Chairman 
and the Board to ensure that they are discharging their responsibilities in accordance with the 
Board Charter.



BIMPUTH FINANCE PLC 
Annual Report 2017-18 53

Corporate Governance 
Principle

SEC/ ICASL Code 
Reference 

Level of Adoption

A.10 Disclosure of information in respect of Directors

Details in respect of Directors A.10.1 Adopted
Information specified in the code regarding Directors including the name, qualifications, 
expertise, material business interests, and brief profiles are given in this Annual Report.

A.11 Appraisal of the Chief executive Officer

Targets and evaluation of the 
performance of the CEO

A.11.1
A.11.2

Adopted
Financial targets set are reviewed and revised if necessary at least quarterly. Evaluation of the 
performance of the CEO is an on-going process. 

B. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

B.1 Remuneration Procedures 

Remuneration Committee 
composition, functions and 
responsibilities 

B.1.1 
 to

B.1.3

Adopted
The Board Remuneration Committee is responsible for providing recommendations to the 
Board regarding the remuneration of Executive Directors. No individual Director is involved in 
determining his/her own remuneration. 

Remuneration of Non-
Executive Directors.
Access to professional advice

B.1.4
B.1.5

Adopted
The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is sufficient to attract and retain professionals 
and is in line with industry reward schemes.

B.2 Level and make -up of the Remuneration

Remuneration of Directors B.2.1 
 to

B.2.4

Adopted
Remuneration and benefits of Directors and KMP are determined in accordance with the 
Company’s remuneration policies and are designed to attract and retain high performing, 
qualified and experienced employees.

Executive share options and 
performance related payments 
scheme

B.2.5
 to 

B.2.8

Not applicable.
The Company currently does not have a share option scheme in place. 

Remuneration of Non-
Executive Directors

B.2.9 Adopted
Non-Executive Directors are paid in line with market practices. 

B.3 Disclosure of Remuneration 

Disclosure of Remuneration B.3.1 Adopted
The Report of the Remuneration Committee is given on page 64 of this Report and the 
aggregate remuneration paid to Directors is disclosed in Note 94 to the Financial Statements.

C. RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

C.1 Constructive use of the Annual General Meeting and Conduct of General Meetings

Conduct of Annual General 
Meetings

C.1.1
 to

C.1.5

Adopted
The AGM provides a platform for all shareholders to participate in decision making matters. 
The Chairman ensures that the Chairman of the Board Audit Committee is present at the AGM 
to respond to any queries raised by shareholders. All matters relating to the conduct of AGM’s 
are carried out in accordance with the Code and the Articles of Association.

C.2 Major Transactions 

Major Transactions C.2.1 Not applicable.
There were no transactions which would materially affect the Company’s net assets apart 
from those disclosed in the Director’s Report on pages 58 to 60 and the Notes to the Financial 
Statements.

D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

D.1 Financial Reporting

Statutory and Regulatory 
reporting

D.1.1 Adopted
The Annual Report presents a balanced review of the Company’s financial position and 
performance. The Report includes the Annual Report of the Board of Directors, Statement 
of Director’s Responsibility and Director’s Statement on Internal Controls. The financial 
statements are prepared and presented strictly in conformance to the laws, regulations, codes 
and directions issued by regulatory and supervisory authorities.
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Corporate Governance 
Principle

SEC/ ICASL Code 
Reference 

Level of Adoption

Directors’ Reports and the 
Auditor’s Statement

D.1.2 
 to 

D.1.5

Adopted
All required Reports and Statements are included in the Annual Report.

Summoning an EGM to notify 
serious loss of capital

D.1.6 Not Applicable
Should the situation arise an EGM will be called and shareholders will be notified.

D.2 Internal Control

Annual evaluation of internal 
control system

D.2.1 Adopted
The Board is responsible for formulating an adequate framework of internal control and risk 
management systems. The IRMC assists the Board in discharge of its risk management duties 
while the AC assists the Board in the discharge of its internal control duties. The Directors’ 
Statement on Internal Control and Independent Auditor’s Report thereon are on pages 61 and 
67 respectively.

Internal Audit function D.2.2 The Internal Audit function of the Company report directly to the Audit Committee. 

D. 3 Audit Committee 

Composition, terms and 
conditions of the Audit 
Committee

D.3.1
 to

D.3.4

The Board Audit Committee comprises of 3 Non-Executive Directors and the summary of 
its activities for the year under review are given on page 65 of this Report. The Chairman of 
the Audit Committee is an Associate Member of the Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountants UK.

D. 4 Code of business conduct and ethics

Code of business conduct and 
ethics

D.4.1 
D.4.2

Adopted
The Company’s code of ethics is applicable to all Directors and employees and is in 
compliance with the requirements of the Code of Best Practice.

D.5 Corporate Governance Disclosures 

Corporate Governance Report D.5.1 Adopted
Details on the Company’s corporate governance practices and developments are given on 
pages 48 to 57 of this Report. 

E. INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS 

E.1 Shareholder Voting

Institutional Shareholders E.1.1 Adopted
Approximately 5.44% of the Company’s shareholders are institutional shareholders, with 
whom the Company maintains an ongoing, constructive dialogue. 

E.2 Evaluation of Governance Disclosures

Evaluation of the Corporate 
Governance initiatives

E.2 Adopted
Institutional Investors are encouraged to give due weightage to all relevant factors relating to 
Board structure and composition.

F OTHER INVESTORS 

F.1 Investing / Divesting decision 

Other investors F.1 Adopted
Individual shareholders are encouraged to carry out adequate analysis or seek independent 
advice on investing or divesting decisions

F.2 Shareholder Voting 

Individual shareholder voting F.2 Adopted
The AGM is an effective platform for shareholder engagement and all individual shareholders 
are encouraged to exercise their voting rights.
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Finance Companies (Corporate Governance) Direction No. 3 of 2008 and subsequent amendments thereto, issued by the Central Bank of Sri 
Lanka

Corporate Governance 
Principle

CBSL Regulation 
Reference

Level of Adoption

2. The responsibilities of the Board of Directors 

Strengthening the safety and 
soundness of the Company

2 (1) Complied
The Board is collectively responsible for setting the Company’s strategic direction and ensuring 
the sufficiency of internal controls and risk management systems. 

Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer

2 (2) Complied
The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated to maintain a 
balance of power and authority. 

Independent Advice 2 (3) Complied
Directors are given the opportunity to seek independent advice on matters relating to the 
Company at Company’s expense.

Directors voting in matters of 
interest 

2 (4) Complied
Procedure is in place to avoid conflict of interests among Directors.

Formal schedule of matters to 
the Board

2 (5) All matters relating to the direction and control of the Company are firmly under the authority 
of the Board.

Situation of Insolvency 2 (6) This situation has not arisen.

Corporate Governance Report 2 (7) The Corporate Governance Report on pages 48 to 57 of this Annual Report provides all 
relevant information. 

Self-assessment by 
Directors

2 (8) Directors engage in self-appraisal at least annually.

3. Meetings of the Board

Number of Meetings 3 (1) Complied
The Board meets at least monthly, please refer to page 50 for details on attendance.

Inclusion of Proposals by 
Directors in the Agenda

3 (2) Complied
Proposals from Directors on promotion of business and any other areas relevant to the 
progress of the Company are encouraged, entertained and included in the Agenda for regular 
meetings. 

Notice of Meetings 3 (3) Complied
Directors are given at least seven (7) days prior notice of Board Meetings and a reasonable 
time period for other meetings, allowing sufficient time for preparation. 

Non-attendance of Directors 3 (4) This situation has not arisen. 

Board Secretary 3 (5) Complied
Head of Legal acts as the Secretary to the Board and performs all activities in compliance with 
what is specified in the relevant regulations.

Agenda for the Board Meetings 3 (6) Complied
The Board Secretary prepares the Agenda as delegated by the Chairman.

Access to the Board Secretary 3 (7) Complied 
All Directors have access to the services of the Secretary of the Board.

Minutes of the Meetings 3 (8) Complied
Minutes of the meetings are maintained by the Board Secretary and all Directors have access 
to the same.

Details of Minutes 3 (9) Complied
Minutes are maintained in sufficient detail.

4. Composition of the Board

Number of Directors 4 (1) Complied
The Board consists of six Directors, which include 5 Non-Executive Directors and 1 Executive 
Director. 

Period of service of a Director 4 (2) Not applicable
No Director exceeds nine years of service.
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Corporate Governance 
Principle

CBSL Regulation 
Reference

Level of Adoption

Appointment of an employee 
as a Director

4 (3) Complied
Number of Executive Directors does not exceed one half of the total number.

Independent Non-Executive 
Directors

4 (4) Complied
Number of Independent Non-Executive Directors exceeds one fourth of the total number of 
Directors. 

Alternate Directors 4 (5) This situation has not arisen.

Credibility, skills and experience 
of Non-Executive Directors

4 (6) Complied
Please see profiles of Directors.

Meetings of Board without 
Non-Executive Directors

4 (7) This situation has not arisen.

Details of Directors 4 (8) Complied 
Please see profiles of Directors.

Appointment of new Directors 4 (9) Complied 
A formal and transparent procedure is in place for appointment of Directors.

Appointment to fill a casual 
vacancy in the Board

4 (10) Complied 
A Director appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy will stand for election by 
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Resignation / removal of a 
Director

4 (11) Complied
During the year under review the Chairman, Mr. D.T. Kingsley Bernard, and Director/CEO Mr. 
A.V Harsha Silva resigned from the Board. The resignations were not due to disagreement with 
the Board. 

5. Criteria to assess the fitness and propriety of Directors 

Directors over 70 years of age 5 (1) Complied 
None of the Directors serving on the Board has reached the age of 70.

Holding of office in more than 
20 entities

5 (2) Complied.
None of the Directors hold office in more than 20 entities.

6. Delegation of Functions

Delegation of work to the 
Management

6 (1) Complied
Delegation of functions is carefully evaluated and does not in any way affect or reduce the 
authority and ability of the Board.

Evaluation of delegated 
process

6 (2) Complied
Delegation process is reviewed at regular intervals.

7. The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Division of responsibilities 
of the Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer 

7 (1) Complied
The roles of Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separate.

Chairman preferably be an 
Independent Director and if 
not appoint a Senior Director

7 (2) Complied
The Chairman is not considered independent. Board has appointed Mrs. S. A Godamunne, 
Independent Non -Executive Director as the Senior Director. 

Relationship between 
Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer and Other Directors

7 (3) Complied
Please see profile of Directors.

Role of the Chairman 7 (4)
 to

7(11)

Complied
Please see A.3.1 on page 52.

8 Board appointed Committees 

Board appointed Committees 8 (1) Complied
The Board has appointed four (4) Committees, namely Audit Committee, Integrated Risk 
Management Committee, Remuneration Committee and Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee.
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Corporate Governance 
Principle

CBSL Regulation 
Reference

Level of Adoption

Audit Committee 8 (2) Complied
Please see Audit Committee Report on page 65.

Integrated Risk Management 
Committee

8 (3) Complied
Please see Integrated Risk Management Committee Report on page 63.

9. Related Party Transactions 

Avoiding conflict of interests in 
related party transactions and 
favourable treatment

9 (2)
 to

9 (4)

Complied
The Board has taken necessary steps to avoid conflict of interests in transactions with related 
parties and to ensure that no related party receives any favourable treatment. Please refer 
note 35 of the Financial Statements and the Report of the Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee on page 66 for details on all related party transactions.

10. Disclosures

Financial reporting 10 (1) Complied
Annual audited and periodic financial statements are prepared and published in conformity 
with all rules and regulatory requirements.

Disclosure in the Annual Report 10 (2) Complied
All required disclosures are made in the Annual Report.

(c) Listing Rule 7.10 on Corporate Governance for Listed Companies issued by the Colombo Stock Exchange

Corporate Governance 
Principle

CSE Rule 
Reference

Level of Compliance

2. The responsibilities of the Board of Directors 

Disclosures relating to Directors

7.10.1 (a) Complied
Five out of six Directors are Non-Executive Directors

7.10.2 (a) Complied
One third of the Non-Executive Directors are Independent.

7.10.2 (b) Complied
All Non-executive Directors have submitted the required declaration.

7.10.3(a) Complied (Please refer Annual Report of the Board of Directors on page 58)

7.10.3 (b) The situation did not arise.

7.10.3 (c) Complied.
 Please see profiles of Directors.

7.10.3 (d) Complied.
Information relating to new appointments are notified to relevant authorities as required.

Remuneration Committee 7.10.5 (a) to (c) Complied.
Please see Remuneration Committee Report.

Audit Committee 7.10.6 (a) to (c) Complied.
Please see Audit Committee Report.
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General
The Directors of Bimputh Finance PLC is 
pleased to present to its shareholders, 
their Report on the affairs of the Company, 
alongside the Audited Financial Statements for 
the year ended 31st March 2018.

Bimputh Finance PLC is a public limited 
liability company incorporated in Sri Lanka on 
27th July 2007 under Companies Act, No. 7 
of 2007 and is licensed as a finance company 
by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, as per the 
Finance Business Act, No. 42 of 2011 and 
Finance Leasing Act, No. 56 of 2000. 

The Company shares are listed in the Colombo 
Stock Exchange. The Registered Head Office 
and principal place of business is located 
at No. 362, Colombo Road, Pepiliyana, 
Boralesgamuwa. 

Vision, Mission and Values
The Company’s Vision, Mission and Values 
are given on page 16 of the Report and were 
further expanded to include all stakeholders. 
The business activities of the Company are 
carried out at the highest levels of ethical 
standards towards accomplishing its Mission 
and Vision. 

Principal Activities 
There have been no significant changes in 
the nature of the principal activities of the 
Company during the year under review. The 
Company continued to focus on Deposit 
Mobilisation of Savings and Term Deposits, 
Micro financing, Lease financing, Hire purchase 
financing, Consumer credit financing, Vehicle 
trading, Gold and Personal loans, Foreign 
Currency Exchange business and provision of 
other authorized financial services.

Keeping in line with the Company’s founding 
principles, low-income households remained 
the primary customers, with micro financing 
and agricultural lending being the main areas 
of focus. 

Review of Operations
A review of operations of the Company, its 
progress and prospects are discussed in the 
Chairman’s statement, Chief Executive Officer’s 
Review and the Management Discussion and 
Analysis on pages 7, 9 and 27 respectively. 
These statements form an integral part of the 
Annual Report of the Board of Directors. 

Financial Statements
The financial statements for the year ended 
31st March 2018 are prepared in accordance 
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
(LKAS/SLRFS) laid down by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and in 
compliance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007.

The financial statements for the year ended 
31st March 2018 have been duly approved 
by the Board of Directors and signed by Chief 
Financial Officer and two Directors and appear 
on page 71.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial 
Reporting
The Directors are responsible for the 
preparation of financial statements of the 
Company to reflect a true and fair view of 
its state of affairs. The Directors are of the 
view that the financial statements have been 
prepared in conformity with the requirements 
of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS /
SLFRS), Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007, Finance 
Business Act, No. 42 of 2011, Listing Rules of 
the Colombo Stock Exchange and the Finance 
Company’s (Corporate Governance) Direction 
No. 3 of 2008 issued by the Central Bank of Sri 
Lanka. 

The Statement of the Directors’ Responsibility 
for Financial Reporting is given in the Report. 

Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies adopted 
in the preparation of financial statements 
are disclosed in the Report. There were no 
changes to the accounting policies and they 
are consistent with those adopted in the 
previous year.

Independent Auditor’s Report
Auditors of the Company, Messrs SJMS 
Associates, Chartered Accountants carried out 
the audit of the financial statements for the 
year ended 31st March 2018 and their Report 
thereof is on page 67. 

The Board of Directors 
At reporting date the Board comprised six 
Directors with extensive financial, commercial 
and management, experience and expertise. 
The names of the Directors who were on the 
Board at balance sheet date are as follows:

Mr. S. A. S. Jayasundara
NED / Acting Chairman

Mr. C. K. Gamage
Executive Deputy Chairman / Acting CEO

Mr. Asoka Hemachandra
NED

Mrs. S. A. Godamunne
NED/ IND

Mr. K. P. C. S. Piyatillake
IND / NED

Mrs. P. M. K. Gamage
NED

NED - Non-Executive Director, 
ED - Executive Director, 
IND - Independent Director 

Appointment and Resignation of Directors
Mr. D.T Kingsley Bernard, Chairman resigned 
from the Board with effect from 1st January 
2018 with the approval of the Central Bank of 
Sri Lanka. 

Mr. S. A. S. Jayasundara Non-Executive Director 
was appointed as the Acting Chairman of the 
Board, with the approval of the Central Bank 
on 25th January 2018. 

Board Appointed Committees
The Board, while assuming the overall 
responsibility for the management of the 
Company, has appointed the following 
committees as mandated by the supervisory 
and regulatory authorities to ensure that 
operations are conducted at the highest 
ethical standards and in the best interests of all 
stakeholders.

The names of the Directors appointed to such 
committees are as follows :-

Audit Committee
Mrs. S. A. Godamunne - Chairperson 
IND / NED 

Mr. K. P. C. S. Piyatillake
IND / NED

Mrs. P. M. K. Gamage
NED

The Report of the Audit Committee is on page 65. 

Integrated Risk Management Committee
Mr. S. A. S. Jayasundara - Chairman
NED / Acting Chairman

Mr. C. K. Gamage
Executive Deputy Chairman / Acting CEO

Mrs. S. A. Godamunne
IND / NED 

Mr. K. P. C. S. Piyatillake
IND / NED

Mr. E. Weerasinghe
Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. T. Wijesinghe
Chief Operating Officer

The Report of the IRMC is on page 63.
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Remuneration Committee
Mrs. S. A. Godamunne - Chairman
IND / NED 

Mr. K. P. C. S. Piyatillake
IND / NED

Mr. A. Hemachandra
NED 

The Report of the Remuneration Committee is 
on page 64. 

Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee (RPTRC)
Mr. K. P. C. S. Piyatillake – Chairman
IND / NED 
Mrs. S. A. Godamunne
IND / NED 

The Report of the RPTRC is on page 66.

Management Committees
Besides the four Board appointed committees 
the following management committees 
have been set up by the Board with clearly 
defined responsibilities to assist in the overall 
management of the Company.

The composition of the management 
committees was as follows :-

Credit Committee
Mr. C. K. Gamage - Chairman
Executive Deputy Chairman / Acting CEO

Mr. E. Weerasinghe
Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. T. Wijesinghe
Chief Operating Officer

Mr. G. Wickramasinghe
Senior Manager – Business Development

Mr. D. Somarathne
Manager, Credit

Assets and Liabilities Management 
Committee
Mr. C. K. Gamage - Chairman
Executive Deputy Chairman / Acting CEO

Mr. E. Weerasinghe
Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. T. Wijesinghe
Chief Operating Officer

Mr. M. N. H. Nashwaq
Senior Accountant

Mr. K. Rajawasam 
Assistant Manager - Business Development 

Information Technology Steering Committee 
(ITSC)
Mr. C. K. Gamage - Chairman
Executive Deputy Chairman / Acting CEO

Mr. E. Weerasinghe
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. R. Peiris
Chief Innovation Officer

Mr. M. K. Silva
IT Coordinator

Mr. R. Tharanga
IT Manager

Mr. A. Wanasinghe
IT Manager

Directors’ Meetings
The details of meetings held by the Board and the Board appointed Committees and individual attendance of Directors thereat during the year under 
review are as follows :

Number of meetings held and attendance

Names Director Status Board Audit 
Committee

Integrated Risk 
Management 

Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Related Party 
Transactions Review 

Committee 

Mr. D. T. Kingsley Bernard NED / Chairman 11/13 - 3/4 - -

Mr. S. A. S. Jayasundara NED / Acting Chairman 12/13 4/4 4/4 - 7/9

Mr. C. K. Gamage Deputy Chairman / Acting CEO 13/13 - 4/4 - 7/9

Mr. A. Hemachandra NED 13/13 4/4 4/4

Mrs. S. A. Godamunne IND/NED 13/13 4/4 4/4 4/4 9/9

Mr. K. P. C. S. Piyatillake IND/ NED 13/13 3/4 4/4 4/4 9/9

Mrs. P. M. K. Gamage NED 10/13 3/4 - - 7/9

• Mr. D. T. Kingsley Bernard resigned from the Board on 01st January 2018.

Directors’ Interests Register
The details relating to Directors’ interests, 
direct and indirect, and related party 
transactions are duly recorded in compliance 
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 
No. 7 of 2007. Details of such transactions 
and contracts are disclosed in Note 35 to the 
Financial statements. 

Directors’ Interests in the Shares of the 
Company
The shareholdings of Directors of the 
Company as at the beginning and end of the 
financial year under review were as follows :

Name of the Director 31st March 2018 31st March 2017

Mr. D. T. Kingsley Bernard - -

Mr. C. K. Gamage 8,151,200 8,151,200

Mr. A. Hemachandra - -

Mr. S. A. S. Jayasundara - -

Mrs. S. A. Godamunne - -

Mr. K. P. C. S. Piyatillake - -

Mrs. P. M. K. Gamage 8,151,200 8,151,200
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Company Secretary and Registrars
Mrs. Kashmi Kapuwella, Attorney-at-Law, 
Head of Legal continues as the Secretary 
to the Company and Messrs SSP Secretarial 
Services (Pvt) Ltd. function as Registrars of the 
Company.

Directors’ Remuneration
Fees and emoluments paid to Directors for the 
year ended 31st March 2018 are disclosed in 
Note 35 to the financial statements.

Stated Capital
The Stated Capital of the Company as at 31st 
March 2018 was Rs. 616,100,061/- consisting 
107,733,344 ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- each. The 
details of the stated capital are given in Note 
32 of the financial statements.

Share Information
Information relating to earnings, net assets 
and market prices of shares is given on page 
04 of the Report. 

Shareholdings
There were 868 registered shareholders as at 
balance sheet date. The distribution, public 
holdings, twenty largest shareholders and 
share prices are given on page 104.

Going Concern
The Board of Directors, after making necessary 
inquiries, is satisfied that the Company has 
adequate resources to continue its operations 
in the foreseeable future. Accordingly the 
financial statements are prepared based on 
the going concern concept.

Corporate Governance
The Company is committed to maintain the 
highest standards in corporate governance 
to ensure transparency, accountability and 
integrity in all its activities. The corporate 
governance practices of the Company are set 
out on page 48 of the Report.

Internal Controls
An effective and comprehensive system 
of internal controls, covering all company 
operations in general has been set up the 
Board of Directors in order ensure proper and 
timely recording of financial transactions, strict 
adherence to corporate governance and risk 
management measures, compliance with 
regulatory requirements required for a sound 
business operation. 

These checks and balances are continually 
reviewed and updated to safeguard the 
assets of the Company and the interests of all 
stakeholders in general. 

Transactions with Related Parties
Details of related party transactions are 
disclosed in the financial statements under 
Note 35.

The Directors confirm that any related party 
transaction entered in to is compliant with the 
relevant rules. 

Statutory Payments
The Directors, to the best of their knowledge 
and belief, are satisfied that all statutory 
payments due to the Government, other 
statutory bodies and relating to the employees 
have been paid up-to-date.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Directors confirm, to the best of their 
knowledge, that the Company has not 
engaged in any activity in violation of laws or 
regulations. There have been no irregularities 
involving the management or employees 
that could have a material effect, financial or 
otherwise on the Company. 

Environmental Protection
The Directors are satisfied that the Company 
has not engaged or financed any activity 
which causes adverse effects on the 
environment. Directors further confirm that 
to the best of their knowledge and belief the 
Company has complied with the relevant 
environmental laws and regulations. 

Property, Plant and Equipment and 
Intangible Assets
Capital Expenditure incurred by the Company 
on property, plant, equipment and intangible 
assets and their improvements during the 
year are disclosed in Notes 25 and 26 to the 
financial statements.

Market Value of Freehold Properties
The value of free-hold properties owned 
by the Company as of 31st March 2018 is 
included in the financial statements at Rs. 70 
million. Details of the freehold properties are 
given in Note 25 to the financial statements.

Corporate Donations
No corporate donations were made during the 
year under review.

Litigation
The Board of Directors confirms that no 
litigation was pending against the Company at 
reporting date.

Auditors
The auditors, Messrs SJMS Associates, 
Chartered Accountants were paid  

Rs. 1,178,689/- (Rs. 1,071,536/- in 2016/17) as 
audit fees. Apart from that the Company has 
not engaged the External Auditors for any 
other permitted non-audit service.

The Auditors have confirmed that they do 
not have any relationship or interests in the 
Company other than those disclosed above. 

The Auditors have expressed their willingness 
to continue as Auditors of the Company 
and are being recommended by the Audit 
Committee to be reappointed for the 
following year. A resolution to reappoint them 
as Auditors and to authorize the Directors 
to determine their remunerations has been 
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting

Annual General Meeting
The 11th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company will be held at the Fingara Town and 
Country Club (Pvt) Ltd, No. 50/21, Old Kesbewa 
Road, Raththanapitiya, Boralesgamuwa at 
10.30 a.m on 28th September 2018. The details 
of the Annual General Meeting are given in 
the Notice of the Meeting on page 108 of the 
Report.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sudath Jayasundara
Acting Chairman

Chamindra Gamage
Executive Deputy Chairman / Acting CEO

Mrs. Kashmi Kapuwella
Company Secretary
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Directors’ Statement on Internal Control

Responsibility
In line with section 10 (2) (b) of the Finance 
Companies (Corporate Governance) Direction 
No. 3 of 2008 issued by the Central Bank of 
Sri Lanka, the Board of Directors presents this 
statement on internal control. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of 
internal control in place at Bimputh Finance 
PLC (the Company). Such internal control 
systems are primarily designed to manage 
the Company’s key areas of risks within an 
acceptable risk profile, rather than eliminate 
the risk of failure to achieve the policies 
and business objectives of the Company. 
Accordingly the system of internal controls 
can only provide reasonable but not absolute 
assurance against material misstatement of 
management and financial information and 
records or against financial losses or frauds. 

The Board has established an on-going 
process of identifying, evaluating and 
managing the significant risks faced by the 
Company and this process includes enhancing 
the system of internal controls as and when 
there are changes to business environment 
or regulatory guidelines. The process is 
regularly reviewed by the Board and Board 
appointed Committees in accordance with the 
guidelines issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka.

The Board is of the view that the system 
of internal controls in place is sound and 
adequate to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and that the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes 
is in accordance with relevant accounting 
principles and regulatory requirements.

The Management assists the Board in the 
implementation of the Board’s policies and 
procedures on risks and control by identifying 
and assessing the risks faced and in the design, 
operation and monitoring of suitable internal 
controls to mitigate and to control such risks.

Key Features of the process adopted in 
applying and reviewing the design and 
effectiveness of the Internal Control System 

The key processes that have been established 
in reviewing the adequacy and integrity of 
the system of internal controls with respect to 
financial reporting include the following :-

• Several Board appointed Committees and 
Management Committees have been 
set up to assist the Board in ensuring 
the effectiveness of the Company’s daily 
operations and that such operations are in 
accordance with the corporate objectives, 
strategies and the annual budget as well as 
policies and business directions that have 
been approved.

• The Internal Audit Division of the Company 
checks for compliance with policies and 
procedures and the effectiveness of the 
internal control systems on an ongoing 
basis using samples and rotational 
procedures and highlights significant 
findings in respect of any non-compliance. 
Audits are carried out on all units and 
branches, the frequency of which is 
determined by the level of risk assessed, 
to provide an independent and objective 
report. 

• The annual audit plan is reviewed and 
approved by the Audit Committee. Findings 
of the internal audit are submitted to the 
Audit Committee for review at its periodic 
meetings.

• In assessing the internal control systems 
over financial reporting, identified officers 
of the Company continue to review and 
update all procedures and controls that 
are connected with significant accounts 
and disclosures in the Financial Statements. 
These in turn are checked by the internal 
audit for suitability of design and 
effectiveness on an ongoing basis.

• The Audit Committee reviews internal 
control issues identified by the Internal 
Audit Division and also the regulatory 
authorities and evaluate adequacy and 
effectiveness of the risk management 
and internal control systems. The Audit 
Committee also reviews internal audit 
functions with particular emphasis on 
the scope and quality of audits. Audit 
Committee proceedings are forwarded to 
the Board on a periodic basis.

• The comments made by the External 
Auditors on internal control systems 
during the annual audit are taken into 
consideration and appropriate steps are 
taken to improve the systems where 
necessary.

Confirmation 
Based on the above processes, the Board 
confirms that the financial reporting system of 
the Company has been designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes has 
been done in accordance with the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards (SLFRS/ LKAS) and 
regulatory requirements of the Central Bank of 
Sri Lanka. 

Review of the Statement by External 
Auditors
The External Auditors have reviewed the 
Directors’ Statement on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting included in the Annual 
Report of the Company for the year ended 
31st March 2018 and reported to the Board 
that nothing has come to their attention that 
causes them to believe that the Statement is 
inconsistent with their understanding of the 
process adopted by the Board in the review 
of the design and effectiveness of the internal 
control system of the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board

Sudath  Jayasundara
Acting Chairman

Chamindra Gamage
Executive Deputy Chairman / Acting CEO

(Mrs.) Sherani Godamunne
Chairperson – Audit Committee
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Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The Companies Act No 7 of 2007, Finance 
Business Act No 42 of 2011 and other statutes 
applicable for the preparation of financial 
statements require Directors to ensure that 
the Company keeps accounting records which 
correctly record and explain the Company’s 
transactions and prepare and present to the 
shareholders financial statements that give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at reporting date. The 
Directors are also responsible to have in place 
appropriate systems of internal controls to 
safeguard the assets of the Company and for 
the prevention and detection of frauds and 
other irregularities.

The financial statements comprise the 
statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of financial position as at 31st 
March 2018, statement of changes in equity 
and the statement of cash flow for the year 
ended and notes thereto.

The Directors are required to ensure that 
in preparation of financial statements, 
appropriate accounting policies have been 
applied in a consistent manner, all applicable 
accounting standards have been followed 
and reasonable and prudent judgments and 
estimates have been made in accordance 
with the Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007, 
Finance Business Act, No. 42 of 2011, Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards (LKAS / SLFRS), and the 
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange. 

The Directors are of the view that the 
Company has adequate resources to continue 
operations in the foreseeable future and 
have applied the going concern basis in the 
preparation of the financial statements.

The Directors believe that the Company’s 
Auditors, Messrs SJMS Associates, have carried 
out reviews and checks on the effectiveness 

of the systems of internal controls as 
they consider appropriate and necessary 
in providing their opinion on financial 
statements. The Auditors have examined 
financial statements made available to them 
together with all other financial reports, 
minutes of shareholders’ and Directors’ 
meetings and related information. The 
Directors have provided the Auditors every 
opportunity to carry out any reviews and tests 
that they consider appropriate and necessary 
for the performance of their responsibilities.

The Directors are of the opinion that internal 
systems and procedures in place are capable 
of safeguarding the assets and preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities and 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
accounting records and timely preparation of 
financial statements.

The Directors confirm to the best of their 
knowledge and belief that all taxes, duties 
and levies payable by the Company, all 
contributions, levies and taxes payable on 
behalf of and in respect of the employees of 
the Company and all other known statutory 
dues as were due and payable by the 
Company as at reporting date have been paid 
or where relevant provided for. 

The Directors are of the view that they have 
discharged their responsibilities as set out in 
this Statement.

By order of the Board

(Mrs.) Kashmi Kapuwella
Company Secretary
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Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC) Report

The main role and responsibilities of IRMC, 
setup in terms of Finance Companies 
(Corporate Governance) Direction No. 3 
of 2008 issued by the Central Bank of Sri 
Lanka are to assist the Board in fulfilling its 
oversight responsibilities for all aspects of risk 
management.

The following Directors and officers served as 
members of the IRMC at reporting date;

Mr. S. A. S. Jayasundara - Chairman
NED / Acting Chairman

Mr. C. K. Gamage
Executive Deputy Chairman / Acting CEO

Mrs. S. A. Godamunne
IND / NED

Mr. K. P. C. S. Piyatillake
IND / NED

Mr. E. Weerasinghe
CFO

Mrs. T. Wijesinghe
COO 

Roles and Functions
The roles and functions of the IRMC 
are specified in the CBSL Direction. The 
Committee is required among other things to:

• Recognize the existence of risks and the 
impact such risks would have on the 
Company assets.

• Formulate, adopt and implement 
appropriate strategies, procedures 
and measures to manage such risks at 
acceptable levels, minimising potential 
damage or loss to the Company assets and 
maximising rewards and profits.

• Monitor the implementation and measure 
the performance of risk management 
measures adopted with a view to improving 
the effectiveness of such measures on an 
ongoing basis.

• Review the adequacy and effectiveness of 
all management level committees.

During the period under review the 
Committee met four (4) times and reviewed 
together with other Heads of Departments, 
all risk management measures presently in 
place and assessed the risks encountered and 
the efficiency of the measures adopted and 
suggested improvements where necessary.

The Committee is satisfied that the risk 
management measures in place provide 
a reasonable assurance that the Company 
assets are adequately secured and the 
integrity, transparency and accountability are 
maintained in all operations and activities of 
the Company.

The staff were made aware of the risks 
attendant upon the business of financing and 
the measures adopted to manage such risks at 
minimum possible level.

All matters relating to risk management taken 
up at Committee meetings were further 
discussed at the Board level when monthly 
financial position is reviewed.

Besides the conventional risks, such as 
credit, market, interest rate and liquidity 
etc., the Company strongly believes that 
the reputational risk is crucial and critical for 
financial institutions. As such, the IRMC lays 
great emphasis on compliance with regulatory 
requirements on corporate governance.

The Committee, though satisfied that 
adequate risk management measures are 
in place, emphasised that such measures 
need to be reviewed, revised and upgraded 
regularly in view of the rapid expansion in the 
operations and the diversity of products and 
services offered.

Mr. Sudath Jayasundara 
Chairman
Integrated Risk Management Committee
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Remuneration Committee Report

In accordance with the Code of Best Practice 
on Corporate Governance issued jointly by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka 
and Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Sri Lanka and the Listing Rules on Corporate 
Governance issued by the Colombo Stock 
Exchange, the Remuneration Committee was 
set up. At balance sheet date, the Committee 
comprised the following Directors.

Mrs. S. A. Godamunne - Chairperson
IND / NED

Mr. K. P. C. S. Piyatillake
IND / NED

Mr. A. Hemachandra
NED

In addition to the responsibilities relating 
to Directors as dictated in the above Code 
and Listing Rules, the Committee reviews 
the compensation packages of other staff, as 
per the request of the Board. The Committee 
meets as and when required and reviews the 
remuneration and other perquisites structures 
of the Directors and the executives of the 
Company with those of the competitors and 
recommends appropriate action to the Board.

The Executive Deputy Chairman / Acting CEO 
participate in the meetings upon invitation. All 
issues taken up at the Committee meetings 
are referred to the Board in due course. 

The Directors are not paid any additional 
remuneration for their role as Remuneration 
Committee members. 

Sherani Godamunne
Chairman
Remuneration Committee
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Audit Committee Report

In conformity with regulatory and supervisory 
requirements in the Code of Best Practice 
on Corporate Governance, Listing Rules of 
the Colombo Stock Exchange and Finance 
Companies (Corporate Governance) Direction 
No. 3 of 2008 issued by the Central Bank of Sri 
Lanka.

The following Directors served the Audit 
Committee as at reporting date.

Mrs. S. A.  Godamunne - Chairperson 
IND / NED 

Mr. K. P. C. S. Piyatillake
IND / NED 

Mrs. P. M. K.  Gamage 
NED

The Chairperson of the Committee,  
Mrs. S. A. Godamunne, is an Associate Member 
of the Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountants (UK) and counts nearly forty 
years experience in Finance and Management. 
Assistant Manager (Internal Audit) functions as 
the Secretary of the Committee.

Terms of Reference
The Audit Committee assists the Board in 
fulfilling its responsibilities relating to all affairs 
of the Company. The Committee has been 
empowered, among other things, to :

• Examine internally any matter concerning 
the financial affairs of the Company.

• Monitor and evaluate in detail internal and 
external audit programmes and internal 
controls, and review their reports.

• Examine the effectiveness of all aspects of 
the audit program and advise on updating 
as required.

• Periodically review and ensure compliance 
with statutory, regulatory and supervisory 
requirements.

• Review and approve annual financial 
statements and interim financial statements. 

• Analyse and review the risks and examine 
the adequacy and efficacy of the internal 
control systems and procedures.

• Evaluate the suitability of the internal audit 
plan, monitor and review the success and 
value of the internal audit.

• Approve the terms of engagement 
of the external auditors, ensure their 
independence and objectivity, and evaluate 
their performance. 

Meetings
The Committee met four times during the 
year. 

The Executive Deputy Chairman / Acting CEO, 
Chief Financial Officer and the Engagement 
Partner of External Auditors participated at 
meetings by invitation. Proceedings of the 
meetings are reported regularly to the Board 
of Directors. 

The Committee, among other things, carried 
out the following activities during the year :

• Reviewed Internal audit reports on branch 
audits with special attention to micro 
finance operations.

• Discussed with the responsible officers, 
including Branch Managers, methods 
in which to improve areas identified as 
needing improvement by the auditors 

• Reviewed alongside the Board and 
approved annual and interim financial 
statements

• Approved the internal audit plan for the 
year at the beginning of the year and 
monitored its implementation.

• Reviewed the findings of the internal audit 
and followed up the progress and corrective 
action on matters highlighted.

• Reviewed the risk management strategy 
and procedures and also the compliance 
with statutory and regulatory requirements.

• Discussed with External Auditors their 
Management Letter issued after the 
completion of the statutory audit and the 
Management’s response thereto.

As the industry grows and encounters 
new challenges, the Committee feels that 
continued close monitoring is vital to ensuring 
that the Company’s business operations are 
secure. 

External Auditors
The Committee is authorised to recommend 
the appointment of the External Auditors. The 
Committee is satisfied that there is no conflict 
of interests or cause to compromise the 
independence and objectivity of the present 
external auditors Messrs SJMS Associates.

The Committee accordingly recommends to 
the Board that the present Auditors Messrs 
SJMS Associates be re-appointed as the 
External Auditors for the financial year ending 
31st March 2018 subject to the approval by 
the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting.

(Mrs.) Sherani Godamunne
Chairperson
Audit Committee
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Related Party Transactions Review Committee (RPTRC) Report

The Committee set up in terms of the Listing 
Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange 
comprised the following Directors as at 
reporting date.

Mr. K. P. C. S. Piyatillake - Chairman
IND / NED 

Mrs. S. A. Godamunne
IND / NED

The objectives of the RPTRC is to independent 
review, appraise and approve all related party 
transactions to ensure that shareholders 
interests and assets of the Company are 
safeguarded. 

The main responsibilities of the Committee 
include the following;

• Ensuring that the policy on related party 
transactions is being implemented as per 
the regulations of the Colombo Stock 
Exchange. 

• Making market disclosers on applicable 
related party transactions as required by the 
Listing Rules in the Annual Report of the 
Company

• Informing the Board of Directors on the 
Company’s related party transactions

• Handling the related party relationship, as 
per the best interests of the Company

The Committee met once within the reporting 
period and reviewed the Related Party 
Transactions carried out by the Company.

Sudarshana Piyatillake
Chairman
Related Party Transactions Review Committee
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BIMPUTH 
FINANCE PLC 

Report on the Audit Of The Financial 
Statements

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of 
Bimputh Finance PLC (“the Company”), which 
comprise the statement of financial position 
as at 31 March 2018, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the Company as at 31 March 
2018, and of its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by CA 
Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics), and we have fulfilled 

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key audit matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in 
our professional judgement, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 

Key audit matter in the audit of the company How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1.  Valuation of land and buildings 

 As at reporting date 31 March 2018, land and buildings carried at fair value, 
classified as Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment Property amounted 
to LKR. 538mn and LKR. 70 mn respectively. The fair value of such property 
was determined by external valuers engaged by the Company. The valuation 
of land and buildings was significant to our audit due to the use of significant 
estimates such as per perch price and value per square foot.

Our audit procedures focused on the valuations performed by external 
valuers engaged by the Company, and included the following;

•  Assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of the external 
valuers engaged by the company

•  Read the external valuer’s report and understood the key estimates 
made and the approach taken by the valuers in determining the 
valuation of each property 

•  Engaged our internal specialised resources to assess the 
reasonableness of the valuation techniques, per perch price and value 
per square foot 

We have also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made in the 
financial statements relating to the valuation technique and estimates 
used by the external valuers.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Key audit matter in the audit of the company How our audit addressed the key audit matter

2.  Impairment of leases and hire purchases and loans and receivables

 As at 31st March 2018, as disclosed in Note 21, the company “loans and 
advances gross balance amounted to LKR 7,723 million. 

 The company’s loans and advances are measured at the amortized cost using 
the effective interest method. During the year ended 31 March 2018 the 
impairment of “loans and advances” amounted to LKR 472 million. 

 Impairment in respect of “loans and advances” represents the management’s 
best estimate of the impairment losses incurred within the loan portfolio as 
at the reporting date. The company’s loan portfolio consists of micro finance 
loans, lease receivables and other medium term credit products. 

 As disclosed in note 2.9.d and 3.2.6, impairment is calculated for individual 
loans and advances or for a homogeneous group of loans and advances with 
similar credit risk characteristics by an individual or collective assessment 
of impairment using statistical methods and historical collection trends. 
Collectively calculated impairment, also includes impairment losses which 
have not yet been identified on loans and advances which are subject 
to individual assessments. The calculation of the collective impairment is 
inherently judgemental.

 We have identified impairment as a key audit matter as the calculation 
of impairment is a complex area and requires the management to make 
significant assumptions on the customer payment behaviour and other 
relevant risk characteristics when assessing the group’s statistics of historical 
information and estimating the level and timing of the expected future cash 
flows.

Our audit focused on assessing the appropriateness of the management’s 
judgement and estimates used in the impairment analysis through the 
following procedures:

-  We used our IT specialists to test the data flows from source systems to 
spreadsheet-based models to test their completeness and accuracy.

-  We tested the methodology applied in the impairment calculation by 
comparing it to the requirements of LKAS 39, Financial instruments: 
recognition and measurement, and we tested the mathematical 
accuracy of the management’s model used to calculate impairment.

-  We tested the key underlying assumptions by evaluating the process 
by which these were drawn up.

-  We understood and critically assessed the models used for impairment. 
Since modelling assumptions and parameters are based on historic 
data, we assessed whether historic experience was representative of 
current circumstances and of the recent impairment incurred within 
the portfolios.

-  We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made in the note 2.9 
(d) and 3.2.6 in respect of impairment.

Other information 
Management is responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, but 
does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report 
is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does 
not cover the other information included in the 
annual report and we will not, express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information identified above and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

When we read the annual report, if we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement therein, we 
are required to communicate the matter to those 
charged with governance

Responsibilities of management and those 
charged with governance for the financial 
statements
Management is responsible for the preparation 
of financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards, and for such an internal control, as 
management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible 
for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SLAuSs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAuSs, we 
exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. 
We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
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sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud 
that is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control 
relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the 
management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure 
and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance 
with a statement that we have complied with 
ethical requirements in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those 
charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
As required by Section 163 (2) of the Companies 
Act No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the 
information and explanations that were required 
for the audit and, as it far as appears from our 
examination, proper accounting records have 
been kept by the Company.

CA Sri Lanka membership number of the 
engagement partner responsible for signing this 
independent auditor’s report is 3991.

SJMS ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
18 June 2018
Colombo
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Statement of Comprehensive Income       

Year ended 31 March 2018 Note  2017/2018
Rs. 

 2016/2017
Rs. 

Interest income 5  2,757,768,652  2,909,518,309 

Interest expense 6  (1,164,059,772)  (868,523,445)

Net interest income  1,593,708,880  2,040,994,864 

Fee and commission income 7  188,572,717  280,970,528 

Other income 8  153,684,103  47,423,722 

 1,935,965,700  2,369,389,114 

Impairment loss on financial assets  (472,682,026)  (165,671,554)

Net loss from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 9  (8,585,963)  (259,379,558)

Changes in revaluation surplus in investment properties  53,807,240  - 

Personnel costs 10  (355,088,484)  (301,458,366)

Administration expenses  (696,610,773)  (652,796,452)

Finance expenses  (151,559,586)  (60,667,321)

Profit from operations  305,246,108  929,415,863 

Profit before tax on financial services and income tax  305,246,108  929,415,863 

Tax on financial services - Vat and NBT 11  (82,009,040)  (153,068,027)

Profit before income tax 12  223,237,068  776,347,836 

Income tax expense 13  (76,396,582)  (260,130,600)

Profit for the year  146,840,486  516,217,236 

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans  (2,343,471)  34,233 

Deferred tax on actuarial loss on retirement benefit  (656,172)  (9,585)

Changes in revaluation surplus  32,250,000  - 

Deferred tax on land revaluation  (9,030,000)  - 

Total other comprehensive income for the period  20,220,357  24,648 

Total comprehensive income for the year  167,060,843  516,241,884 

Earnings per share - Basic 14  1.36  4.79 

The accounting policies and notes from 01 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.



BIMPUTH FINANCE PLC 
Annual Report 2017-18 71

Statement of Financial Position

Year ended 31 March 2018 Note  31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

Assets

Cash in hand and at bank 15  423,729,195  226,345,472 

Placements with bank and other financial institutions 16  562,260,165  963,057,255 

Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss 17  186,306,942  213,148,547 

Financial investments - Loans and receivables 18  234,168,463  312,411,900 

Financial investments -held to maturity 19  41,661,445  37,711,584 

Financial investments - available for sale 20  193,900  193,900 

Loans and advances 21  7,520,176,477  9,309,190,146 

Tax receivable 30  99,955,203  - 

Other receivables 22  158,800,749  151,534,958 

Inventories 23  609,781  8,862,942 

Investment properties 24  538,785,000  206,019,000 

Property and equipment 25  298,801,223  287,930,245 

Intangible assets 26  28,162,356  17,150,571 

Total assets  10,093,610,899  11,733,556,520 

Liabilities

Borrowings 27  5,951,741,126  6,859,189,720 

Due to customers 28  2,184,344,230  2,935,990,877 

Other payables 29  71,840,047  96,754,311 

Tax payable 30  -  72,883,631 

Retirement benefit obligations 31  21,901,968  12,091,656 

Deferred tax liability 13.3  59,339,032  11,529,328 

Total liabilities  8,289,166,403  9,988,439,523 

Equity

Stated capital 32  616,100,061  616,100,061 

Statutory reserve 33  71,842,325  64,500,301 

Revaluation reserve  23,220,000  - 

Retained earnings  1,093,282,110  1,064,516,635 

 1,804,444,496  1,745,116,997 

Total liabilities and equity  10,093,610,899  11,733,556,520 

Net Assets per share  16.75  16.20 

I certify that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007.

Chief Financial Officer
W. M. Eranda Weerasinghe

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements. 

Director/Deputy Chairman Director
C. K. Gamage A. Hemachandra



BIMPUTH FINANCE PLC 
Annual Report 2017-1872

Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2018  Share capital 

Rs. 

Statutory
reserve

Revaluation
reserve

Retained
earnings

Rs. 

Total

Rs. 

Balance as at 01 April 2016  616,100,061  38,689,439  -  735,685,629  1,390,475,129 

Dividend payment 2016/ 2017  -  -  -  (161,600,016)  (161,600,016)

Profit for the year  -  -  -  516,217,236  516,217,236 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax  -  -  -  24,648  24,648 

Transfers during the year  -  25,810,862  -  (25,810,862)  - 

Balance as at 31 March 2017  616,100,061  64,500,301  -  1,064,516,635  1,745,116,997 

Dividend payment 2017/2018  -  -  -  (107,733,344)  (107,733,344)

Profit for the year  -  -  -  146,840,486  146,840,486 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax  -  -  23,220,000  (2,999,643)  20,220,357 

Transfers during the year  -  7,342,024  -  (7,342,024)  - 

Balance as at 31 March 2018  616,100,061  71,842,325  23,220,000  1,093,282,110  1,804,444,496 
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Statement of Cash Flow

Year ended 31 March 2018  31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

Cash flow from operating activities

Interest receipts  2,744,438,415  2,892,915,046 

Interest payments  (1,087,142,205)  (935,708,515)

Receipt from other operating activities  342,256,820  328,394,253 

Cash payments to employees & suppliers  (1,071,635,958)  (1,135,045,850)

Operating profit before changes in operating assets  927,917,072  1,150,554,934 

(Increase)/ decrease in operating assets

Placement with banks and finance institutions  400,797,090  (397,503,245)

Financial investments -held to maturity  (3,949,861)  (35,731,282)

Financial investments - loans and receivables  78,243,437  161,467,908 

Loan and advances  1,229,914,731  (2,542,208,965)

Other receivable  (7,265,791)  (71,185,116)

Trading stocks  8,253,161  (7,047,675)

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating assets  1,705,992,766  (2,892,208,374)

Increase/ ( decrease) in operating liabilities

Due to customers  (819,938,242)  797,547,803 

Other payables  (24,914,264)  (6,361,023)

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating liabilities  (844,852,506)  791,186,780 

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating activities before income tax paid  1,789,057,332  (950,466,661)

Income tax paid  (284,040,900)  (386,700,830)

Gratuity paid  (177,760)  - 

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating activities  1,504,838,672  (1,337,167,491)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment and investment property  (282,561,152)  (46,116,003)

Purchase of intangible assets  (15,180,613)  (5,221,497)

Financial investment - fair value through profit or loss  18,255,642  (4,970,515)

Net cash outflow from investing activities  (279,486,123)  (56,308,015)

Cash inflow/ (outflow)from financing activities

Dividend paid  (107,733,344)  (161,600,016)

Net borrowings  (932,492,677)  1,323,313,369 

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from financing activities  (1,040,226,021)  1,161,713,353 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash & cash equivalent  185,126,528  (231,762,153)

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year  37,692,276  269,454,429 

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year  222,818,804  37,692,276 

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

Cash in hand and at bank  423,729,195  226,345,473 

Bank over drafts  (200,910,391)  (188,653,197)

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year  222,818,804  37,692,276 
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Corporate information

1.1 General
 Bimputh Finance PLC (the Company) 

is a public limited liability company, 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri 
Lanka. The Company was incorporated 
in Sri Lanka on 27th July 2007 under 
the companies Act No 07 of 2007. The 
registered office and the principal place 
of business of the Company are located 
at No. 362, Colombo Road, Pepiliyana, 
Boralesgamuwa. 

 Parent Entity & Ultimate Parent Entity
 The Company does not have an 

identifiable parent on its own.

 Number of Employees
 The staff strength of the company as at 31 

March 2018 was 759 (754 as at March 31, 
2017).

1.2 Principal activities and nature of 
operations

 The Company engaged in the business of 
micro finance. It provides micro finance for 
persons engaged in the cultivation of cash 
crops and other crops, micro enterprises, 
self-employed persons and other 
individuals and groups including those 
with minimal or no access to security and 
working capital. Further the company 
provides term loans, finance leases, hire-
purchase assets financing other than the 
micro financing activities.

1.3 Date of authorization for issue
 The Financial Statements of the Company 

for the year ended 31 March 2018 were 
authorized for issue in accordance with a 
resolution of the Board of Directors on 18 
June 2018.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance
 The financial statements of the Company 

(statement of financial position, statement 
of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity, statement of cash flows 
together with accounting policies and 
notes) are prepared in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKASs 
and SLFRSs) as issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and in 
compliance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act No.07 of 2007 and provide 
appropriate information as required by the 
Finance Business Act No. 42 of 2011, and 
the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock 
Exchange.

2.2 Responsibility for financial statements
 The Board of Directors is responsible for 

preparation and presentation of these 
Financial Statements of the Company as 
per the provision of the Companies Act 
No. 07 of 2007 and SLFRS and LKAS.

 The Board of Directors acknowledges 
their responsibility as set out in the 
“Annual Report of the Board of Directors 
on the Affairs of the Company”, “Directors’ 
Responsibility for Financial Reporting” and 
in the certification on the Statement of 
Financial Position.

2.3 Basis of measurement
 The financial statements have been 

prepared on the historical cost basis, 
except for the following material items in 
the Statement of financial position, all of 
which are measured at fair value.

 -  available for sale financial assets are 
measured at fair value

 - financial assets held for trading those are 
measured at fair value

 -  investment properties are measured 
at cost at the time of acquisition and 
subsequently at revalued amounts, 
which are the fair values at the date of 
revaluation

 -  liability of defined benefit obligation is 
recognized as the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation

2.4 Functional and presentation currency
 The financial statements are presented in 

Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional currency and presentational 
currency. The amounts in the Financial 
Statements have been rounded-off to the 
nearest Rupees thousands, except where 
otherwise indicated as permitted by the 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standard- LKAS 01 
on ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.

2.5 Comparative information
 The accounting policies have been 

consistently applied by the Company 
with those of the previous financial year in 
accordance with LKAS 01 - presentation of 
financial statements. Further, comparative 
information is reclassified wherever 
necessary to comply with the current 
presentation

2.6 Presentation of financial statements
 The items in statement of financial 

position of the Company are grouped 
by the nature and listed in an order that 
reflects their relative liquidity and maturity 
pattern.

2.7 Materiality & aggregation
 In compliance with LKAS 01 on 

Presentation of Financial Statements, each 
material class of similar items is presented 
separately in the Financial Statements. 
Items of dissimilar nature or functions 
too are presented separately, if they are 
material.

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
offset and the net amount reported in 
the statement of financial position, only 
when there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset the recognized amounts and there 
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or 
to realize the assets and settle the liability 
simultaneously. Income and expenses 
are not offset in the income statement 
unless required or permitted by any 
accounting standard or interpretation, and 
as specifically disclosed in the accounting 
policies.

2.8 Use of significant accounting judgments, 
estimates and assumptions

 The preparation of financial statements 
requires the application of certain 
critical accounting assumptions relating 
to the future. Further, it requires the 
management of the Company to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of 
income, expenses, assets and liabilities, 
and the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities, at the end of the reporting 
period. However, uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the 
asset or liability in future periods. Hence, 
actual experience and results may differ 
from these judgments and estimates.

 In the process of applying the Company’s 
accounting policies, management has 
made the following judgments, estimates 
and assumptions which have the most 
significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements:

2.9 Events After the Reporting Period
 Events after the Reporting period 

are those events, favourable and 
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unfavourable, that occur between the 
Reporting date and the date when the 
financial statements are authorised for 
issue.

 In this regard, all material and important 
events that occurred after the Reporting 
period have been considered and 
appropriate disclosures are made in Note 
36 where necessary.

a. Taxation
 The Company is subject to income taxes 

and other taxes including VAT and NBT on 
financial services. Significant judgment 
was required to determine the total 
provision for current, deferred and other 
taxes.

 The Company recognized assets and 
liabilities for current deferred and other 
taxes based on estimates of whether 
additional taxes will be due. Where the 
final tax outcome of these matters is 
different from the amounts that were 
initially recorded, such differences will 
impact the income, deferred tax amounts 
in the period in which the determination 
is made.

b. Useful life-time of the property and 
equipment

 The Company reviews the residual 
values, useful lives and methods of 
depreciation of assets as at each reporting 
date. Judgment of the management is 
exercised in the estimation of these values, 
rates, methods and hence they are subject 
to uncertainty.

c. Going concern
 The Board has made an assessment of the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern and is satisfied that it has the 
resources to continue in business for the 
foreseeable future. Furthermore, the Board 
is not aware of any material uncertainties 
that may cast significant doubt upon 
the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern and they do not intend 
either to liquidate or to cease operations 
of the Company. Therefore, the financial 
statements continue to be prepared on 
the going concern basis.

d. Impairment losses on loans and 
advances

 The Company assesses at each reporting 
date or more frequently to determine 
whether there is any objective evidence 
whether an impairment loss should 
be recorded in the income statement. 

Impairment losses are assessed 
individually for financial assets that are 
individually significant and collectively for 
assets that are not individually significant. 
Management judgment is required in 
the estimation of the amount and timing 
of future cash flows when determining 
impairment losses. Estimation 
methodologies are based on assumptions 
concerning a number of factors though 
actual results may differ, resulting in future 
changes to the impairment losses so 
made.

 Loans and advances that have been 
assessed individually and found to be not 
impaired and all individually insignificant 
loans and advances are then assessed 
collectively, in groups of assets with similar 
risk characteristics, to determine whether 
provision should be made due to incurred 
loss events for which there is objective 
evidence, but the effects of which are not 
yet evident. The collective assessment 
takes in to account data from the loan 
portfolio, and judgments on the effect 
of concentrations of risks and economic 
data.

e. Impairment of available - for - sale 
investments

 The Company records impairment charges 
on available for sale equity investments 
when there has been a significant or 
prolonged decline in the fair value below 
their cost. The determination of what 
is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires 
judgment. In making this judgment, the 
Company evaluates, among other factors, 
historical share price movements, duration 
and extent up to which the fair value of an 
investment is less than its cost.

f. Deferred taxation
 Deferred taxes are recognized for all 

deductible temporary differences, 
unused tax losses and tax credits to the 
extent it is probable that taxable profits 
will be available against which these 
losses/credits can be utilized. Significant 
management judgments are required to 
determine the amount of deferred tax 
assets that can be recognized, based on 
the likely timing and level of future taxable 
profits together with future tax planning 
strategies.

g. Defined benefit plans
 The cost of the defined benefit plans 

determined using an actuarial valuation. 
This valuation involves making various 
assumptions which may differ from 

actual developments in the future. 
These include the determination of the 
discount rate and future salary increases. 
Due to the complexity of the valuation, 
the underlying assumptions and their 
long term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes 
in these assumptions. All assumptions are 
reviewed at each reporting date.

 In determining the appropriate discount 
rate, management considers the interest 
rates of Sri Lanka Government bonds with 
extrapolated maturities corresponding 
to the expected duration of the defined 
benefit obligation. Future salary increases 
are based on expected future inflation 
rates and expected future salary increase 
rate of the Company.

3. Summary of significant accounting 
policies

 The significant accounting policies 
applied by the Company in preparation 
of its financial statements are included 
below. The accounting policies set out 
below have been applied consistently to 
all periods presented in theses financial 
statements.

3.1 Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash 

in hand, balances with banks. For the 
purpose of the statement of cash flow, 
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash 
and short-term deposits as defined above.

3.2 Financial assets – recognition and 
measurement

3.2.1 Initial recognition
 All financial assets are initially recognized 

on the trade date, i.e., the date that 
the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 
This includes ’regular way trades’: 
purchases or sales of financial assets that 
require delivery of assets within the time-
frame generally established by regulation 
or convention in the market place.

3.2.2 Initial measurement
 The classification of financial instruments 

at initial recognition depends on their 
purpose and characteristics and the 
management’s intention in acquiring 
them. All financial instruments are 
measured initially at their fair value plus 
transaction costs, except in the case of 
financial assets and financial liabilities 
recorded at fair value through profit or 
loss.
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3.2.3 Non-derivative financial assets
 The Company recognizes non-derivative 

financial assets by the following four 
categories: financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss, held-to maturity 
investments, loans and receivables and 
available-for-sale financial assets.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss

 A financial asset is classified as fair value 
through profit or loss if it is held for trading 
or is designated at fair value through profit 
of loss.

 - Financial assets held for trading

 Financial assets held for trading are 
recorded in the statement of financial 
position at fair value. Changes in fair value 
are recognized in net trading income. 
Interest is recorded in net trading income 
according to the terms of the contract.

 - Financial assets designated at fair value 
through profit or loss (FVTPL)

 Financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss are recorded in the statement of 
financial position at fair value. Changes 
in fair value are recorded in net gain or 
loss on financial instrument designated 
at fair value through profit or loss. Interest 
earned is accrued in interest income using 
the effective interest rate (EIR).

(ii)  Held-to-maturity financial investments
 - Held-to-maturity financial investments 

are non–derivative financial assets with 
fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturities, which the Company has the 
intention and ability to hold to maturity. 
Subsequent to initial measurement, 
held to maturity financial investments 
are measured at amortised cost using 
the Effective Interest Rate (EIR), less 
impairment.

 - Amortised cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The amortisation 
is included in ‘interest income’ in the 
income statement. The losses arising 
from impairment of such investments, if 
any, are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

 - If the Company were to sell or reclassify 
more than an insignificant amount of 
held to maturity investments before 
maturity (other than in certain specific 

circumstances), the entire category 
would be tainted and would have to 
be reclassified as available-for-sale. 
Furthermore, the Company would be 
prohibited from classifying any financial 
asset as held to maturity during the 
following two years.

(iii)  Loans and receivables
 Loans and receivables include non– 

derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market, other than:

 -  Those that the Company intends to sell 
immediately or in the near term and 
those that the Company, upon initial 
recognition, designates as at fair value 
through profit or loss

 -  Those that the Company, upon initial 
recognition, designates as available for 
sale

  - Those for which the Company may 
not recover substantially all of its initial 
investment, other than because of credit 
deterioration

 -  After initial measurement, loans and 
receivables are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the EIR 
method less allowance for impairment. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees and costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The 
amortisation is included in ‘Interest 
income’ in the income statement. The 
losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in the income statement in 
‘impairment gain/ (loss) on loans and 
receivables’. The Company may enter 
into certain lending commitments 
where the loan, on drawdown, is 
expected to be classified as held-for-
trading because the intent is to sell 
the loans in the short term. These 
commitments to lend are recorded as 
derivatives and measured at fair value 
through profit or loss. Where the loan, on 
drawdown, is expected to be retained by 
the Company, and not sold in the short 
term, the commitment is recorded only 
when it is an onerous contract that is 
likely to give rise to a loss.

(iv)  Available-for-sale financial investments
 -  Available-for-sale investments include 

equity securities. Equity investments 
classified as available for sale are those 
which are neither classified as held for 

trading nor designated at fair value 
through profit or loss. The Company has 
not designated any loans or receivables 
as available-for-sale.

 -  Where the Company holds more than 
one investment in the same security, 
they are deemed to be disposed of on 
a first–in first–out basis. Interest earned 
whilst holding available-for-sale financial 
investments is reported as interest 
income using the EIR method. Dividend 
earned whilst holding available for sale 
financial investments are recognised 
in the income statement as other 
operating income when the right of the 
payment has been established.

 -  After initial measurement, available-for-
sale financial investments are measured 
at fair value if the fair value can be 
measured reliably. Unrealised gains 
and losses are recognised directly in 
equity (other comprehensive income) 
in the “available-for-sale reserve”. 
When the investment is disposed of, 
the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognized in equity is recognised in the 
income statement in other operating 
income.

3.2.4 Reclassification of financial assets
 The Company may reclassify non-

derivative financial assets (other than 
those designated at FVTPL upon initial 
recognition, in certain circumstances:

 - Out of the ‘held-for-trading’ category 
and into the ‘available for sale’, ‘loans 
and receivables’, or ’held-to-maturity’ 
categories.

 Out of the ‘available-for-sale’ category 
and into the ’loans and receivables’, ‘held 
for trading category’ or ‘held-to-maturity’. 
Reclassifications are recorded at fair value 
at the date of reclassification, which 
becomes the new amortised cost. For 
a financial asset reclassified out of the 
’available-for-sale’ category, any previous 
gain or loss on that asset that has been 
recognised in equity is amortised to profit 
or loss over the remaining life of the 
investment using the EIR. Any difference 
between the new amortised cost and 
the expected cash flows is also amortised 
over the remaining life of the asset using 
the EIR. If the asset is subsequently 
determined to be impaired, then the 
amount recorded in equity is recycled to 
the income statement.
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 Out of the ‘held-for-trading’ category 
and into the ‘loans and receivables’ 
category if it meets the definition of 
loans and receivables and the Company 
has the intention and ability to hold 
the financial asset for the foreseeable 
future or until maturity. If a financial 
asset is reclassified, and if the Company 
subsequently increases its estimates of 
future cash receipts as a result of increased 
recoverability of those cash receipts, the 
effect of that increase is recognised as an 
adjustment to the EIR from the date of the 
change in estimate.

 Reclassification is at the election of the 
management, and is determined on an 
instrument by instrument basis.

3.2.5 De-recognition of financial assets
 A financial asset (or, where applicable a 

part of a financial asset or part of a group 
of similar financial assets) is derecognised 
when:

 -  The rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset have expired.

 -  The Company has transferred its rights 
to receive cash flows from the asset 
or has assumed an obligation to pay 
the received cash flows in full without 
material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass–through’ arrangement and either:

 -  The Company has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset or

 -  The Company has neither transferred 
nor retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

 -  When the Company has transferred 
its rights to receive cash flows from 
an asset or has entered into a pass–
through arrangement, and has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially 
all of the risks and rewards of the asset 
nor transferred control of the asset, the 
asset is recognised to the extent of the 
Company’s continuing involvement in 
the asset. In that case, the Company 
also recognises an associated liability. 
The transferred asset and the associated 
liability are measured on a basis that 
reflects the rights and obligations that 
the Company has retained. Continuing 
involvement that takes the form of a 
guarantee over the transferred asset is 

measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the 
maximum amount of consideration 
that the Company could be required to 
repay.

3.2.6 Identification, measurement and 
assessment of impairment

 At each reporting date the Company 
assesses whether there is objective 
evidence that financial assets not carried 
at fair value through profit or loss are 
impaired. A financial asset or a group of 
financial assets is impaired when objective 
evidence demonstrates that a loss event 
has occurred after the initial recognition 
of the asset(s), and that the loss event has 
an impact on the future cash flows of the 
asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

 Objective evidence that financial assets 
(including equity securities) are impaired 
can include significant financial difficulty 
of the borrower or issuer, default or 
delinquency by a borrower, restructuring 
of a loan or advance by the Company 
on terms that the Company would not 
otherwise consider, indications that a 
borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, 
the disappearance of an active market 
for a security, or other observable data 
relating to a group of assets such as 
adverse changes in the payment status 
of borrowers or issuers in the group, or 
economic conditions that correlate with 
defaults in the group. In addition, for 
an investment in an equity security, a 
significant or prolonged decline in its fair 
value below its cost is objective evidence 
of impairment.

 The Company considers evidence of 
impairment for loans and advances and 
held-to-maturity investment securities 
at both a specific asset and collective 
level. All individually significant loans 
and advances and held-to-maturity 
investment securities are assessed for 
specific impairment. All individually 
significant loans and advances and held-
to-maturity investment securities found 
not to be specifically impaired are then 
collectively assessed for any impairment 
that has been incurred but not yet 
identified. Loans and advances and held-
to-maturity investment securities that are 
not individually significant are collectively 
assessed for impairment by grouping 
together loans and advances and held-to-
maturity investment securities with similar 
risk characteristics.

 In assessing collective impairment the 
Company uses of historical trends of 
the probability of default, adjusted for 
management’s judgment as to whether 
current economic and credit conditions 
are such that the actual losses are likely 
to be greater or less than suggested by 
historical data.

 Impairment losses on assets carried at 
amortised cost are measured as the 
difference between the carrying amount 
of the financial asset and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows discounted 
at the asset’s original effective interest 
rate. Impairment losses are recognised in 
profit or loss and reflected in an allowance 
account against loans and advances. 
Interest on impaired assets continues to 
be recognised through the unwinding of 
the discount. When a subsequent event 
causes the amount of impairment loss to 
decrease, the decrease in impairment loss 
is reversed through profit or loss.

 Impairment losses on available-for-sale 
investment securities are recognised by 
transferring the cumulative loss that has 
been recognised in other comprehensive 
income to profit or loss as a reclassification 
adjustment. The cumulative loss that is 
reclassified from other comprehensive 
income to profit or loss is the difference 
between the acquisition cost, net of any 
principal repayment and amortisation, and 
the current fair value, less any impairment 
loss previously recognised in profit or 
loss. Changes in impairment provisions 
attributable to time value are reflected as 
a component of interest income.

 If, in a subsequent period, the fair value 
of an impaired available for- sale debt 
security increases and the increase can be 
objectively related to an event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised 
in profit or loss, then the impairment 
loss is reversed, with the amount of 
the reversal recognised in profit or loss. 
However, any subsequent recovery in the 
fair value of an impaired available-for-sale 
equity security is recognised in other 
comprehensive income.

 The Company writes off certain loans and 
advances and investment securities when 
they are determined to be uncollectible.

3.2.7 Collateral valuation
 The Company seeks to use collateral, 

where possible, to mitigate its risks on 
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financial assets. The collateral comes in 
various forms such as cash, securities, 
letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, 
receivables, inventories, other non-
financial assets and credit enhancements 
such as netting agreements. The fair value 
of collateral is generally assessed, at a 
minimum, at inception and based on the 
guidelines issued by the Central Bank of 
Sri Lanka.

 Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, 
is valued based on data provided by third 
parties such as independent valuers and 
audited financial statements.

3.2.8 Investment in reverse repurchase 
agreements

 Securities purchased under agreements 
to resell (reverse repos) are recorded as 
loans and advances to other banks or 
customers, as appropriate. The difference 
between sale and repurchase price is 
treated as interest and accrued over the 
life of the agreements using the effective 
interest method.

3.3 Non–financial assets
3.3.1 Property and equipment
(i)  Recognition and measurement
 Property & Equipment are recognised if it 

is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the asset will flow to the 
entity and the cost of the asset can be 
measured reliably in accordance with 
LKAS 16 on Property, Plant & Equipment. 
Initially property and equipment are 
measured at cost.

(ii)  Cost model
 Property and equipment is stated at 

cost excluding the costs of day–to–day 
servicing, less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment in value. 
Such cost includes the cost of replacing 
part of the equipment when that cost is 
incurred, if the recognition criteria are met.

(iii)  Subsequent cost
 Subsequent expenditure incurred for 

the purpose of acquiring, extending, 
or improving assets of a permanent 
nature by means of which to carry on 
the business or to increase the earning 
capacity of the business is treated as 
capital expenditure and such expenses are 
recognised in the carrying amount of an 
asset. The costs associated with day-to-day 
servicing of property and equipment are 
recognised in the income statement as 
incurred.

(iv)  Depreciation
 The provision for depreciation is calculated 

by using the straight line method on cost 
of the property & equipment other than 
freehold land.

 The rates of depreciations are given below;

Asset Category Depreciation rate 
(per annum)

Furniture and Fittings 12.50%

Motor Vehicles 8.50%

Office Equipment 12.50%

Computer Equipment 12.50%

 The asset’s residual values, useful lives and 
methods of depreciation are reviewed, 
and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
financial year end.

(v)  De-recognition
 Property and equipment is de-recognised 

on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use. Any 
gain or loss arising on de-recognition of 
the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
recognised in ‘Other operating income’ 
in the income statement in the year the 
asset is de-recognised.

 Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve 
relating to the particular asset being sold 
is transferred to retained earnings.

3.3.2 Investment properties
 Investment properties are properties held 

either to earn rental income or for capital 
appreciation or both but not for sale in the 
ordinary course of business, used in the 
production or supply of goods or services 
or for administrative purposes.

(i)  Basis of recognition
 Investment property is recognised if it is 

probable that future economic benefits 
that are associated with the investment 
property will flow to the Company and 
cost of the investment property can be 
reliably measured.

(ii)  Measurement
 An investment property is measured 

initially at its cost. The cost of a purchased 
investment property comprises of 
its purchase price and any directly 
attributable expenditure. The Company 
applies the fair value model for investment 
properties in accordance with Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standard 40 (LKAS 40) 
“Investment Property”. Accordingly, land 
classified as investment properties are 
stated at fair value less any accumulated 
impairment losses. The fair value of 
investment properties are determined at 
least once every three to five years.

(iii)  De-recognition
 Investment properties are derecognised 

when disposed of, or permanently 
withdrawn from use because no future 
economic benefits are expected. Transfers 
are made to and from investment 
properties only when there is a change in 
use.

3.3.3 Intangible assets
 The intangible assets include the 

value of computer software cost of 
purchased licenses. An intangible asset 
is recognised only when its cost can be 
measured reliably and it is probable that 
the expected future economic benefits 
that are attributable to it will flow to the 
Company.

 Intangible assets acquired separately 
are measured on initial recognition 
at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less 
any accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses.

(i)  Amortisation
 Amortisation is calculated using the 

straight–line method to write-down the 
cost of intangible assets to their residual 
values over their estimated useful lives as 
follows;

Asset Category Amortisation rate 
(per annum)

Computer Software 12.50%
 
The residual value of the intangible asset is zero.

3.3.4 Impairment of non–financial assets
 The Company assesses at each reporting 

date whether there is an indication that 
an asset may be impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing 
for an asset is required, the Company 
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 
An asset’s recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs 
to sell and its value in use. Where the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds 
its recoverable amount, the asset is 
considered impaired and is written down 
to its recoverable amount.
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 In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre–tax 
discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. In 
determining fair value less costs to sell, an 
appropriate valuation model is used.

3.4 Leases
 The determination of whether an 

arrangement is a lease or it contains 
a lease, is based on the substance 
of the arrangement and requires an 
assessment of whether the fulfilment of 
the arrangement is dependent on the 
use of a specific asset or assets and the 
arrangement conveys a right to use the 
asset.

(i)  Finance Leases – Company as a Lessee
 Finance leases that transfer substantially 

all risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of the leased item to the 
Company are classified as finance leases 
and capitalised at the commencement 
of the lease at the lower of the fair value 
of the leased property and the present 
value of the minimum lease payments. 
Lease payments are apportioned between 
finance charges and reduction of the lease 
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability.

 A leased asset is depreciated over the 
useful life of the asset. However, if there is 
no reasonable certainty that the Company 
will obtain ownership by the end of the 
lease term, the asset is depreciated over 
the shorter of the estimated useful life of 
the asset and the lease term.

(ii)  Finance Leases – Company as a lessor
 When the Company is the lessor 

under a lease agreement that transfers 
substantially all of the risks and rewards 
incidental to the ownership of the asset 
to the lessee, the net investment in lease 
(i.e. after deduction of unearned charges) 
are included in ‘loans and advances to 
banks’ or ‘loans and advances to other 
customers’, as appropriate. The finance 
income receivable is recognised in ‘interest 
income’ over the periods of the leases so 
as to achieve a constant rate of return on 
the net investment in the leases.

3.5 Inventory
 Inventory materials at reporting date 

are valued at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value, after making due 

allowance for obsolete and slow moving 
items.

3.6 Investment in associates
 Associates are those entities in which 

the company has significant influence, 
but not control, over the financial and 
operating policies. Significant influence 
is presumed to exist when the company 
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting 
power of another entity.

 The company’s investment in associate is 
accounted for using the equity method 
and is initially recognized at cost. 
Subsequently, under the equity method, 
the investment in the associate is carried 
in the statement of financial position at 
cost plus post acquisition changes in 
the company’s share of net assets of the 
associate, in terms of Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards-LKAS 28 on ‘Investments 
in Association”. The statement of 
comprehensive income reflects the 
share of the results of operations of the 
associate.

 The Group discontinues the use of the 
equity method from the date when the 
investment ceases to be an associate. 
When the company retains an interest 
in the former associate and the retained 
interest is a financial asset, the Group 
measures the retained interest at fair value 
at that date and the fair value is regarded 
as its fair value on initial recognition in 
accordance with LKAS 39. The difference 
between the carrying amount of the 
associate at the date the equity method 
was discontinued, and the fair value of 
any retained interest and any proceeds 
from disposing of a part interest in the 
associate or joint venture is included in 
the determination of the gain or loss on 
disposal of the associate. In addition, the 
group accounts for all amounts previously 
recognized in other comprehensive 
income in relation to that associate on 
the same basis as would be required if 
that associate had directly disposed of the 
related assets or liabilities.

 Therefore, if a gain or loss previously 
recognized in other comprehensive 
income by that associate would be 
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal 
of the related assets or liabilities,

3.7 Financial liabilities
3.7.1 Initial recognition and measurement
 Financial liabilities within the scope of 

LKAS 39 are classified as Due to banks, Due 

to customers (Deposits), and Borrowings 
as appropriate. The Company determines 
the classification of its financial liabilities at 
initial recognition

 The Company classifies financial liabilities 
in to financial liabilities at FVTPL or other 
financial liabilities in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangement 
and the definitions of financial liabilities.

 The Company recognizes financial 
liabilities in the Statement of Financial 
Position when the Company becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the 
financial liability.

(i)  Financial liability at FVTPL
 -  Financial liabilities at FVTPL include 

financial liabilities held-for-trading 
or designated as such upon initial 
recognition. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL 
are measured at fair value, and changes 
there in recognized in profit or loss.

 -  Upon initial recognition, transaction 
cost are directly attributable to the 
acquisition are recognized in profit or 
loss as incurred.

 -  The criteria for designation of financial 
liabilities at FVTPL upon initial 
recognition are the same as those of 
financial assets at FVTPL.

(ii)  Other financial liabilities
 Other financial liabilities including 

deposits, debt issued by the Company 
and the other borrowed funds are initially 
measured at fair value less transaction 
cost that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the EIR method. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on the 
issue and costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR.

3.7.2 De-recognition of financial liabilities
 A financial liability is de-recognised 

when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. Where 
an existing financial liability is replaced 
by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms 
of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a de-recognition 
of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability. The difference between 
the carrying value of the original financial 
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liability and the consideration paid is 
recognised in profit or loss.

3.8 Retirement benefit obligations
3.8.1 Defined benefit plan
 The defined benefit obligations measured 

using the projected credit unit method. 
The present value of the defined benefit 
obligation is determined by discounting 
the estimated future payments by 
reference to market yields at the reporting 
date on Sri Lanka government bonds that 
are denominated in the currency in which 
the benefits will be paid and that have 
terms to maturity approximately to the 
terms of the related obligation.

 Actuarial gains and losses are changed or 
credited to other comprehensive income 
in the period in which they arise.

3.8.2 Defined contribution plans
 The contribution payable to a defined 

contribution plan is in proportion to the 
services rendered to the Company by the 
employees and is recorded as an expense 
under ‘Personnel expenses’. Unpaid 
contributions are recorded as a liability.

(i)  Employees’ provident fund
 The Company and Employees contribute 

to the Provident Fund at 12% and 8% 
respectively.

(ii)  Employees’ trust fund
 The Company contributes to the 

Employees’ Trust Fund at 3%.

3.9 Provisions
 Provisions are recognised when the 

Company has a present obligation (legal 
or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. The expense 
relating to any provision is presented 
in the income statement net of any 
reimbursement.

3.10 Taxation
 Income Tax expense comprises of 

current and deferred tax. Income tax 
expense is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive Income.

3.10.1 Current tax
 Current tax assets and liabilities consist of 

amounts expected to be recovered from 
or paid to the Commissioner General of 

Inland Revenue in respect of the current 
year and any adjustment to tax payable 
in respect of prior years. The tax rates and 
tax laws used to compute the amount are 
those that are enacted or substantially 
enacted by the reporting date.

3.10.2 Deferred tax
 Deferred tax is provided using the liability 

method on temporary differences at the 
reporting period date between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purpose.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for 
all deductible differences. Carry forward 
of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses, to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profits will be available 
against which the deductible temporary 
differences and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses 
can be utilised.

 The carrying amount of a deferred tax 
asset is reviewed at each reporting date 
and reduced to the extent it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 
reassessed at each Reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profit will allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured at the tax rate that are expected 
to apply in the year when the assets are 
realised or the liabilities are settled, based 
on tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or subsequently enacted at the 
reporting date.

3.10.3 VAT on financial services
 VAT on Financial Services is calculated in 

accordance with VAT Act No. 14 of 2002 
and subsequent amendment thereto.

 The base for the computation of Value 
Added Tax on Financial Services is 
the accounting profit before VAT and 
income tax adjusted for the economic 
depreciation, computed on prescribed 
rates and emoluments of employees 
based on “Value addition attributable 
method”.

3.11 Commitments and contingencies
 All discernible risks are accounted for in 

determining the amount of all known 

liabilities. The contingencies and capital 
commitments for which the Company 
liable severally or otherwise is also 
included with appropriate disclosures.

 Contingent liabilities are possible 
obligations whose existence will be 
confirmed only by uncertain future events 
or present obligations where the transfer 
of economic benefit is not probable or 
cannot be reliably measured. Contingent 
liabilities are not recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Position but are 
disclosed unless they are remote.

3.12 Recognition of income and expenses
 Revenue is recognised to the extent that 

it is probable that the economic benefits 
will flow to the Company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. The following 
specific recognition criteria must also be 
met before revenue is recognised.

3.12.1 Interest income and interest expense
 Interest income and expense are 

recognised in profit or loss using the 
effective interest method. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts the estimated future cash 
payments and receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset or 
liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter 
period) to the carrying amount of the 
financial asset or liability. When calculating 
the effective interest rate, the Company 
estimates future cash flows considering 
all contractual terms of the financial 
instrument, but not future credit losses.

 The calculation of the effective interest 
rate includes all transaction costs and 
fees that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate. Transaction costs 
include incremental costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of a 
financial asset or liability

 Interest income and expense presented in 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
include interest on financial assets and 
liabilities measured at amortised cost 
calculated on an effective interest basis.

 Interest income on available-for-sale 
investment securities calculated on an 
effective interest basis is also included in 
interest income.

 Once a financial asset or a group of similar 
financial assets has been written down 
as a result of an impairment loss, interest 
income is recognised using the rate of 
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interest used to discount the future cash 
flows for the purpose of measuring the 
impairment loss.

3.12.2 Fee and commission income
 Fees and commission income and 

expense that are integral to the effective 
interest rate on a financial asset or liability 
are included in the measurement of the 
effective interest rate.

 Fees and commission income, including 
account servicing fees, investment 
management fees, sales commission, 
placement fees and syndication fees are 
recognised as the related services are 
performed.

 Other fees and commission expense relate 
mainly to transaction and service fees, 
which are expensed as the services are 
received. Fee and commission expenses 
are recognised on an accrual basis.

3.12.3 Dividend income
 Dividend income is recognised in the 

Statement of Income on an accrual basis 
when the Company’s right to receive the 
dividend is established.

3.14 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
 Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the 

profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of the company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the period.

 The Company’s diluted earnings per 
ordinary share is equal to the basic 
earnings per ordinary share since the 
Company does not have any convertible 
securities as at the reporting date.

3.15 Cash flow statement
 The cash flow statement has been 

prepared using ‘The Direct Method’, 
whereby gross cash receipts and gross 
cash payments of operating activities, 
finance activities and investing activities 
have been recognised. Cash and cash 
equivalents comprise of cash in hand, cash 
at bank and bank overdrafts.

3.16 Segment reporting
 The Company does not have any 

operating segment that engages in 
business activities from which it may earn 
revenues, and on which expenses incurred 
whose operating results are regularly 
reviewed by the entity’s management to 
determine the resources to be allocated to 
the segment and assess its performance 
for which discrete financial information is 
available.

4. New Accounting Standards that are 
effective and Issued But Not Yet Effective 
are stated below;

 A number of new standards and 
amendments to standards, which have 
been issued but not yet effective as at the 
Reporting date, have not been applied 
in preparing these Financial Statements. 
Accordingly, the following Accounting 
Standards have not been applied in 
preparing these Financial Statements 
and the Company plans to apply these 
standards on the respective effective 
dates:

4.1 New accounting standards issued but 
not effective

 The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Sri Lanka has issued the following new Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards that have an 
effective date in the future and have not 
yet been applied in preparing the financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 
2018. 

4.2 Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (SLFRS 
9) – Financial Instruments: Classification 
and measurement

 This standard applies to classification 
and measurement of financial assets 
and liabilities as defined in LKAS 39. This 
standard is effective for financial periods 
beginning on or after 01 January 2018.
The Company plans to assess the potential 
impact on its Financial Statements 
resulting from the application of LKAS 39 
in the financial year 2018/ 2019.

4.3 Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (SLFRS 
15) – Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers

 SLFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive 
framework for determining whether, 
how much and when revenue is 
recognised. It replaces existing revenue 
recognition guidance, including Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standard (LKAS 18) - Revenue, 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (LKAS 
11) - Construction Contracts and IFRIC 
13 - Customer Loyalty Programmes. This 
standard is effective for the annual periods 
beginning on or after 01 January 2018. 
The Company plans to assess the potential 
impact on its Financial Statements 
resulting from the application of SLFRS 15 
in the financial year 2018/ 2019. 

4.4 Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (SLFRS 
16) - Leases 

 This standard sets outs the principles 
for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of leases and 
provides a single lessee accounting model 
requiring lessees to recognise assets and 
liabilities for all leases other than short 
term leases (lease term is 12 months or 
less) and leases for which the underlying 
asset has a low value although accounting 
for lessors remains substantially similar 
to the current practice. This standard is 
effective for the annual periods beginning 
on or after 01 January 2019. The Company 
plans to assess the potential impact on its 
Financial Statements resulting from the 
application of SLFRS 16 in the financial 
year 2018/ 2019.

4.5  Improvements and other amendments 
to SLFRS/ LKAS

 Amendments to existing accounting 
standards effective from financial period 
beginning on or after 1st January 2017 as 
published by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka did not have 
any material impact on the financial 
statements of the Company.
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Year ended 31 March 2018  2017/2018 
Rs. 

 2016/2017 
Rs. 

5. Interest income

Loans and advances given to customers  2,644,122,715  2,861,652,360 

Government securities and deposits  113,645,937  47,865,949 

 2,757,768,652  2,909,518,309 

6. Interest expense

Customer deposits  309,223,468  212,065,984 

Banks and other short term borrowings  854,836,304  656,457,461 

 1,164,059,772  868,523,445 

7. Fee and commission income

Documentation fees and other charges on loans  188,572,717  280,970,528 

 188,572,717  280,970,528 

8. Other income

Dividends  1,512,507  4,235,832 

Default income  28,953,823  13,928,941 

Income on other services  15,733,308  21,343,731 

Exchange gain  271,619  7,915,218 

Bad debtor recoveries  107,212,846  - 

 153,684,103  47,423,722 

9. Net loss from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value loss on quoted shares  (5,357,663)  (48,605,001)

Net loss on disposal of shares in associate company  -  (60,916,846)

Loss on fair value adjustment recognised for Sinhaputhra Finance PLC  -  (149,857,711)

Derivative - foreign currency forward  (3,228,300)  - 

 (8,585,963)  (259,379,558)

10. Personnel cost

Directors' emoluments  7,080,000  13,815,000 

Salaries  241,735,881  183,027,499 

Employee Provident Fund  29,007,188  23,619,900 

Employee Trust Fund  7,251,798  5,904,975 

Bonus  63,910,701  70,092,841 

Employee retirement benefit expenses  6,102,916  4,998,151 

 355,088,484  301,458,366 

11. Taxes on financial services

VAT on financial service  72,360,917  132,147,017 

NBT on financial service  9,648,123  20,921,010 

 82,009,040  153,068,027 
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Year ended 31 March 2018  2017/2018 
Rs. 

 2016/2017 
Rs. 

12. Profit before income tax

Profit before income tax is stated after charging all expenses including the following:

Directors' emoluments  7,080,000  13,815,000 

Legal expenses  2,402,850  1,550,975 

Depreciation  33,191,172  27,611,597 

Amortization of intangible assets  4,168,828  3,100,855 

Auditor's remuneration - audit  989,983  899,984 

 - non audit  188,706  171,551 

Salaries  241,735,881  183,027,499 

Employees' provident fund contributions  29,007,188  23,619,900 

Employees' trust fund contributions  7,251,798  5,904,975 

 326,016,406  259,702,336 

13. Taxation

13.1 Income tax expense 

Current taxes on income for the reporting period (Note 13.2)  38,273,051  258,338,398 

Deferred tax (Note 13.3)  38,123,532  1,792,202 

 76,396,582  260,130,600 

13.2 Reconciliation of the total tax charge

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the statutory tax rate 
is as follows:

Accounting profit as per income tax computation  223,237,068  776,347,836 

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28%  62,506,379  217,377,394 

Tax effect on allowable credits  (117,050,061)  (68,285,784)

Tax effect on non- deductible expenses  92,816,732  109,246,788 

Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss  38,273,051  258,338,398 

Effective tax rate 17% 33%

13.3 Deferred tax liability

Balance at the beginning of the year  11,529,328  9,727,541 

Originated during the year - income statement  38,123,532  1,792,202 

Originated during the year - other comprehensive income  9,686,172  9,585 

Balance at the end of the year  59,339,032  11,529,328 

Deferred tax arising from 

Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose  38,440,551  14,914,992 

Retirement benefit obligations  (6,132,551)  (3,385,664)

Revaluation of land and investment property  19,754,280  - 

Tax losses  (12,949,732)  - 

Others  20,226,483  - 

Recognized deferred tax liability  59,339,032  11,529,328 

Tax rate used 28% 28%
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14. Earnings per share
 The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of 

ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Year ended 31 March 2018  31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

Profit attributable to equity holders  146,840,486  516,217,236 

Weighted average number of shares used as denominator  107,733,344  107,733,344 

Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 1.36 4.79

15. Cash in hand & at bank

Commercial Bank  16,756,928  16,473,085 

Sampath Bank  89,164,547  70,083,163 

Seylan Bank  22,430,770  26,353,885 

People's Bank  39,138,503  20,985,506 

Bank of Ceylon  125,082,221  15,924,698 

National Development Bank  6,088,322  - 

Indian Bank  14,518,759  15,575,114 

 Union Bank  83,488  82,988 

Cargills Bank  8,459,867  4,140,099 

DFCC Bank  493,781  - 

Pan Asia Bank  542,689  865,670 

Trust HNB 01  6,202,335  - 

Cash in hand  94,766,985  55,861,264 

 423,729,195  226,345,472 

16. Placements with banks and other financial institutions

Placement with finance companies  518,927,832  457,549,924 

Placement with banks  43,332,333  505,507,331 

 562,260,165  963,057,255 

17. Financial investment - fair value through profit or loss

Investments in quoted shares (Note 17.1)  186,306,942  210,636,047 

Derivative - foreign currency forward  -  2,512,500 

 186,306,942  213,148,547 
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 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

 No of shares  Market value 
Rs. 

 No of shares  Market value 
Rs. 

17.1 Investment in quoted shares

ADAM Capital PLC  3,997,740  1,998,870 

Beruwala Resorts Limited  -  -  7,392,052  7,392,052 

Blue Diamonds Jewellery  3,454,566  2,763,653  3,454,566  3,074,287 

Browns Beach Hotels PLC  43,351  632,925 

Bogala Graphite Lanka PLC  79,092  1,091,470  -  - 

Ceylon Hotels Corporation PLC  98,251  1,473,765  -  - 

CM Holdings PLC  77,000  5,682,600  -  - 

Commercial Bank Of Ceylon  80,629  10,949,418  -  - 

CIC Holdings PLC  65,455  3,855,300  -  - 

Ceylon And Foreign Traders PLC  -  -  271,486  1,248,836 

Dipped Products PLC  -  -  47,943  3,643,668 

First Capital Holdings PLC  -  -  208,286  4,186,548 

George Steuart Finance Limited  -  -  -  - 

John Keells Holdings Ltd  -  -  271,187  37,396,687 

John Keells PLC  2,380  140,658 

Kalpitiya Beach Resort Limited  -  -  121,399  327,777 

Lanka Cement Ltd  28,838  4,556,404  -  - 

Orient Garments Limited  12,888  -  12,888  - 

Pc Pharma Limited  -  -  541,930  162,579 

Sigiriya Village Hotels PLC  -  -  8,800  523,600 

Sinhaputhra Finance PLC  12,546,190  150,554,280  12,546,190  144,087,985 

Seylan Development PLC  -  -  424,112  5,937,568 

Swarnamahal Financial Services PLC  -  -  136,959  95,871 

Textured Jersey Lanka PLC  -  -  69,151  2,558,587 

The Kandy Hotels Company PLC  492,000  2,607,600  -  - 

 186,306,942  210,636,047 

 31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

18. Financial investment - loans and receivables

Government of Sri Lanka treasury bills  234,168,463  212,411,900 

Investments in repos  -  100,000,000 

 234,168,463  312,411,900 

19. Financial investments -held to maturity

Government of Sri Lanka - treasury bond  41,661,445  37,711,584 

 41,661,445  37,711,584 

20. Financial investments - available for sale

Unquoted shares - Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka

No of shares

Cost of investment  100  100 

 193,900  193,900 

Note: These unquoted Available-for-sale equity investments are recorded at cost, since the fair value of the investments cannot be reliably estimated. There is no 
market for these investments and company intends to hold these in the long term.
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 31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

21. Loans and advances 

Gross loans and receivables (Note 21.1)  7,723,718,599  9,612,215,972 

Allowance for impairment losses  (203,542,122)  (303,025,825)

Net loans and receivables  7,520,176,477  9,309,190,147 

21.1 Product wise loans and receivable

Loans  7,292,372,956  9,431,944,615 

Leases  341,455,434  174,570,046 

Hire purchase  406,948  406,948 

Gold loans  89,483,261  5,294,363 

 7,723,718,599  9,612,215,972 

21.2 Lease receivable

Gross rentals receivable  501,486,488  267,778,444 

Unearned income  (159,804,245)  (93,105,628)

 341,682,243  174,672,816 

Rentals receivable on leased assets

Lease receivable within one year

Gross rentals receivable  143,769,108  72,043,388 

Unearned income  (48,881,497)  (25,049,234)

 94,887,611  46,994,154 

Lease receivable after one year and not later than five years

Gross rentals receivable  357,717,379  195,735,056 

Unearned income  (110,922,748)  (68,056,394)

 246,794,631  127,678,662 

There were no lease receivables beyond five years.

21.3 Hire-purchases receivable

Gross rentals receivable  840,472  840,472 

Unearned income  (433,524)  (433,524)

 406,948  406,948 

21.4 Allowance for impairment losses

Movement in impairment allowance for loans and advances

Balance as at the beginning of the period  303,025,825  137,354,271 

Net impairment charge for the period  472,682,026  165,671,554 

Written off during the period  (572,165,729)  - 

Balance as at the end of the period  203,542,122  303,025,825 
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 31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

21.4.1 Movement in individual impairment allowance

Balance as at the beginning of the period  150,504,649  - 

Net impairment charge for the period  238,096,136  150,504,649 

Written off during the period  (387,187,330)  - 

Balance as at the end of the period  1,413,455  150,504,649 

21.4.2 Movement in collective impairment allowance 

Balance as at the beginning of the period  152,521,176  137,354,271 

Net impairment charge for the period  234,585,890  15,166,905 

Written off during the period  (184,978,399)  - 

Balance as at the end of the period  202,128,667  152,521,176 

22. Other receivable

Deposits and prepayments  151,536,599  118,696,593 

VAT receivable  5,329,200  5,329,200 

Sundry debtors  695,974  20,884,311 

Other receivable  1,088,032  5,749,376 

Deferred expense  150,944  875,478 

 158,800,749  151,534,958 

23. Inventories

Promotional items  609,781  3,331,157 

Stationeries  -  5,531,785 

 609,781  8,862,942 

24. Investment properties

Balance at the end of the year  538,785,000  206,019,000 

24.1 Fair value of investment properties

Location

Ullai Kadu-60th Mile Post, Kiravalkuli Urani in Panama Pathu  27,000,000  22,000,000 

Total Extent 09A-00R-00P (3.6420 Hectares) Lot No. 01 

Kayankerny Village in Irral Odai  31,635,000  30,000,000 

Total Extent 04A-00R-26P (1.6845 Hectares) Lot No. 01 & 02 

Panama Pathu in Urani (60th Mile Post)  14,850,000  10,500,000 

Total Extent 04A-03R-32P (2.004 Hectares) Lot No. 01, 02 & 03 

Next to the D & A Showroom, Piliyandala Road, Borelasgamuwa  -  143,519,000 

Total Extent 00A-02R-10P (0.23 Hectares) Lot No. 02 

No 39/8, Edirisinghe Road, Palenwatta.  218,000,000  - 

Total Extent 01A-00R-00P

No.584, Hospital Road, Jaffna - Land and Building  247,300,000  - 

Total extent 00A-1R-24.11P (0.3228 Hectares) Lot No. 01

 538,785,000  206,019,000 

Mr. K. J. D. Tissara, (Chartered Valuation Surveyor) and S. Jeganathan (Incorporated valuer) valued these properties in March 2018. The valuers are independent 
government registered valuers, not related to the company. They have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of properties.
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 31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

24.2 Investment property - Transfer gain/(loss)

Total Extent 01A-00R-00P  205,269,000 

No 39/8, Edirisinghe Road, Palenwatta.

Next to the D & A Showroom, Piliyandala Road, Borelasgamuwa  (143,519,000)

Total Extent 00A-02R-10P (0.23 Hectares) Lot No. 02 

No. 19/5, Sri Sunandarama Road, Kalubowila  (61,750,000)

Total Extent 0A - 0R - 20.50P 

Gain/ (loss)  - 

During the year the Company has acquired land worth Rs.205Mn from Olympus Construction (Pvt) Ltd who is a related party. In lieu of the said land, the 
Company has given two of its properties, namely the Boralesgamuwa Land valued at 143.5Mn and the Kalubowilla Land valued at Rs. 61.7Mn. 

24.3  Direct operating expenses arising from investment properties
 During the financial year no direct operation expenses incurred for investment properties. 

 31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

25. Property and equipment

Freehold (Note 25.1)

Land  63,612,000  78,257,000 

Building  6,388,000  - 

Furniture and fittings  42,984,639  39,861,780 

Motor vehicles  19,043,439  22,023,882 

Office equipment  49,686,136  37,915,418 

Computer and accessories  45,821,089  29,751,038 

 227,535,303  207,809,118 

Leasehold (Note 25.2)

Office equipment  55,067,133  19,116,319 

Motor vehicle  16,198,787  61,004,808 

 71,265,920  80,121,127 

Total  298,801,223  287,930,245 
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25.1 Freehold assets

Land

Rs.

Building

Rs.

Furniture and
fittings

Rs.

Motor vehicle

Rs.

Office
equipment

Rs.

Computers 
and 

accessories
Rs.

Total

Rs.

Cost

Balance as at 01 April 2016  78,257,000  -  37,330,598  36,050,560  27,938,838  40,841,633  220,418,629 

Additions  -  -  16,415,282  20,845,778  8,854,944  46,116,003 

Balance as at 31 March 2017  78,257,000  -  53,745,880  36,050,560  48,784,616  49,696,577  266,534,633 

Additions  -  21,243,000  10,375,985  -  18,940,263  23,002,904  73,562,152 

Disposal  (40,507,000)  (21,243,000)  -  -  -  -  (61,750,000)

Transfers  (6,388,000)  6,388,000 

Revaluation reserve  32,250,000  -  -  -  -  -  32,250,000 

Balance as at 31 March 2018  63,612,000  6,388,000  64,121,865  36,050,560  67,724,879  72,699,481  310,596,785 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 01 April 2016  -  -  8,180,494  11,279,035  6,059,688  14,346,894  39,866,111 

Charge for the year  -  -  5,703,606  2,747,643  4,809,510  5,598,645  18,859,405 

Balance as at 31 March 2017  -  -  13,884,100  14,026,678  10,869,198  19,945,539  58,725,515 

Charge for the year  -  7,253,126  2,980,443  7,169,545  6,932,853  24,335,967 

Balance as at 31 March 2018  -  -  21,137,226  17,007,121  18,038,743  26,878,392  83,061,482 

Net book value

as at 31 March 2017  78,257,000  -  39,861,780  22,023,882  37,915,418  29,751,038  207,809,118 

as at 31 March 2018  63,612,000  6,388,000  42,984,639  19,043,439  49,686,136  45,821,089  227,535,303 

Year ended 31 March 2018 Office
equipment

Rs. 

Motor vehicle 
 

Rs.

Total
 

Rs.

25.2 Leasehold assets

Cost

Balance as at 01 April 2017  23,340,254  71,055,000  94,395,254 

Additions  -  -  - 

Transfer from freehold asset  -  -  - 

Balance as at 31 March 2018  23,340,254  71,055,000  94,395,254 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 01 April 2017  4,223,935  10,050,192  14,274,127 

Charge for the year  2,917,532  5,937,675  8,855,207 

Disposals  -  -  - 

Balance as at 31 March 2018  7,141,467  15,987,867  23,129,334 

Net book value

as at 31 March 2017  19,116,319  61,004,808  80,121,127 

as at 31 March 2018  16,198,787  55,067,133  71,265,920 
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25.3 Title restriction on property and equipment 
 There were no restriction on the title of property and equipment as at 31 March 2018 (2017 : Nil)

25.4  Property and equipment pledged as security for liabilities
 Land and building included in property and equipment amounting to Rs. 70 Mn and land included in investment properties amounting to 465 Mn  

(Note 24.1) has been pledged as a security to the Indian Bank and Hatton National Bank for the term loan facilities.

25.5  Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment in use
 During the year fully depreciated property, plant and equipment are not in use.

25.6 Mr. K. J. D. Tissara, (Chartered Valuation Surveyor) valued the freehold land and buildings in March 2018. The valuer is an independent government 
registered valuers, not related to the company. The valuer has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of properties. The 
revalued land and buildings is located at No. 15, Nugegoda Road, Pepiliyana with the total extent of 15.92 Perches.

 Computer 
 software 

26. Intangible assets

Cost

Balance as at 1 April 2016  22,024,541 

Addition  5,221,497 

Balance as at 31 March 2017  27,246,038 

Addition  15,180,613 

Balance as at 31 March 2018  42,426,651 

Accumulated amortization

Balance as at 1 April 2016  6,994,613 

Charge for the year  3,100,854 

Balance as at 31 March 2017  10,095,467 

Charge for the year  4,168,828 

Balance as at 31 March 2018  14,264,295 

Carrying value at the beginning of the year  17,150,571 

Carrying value at the end of the year  28,162,356 

 31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

27. Borrowings

Overdraft  200,910,391  188,653,196 

Loans  5,724,619,904  6,391,822,685 

Lease creditor  26,210,831  52,511,967 

Commercial paper  -  226,201,872 

 5,951,741,126  6,859,189,720 
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 31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

27.1 Loans

Indian Bank  144,424,000  512,768,000 

Bank of Ceylon  361,666,610  482,324,959 

Sampath Bank  859,816,000  654,012,000 

People's Bank  269,350,000  349,750,000 

Securitisation  1,483,863,988  1,332,772,247 

HDFC Bank  16,506,616  52,426,978 

National Development Bank  500,000,000  625,000,000 

National Savings Bank  147,777,778  190,000,000 

INCOFIN Investment  -  228,225,000 

Blue Orchard (USD)  354,355,650  342,337,500 

INCOFIN (EURO)  819,719,460  694,806,000 

Central Finance  91,267,080  335,604,933 

Cargills Bank  168,175,000  88,275,000 

Pan Asia Bank  125,000,000  125,000,000 

DFCC  89,999,998  - 

UB Finance  -  89,997,500 

First Capital  45,549,183  - 

Peoples Leasing  -  200,000,000 

Hatton National Bank  150,000,000  - 

Interest payable  97,148,541  88,522,569 

 5,724,619,904  6,391,822,685 
 

27.2 Securities pledged

Lender Facility amount 

Rs.

Outstanding capital
balance as at 

31.03.2018
Rs.

 Security details

Indian Bank  400,000,000  144,424,000 Corporate guarantee from Daya Group (Pvt) Limited and land situated 
at infant of Sunethra Devi Pirivena, Pepiliyana junction company belong 
15.95p and 39/8, Edirisinghe road, Pelanwatta.

People's Bank  400,000,000  269,350,000 Corporate guarantee from Daya Group (Pvt) Limited

Bank of Ceylon  550,000,000  361,666,610 Corporate guarantee from Daya Group (Pvt) Limited

Sampath Bank  1,100,000,000  859,816,000 Corporate guarantee from Daya Group (Pvt) Limited 

HDFC Bank  100,000,000  16,506,616 Mortgage 1.25 times of micro finance loan receivables on loan outstanding

Central Finance PLC  300,000,000  91,267,080 Corporate guarantee from Daya Group (Pvt) Limited

NDB Bank  500,000,000  500,000,000 Corporate guarantee from Daya Group (Pvt) Limited

National Savings Bank  200,000,000  147,777,778 Corporate guarantee from Daya Group (Pvt) Limited

Cargills Bank  100,000,000  168,175,000 Corporate guarantee from Daya Group (Pvt) Limited

Pan Asia Bank  125,000,000  125,000,000 Corporate guarantee from Daya Group (Pvt) Limited

DFCC  100,000,000  89,999,998 Corporate guarantee from Daya Group (Pvt) Limited

HNB  150,000,000  150,000,000 Land situated at N0-584,Hospital Road, Jaffna Town

First Capital Holdings (Pvt) Ltd  45,549,183  45,549,183 No security provided

Securitisation credit facility  1,783,362,006  1,483,863,988 Mortgage 1.25 times of micro finance loan receivables on loan outstanding

Blue Orchard  USD 2,250,000  354,355,650 Mortgage 1.1 times of micro finance loan receivables on loan outstanding.

Incofin CVSO  EUR 4,200,000  819,719,460 Mortgage 1 times of micro finance loan receivables on loan outstanding 
and 642 million mortgage bond.
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 31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

28. Due to customers

Customers deposits  2,184,344,230  2,935,990,877 

28.1 Product wise analysis of due to other customers

Savings  701,238,011  868,781,793 

Time deposits  1,483,106,219  2,067,209,084 

 2,184,344,230  2,935,990,877 

29. Other payables

Other financial liabilities (Note 29.1)  13,059,677  9,511,816 

Other non financial liabilities (Note 29.2)  58,780,370  87,242,495 

 71,840,047  96,754,311 

29.1 Other financial liabilities

Employees' Provident Fund  3,874,279  3,730,061 

Employees' Trust Fund  581,068  559,713 

Statutory audit fees  1,178,689  1,071,536 

Standing orders to other banks  278,756  252,231 

Member protection  6,431,085  3,898,275 

Derivative - Currency forward  715,800  - 

 13,059,677  9,511,816 

29.2 Other non financial liabilities

VAT on financial services  33,338,015  52,432,060 

Withholding taxes  344,338  7,916,117 

PAYE tax payable  -  48,111 

Nations building tax payable  4,445,134  8,159,840 

Stamp duty payables  204,807  215,759 

Sundry creditors  13,954,301  1,954,329 

Excess collection  1,402,105  7,105 

Building rent payable  837,000  60,000 

Other payable  4,254,670  16,449,175 

  58,780,370  87,242,495 

30. Current tax liability/ (receivable)

Balance at the beginning of the year  72,883,629  199,453,860 

Provision made during the year  38,273,051  258,338,398 

Tax paid during the year  (185,106,564)  (367,714,596)

Economic Service Charge  (15,009,286)  (11,550,388)

Withholding taxes  (8,838,447)  (2,553,464)

Notional tax  (2,157,586)  (3,090,181)

 (99,955,203)  72,883,629 
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 31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

31. Retirement benefit obligation

Balance at the beginning of the year  12,091,656  7,127,738 

Charge for the year  6,102,916  890,967 

Interest expense for the year  1,541,685  4,107,184 

Payment made during the year  (177,760)  - 

Actuarial (gain)/ loss arising from changes in the assumptions  2,343,471  (34,233)

Balance at the end of the year  21,901,968  12,091,656 

Principal assumptions made in ascertaining the retirement benefit obligations as at the reporting date are as follows:

 2017/2018  2016/2017 

Discount rate 10.00% 12.75%

Future salary increase 10.00% 10.00%

Retirement age  55 Years  55 Years 

Sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions employed with all other variables held constant in the 
employment benefit liability measures. 

Factor % of change Present value of defined benefit obligations

Rs.

Discount rate +1%  20,763,008 

-1%  23,163,969 

Salary increment rate +1%  23,108,434 

-1%  20,792,580 

 31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

32. Stated capital

Voting ordinary shares

As at the beginning of the year  616,100,061  616,100,061 

As at the end of the year  616,100,061  616,100,061 

Reconciliation of number of shares

Voting ordinary shares  107,733,344  107,733,344 

33. Statutory reserve

As at the beginning of the year  64,500,301  38,689,438 

Transferred during the year  7,342,024  25,810,862 

As at the end of the year  71,842,325  64,500,301 

The reserve fund was created to comply with the direction No. 1 of 2003 issued by the Central Bank under finance companies Act No. 78 of 1988.
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34. Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

 Capital commitments
 There were no material capital commitments as at the date of Statement of Financial Position.
 

 Contingent liabilities
 The Company has granted guarantees amounting to Rs. 9,881,567 to the third parties on behalf of the customers.

 Other than the above, the Company confirms that there is no contingent liabilities of the Company which is not disclosed which would have a material 
impact on the financial position of the Company.

35. Related party disclosures
 The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of its business at arm’s length basis with parties who are defined as related parties in the Sri 

Lanka Accounting Standard LKAS 24: “Related Party Disclosures” The pricing applicable to such transactions is based on the assessment of risk and pricing 
model of the Company and is comparable with what is applied to transactions between the Company and its unrelated customers.

35.1 Parent and ultimate controlling party
 The Company does not have an identifiable parent of its own.

35.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP)
 Key Management Personnel (KMP) are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. The 

Company considered the members of its board and corporate management as KMP since they have the authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Company. Accordingly, the Directors of the Company (including executive and non-executive Directors), 
have been classified as KMP of the Company as at 31 March 2018. The compensation payments made to KMP’s are given below:

 31.03.2018 
Rs. 

 31.03.2017 
Rs. 

Short term employee benefits  14,555,000  13,815,000 

 14,555,000  13,815,000 

Deposits held by KMP with the company 

Fixed deposits  35,676,833  1,405,781 

Savings deposits  569,804  14,935,374 

 36,246,637  16,341,154 
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35.3 Transactions with related entities

The name of the 
Related Party

The 
relationship 
between the 

Entity and 
the Related 

Party

Value of the 
Related party 
Transactions 
entered into 
during the 

financial year

 Aggregate 
Value of 

related party 
transactions 

entered during 
the year 

Aggregate 
Value of 

related party 
transactions 
as a % of net 

revenue

Outstanding 
receivable 

balance as at 
31 March 2018

Terms and conditions 
of the related party 

transactions

Nature of the 
related party 
transaction

Daya Apparel Export 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 12,500,000  12,500,000 0.78%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Apparel Export 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 14,000,000  26,500,000 1.66%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Apparel Export 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 2,500,000  29,000,000 1.81%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Apparel Export 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 9,000,000  38,000,000 2.38%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Aviation (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 4,500,000  4,500,000 0.28%  3,352,408 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Aviation (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 4,500,000  9,000,000 0.56%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Aviation (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 3,800,000  12,800,000 0.80%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Aviation (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 4,100,000  16,900,000 1.06%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Aviation (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 7,900,000  24,800,000 1.55%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Group (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 125,000,000  125,000,000 7.82%  117,734,210 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Group (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 10,000,000  135,000,000 8.44%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Group (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 25,000,000  160,000,000 10.01%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Group (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 20,000,000  180,000,000 11.26%  20,239,568 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Olympus Construction 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 10,000,000  10,000,000 0.63%  9,422,762 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Olympus Construction 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 25,000,000  35,000,000 2.19%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Olympus Construction 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 16,000,000  51,000,000 3.19%  15,031,128 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Olympus Construction 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 10,000,000  61,000,000 3.81%  9,758,402 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Olympus Construction 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 17,300,000  78,300,000 4.90%  16,778,149 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Olympus Construction 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 -  - 0.00%  36,092,393 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Olympus Construction 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 -  - 0.00%  16,114,849 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Olympus Construction 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 -  - 0.00%  19,538,559 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Olympus Construction 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 -  - 0.00%  1,450,641 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Olympus Construction 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 -  - 0.00%  17,750,855 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Building Solutions (Pvt) 
Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 3,500,000  3,500,000 0.22%  2,471,217 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 
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The name of the 
Related Party

The 
relationship 
between the 

Entity and 
the Related 

Party

Value of the 
Related party 
Transactions 
entered into 
during the 

financial year

 Aggregate 
Value of 

related party 
transactions 

entered during 
the year 

Aggregate 
Value of 

related party 
transactions 
as a % of net 

revenue

Outstanding 
receivable 

balance as at 
31 March 2018

Terms and conditions 
of the related party 

transactions

Nature of the 
related party 
transaction

Building Solutions (Pvt) 
Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 2,000,000  5,500,000 0.34%  2,000,000 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Building Solutions (Pvt) 
Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 -  - 0.00%  7,780,120 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

D & A Fashions (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 11,000,000  11,000,000 0.69%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

D & A Fashions (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 3,500,000  14,500,000 0.91%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

D & A Fashions (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 20,000,000  34,500,000 2.16%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Anoma Electro 
Mechanical Engineering 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 4,000,000  4,000,000 0.25%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Anoma Apparel (Pvt) 
Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 -  - 0.00%  15,364,607 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Daya Trading Company 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 9,000,000  9,000,000 0.56%  9,104,426 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Delicia (Pvt) Ltd Affiliated 
Company

 1,000,000  1,000,000 0.06%  1,000,000 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Digamadulla Fashion 
(Pvt) Ltd

Affiliated 
Company

 -  - 0.00%  15,785,152 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Varna Limited Affiliated 
Company

 5,000,000  5,000,000 0.31%  - 18%, Revolving facility Business Transaction 

Note- The above facilitates are secured by Corporate guarantees of Daya Group (Pvt) Ltd

35.4 The Company has entered into above transactions at interest rates comparable to the average commercial rate of interest. The loan receivable balance 
from above related parties are included under note 21 in these financial statements. In addition, to the above transactions, payments amounting to  
Rs. 57.10Mn and Rs. 49.30Mn were made to Daya Group (Pvt) Ltd and Daya Aviation (Pvt) Ltd respectively on behalf of services provided to the Company; 
Further, the salaries of all staff members of affiliated companies are paid through the savings accounts they maintained with the Company.

36. Events after the reporting period
 No circumstances have arisen since the reporting period which would require adjustments to, or disclosure in the Financial Statements, other than those 

disclosed below.

37. Risk management 
 Introduction
 Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk 

limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is 
accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Company is primarily exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. It is 
also subject to various operating risks.

 Risk management structure
 The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management strategies and principles.

 The Board has appointed a subcommittee, Integrated Risk Management (IRM) Committee, which has the responsibility to monitor the overall risk process 
within the Company.

 The IRM Committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and implementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits. 
The IRM Committee is responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels and reports on a periodical basis to the Board.

35. Related party disclosures (Contd.)

35.3 Transactions with related entities (Contd.)
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 Credit risk
 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a borrower or counterparty to a financial instrument, fails to meet its contractual obligations, and 

arises principally from the Company’s loans and advances to customers/other companies and investments in debt securities. Credit risk constitutes the 
Company’s largest risk exposure category. This can be broadly categorised into three types; default, concentration and settlement risk.

 Default risk as the risk of the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of customer or counterparty to meet its debt or contractual obligations and 
arises principally from the Company’s loans and advances to customers.

 Concentration risk is the credit exposure being concentrated as a result of excessive build-up of exposure to a single counterparty, industry, product, 
geographical location or insufficient diversification.

 Settlement risk is the risk of loss arising from trading/investment activities when there is a mutual undertaking to deliver on a progressive basis. 

 Analysis of credit risk exposure
 The Company seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral comes in various forms such as cash, vehicles, 

real estate and other non-financial assets. The fair value of collateral is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and based on the guidelines issued 
by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

 Credit quality by class of financial assets
 The tables below show the credit quality by the class of asset for all financial assets exposed to credit risk. The amounts presented are gross of 

impairment allowances.

As at 31.03.2018 Neither past due 
nor impaired*

Rs.

Past due and 
impaired

Rs.

Total
 

Rs.

Financial assets

Cash in hand and at bank  423,729,195  -  423,729,195 

Placements with bank and other financial institutions  562,260,165  -  562,260,165 

Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss  186,306,942  -  186,306,942 

Financial investments - Loans and receivables  234,168,463  -  234,168,463 

Financial investments -held to maturity  41,661,445  -  41,661,445 

Financial investments - available for sale  193,900  -  193,900 

Loans and advances  7,296,131,408  427,587,191  7,723,718,599 

 8,744,451,518  427,587,191  9,172,038,709 

 Definition of past due
 The Company considers that any amounts uncollected one day or more beyond their contractual due date as ‘past due’. 

 Age analysis of past due (i.e. facilities in arrears of 1 day and above) loans and receivables by class of financial assets are given below.

 < 3 months  > 3 & <= 6  > 6 & <=12  >12  Total 

As at 31.03.2018

Loans and advances  26,359,085  52,262,860  199,204,356  -  277,826,301 

Finance lease  -  -  -  -  - 

As at 31.03.2017

Loans and advances  57,460,257  50,439,083  176,919,106  130,445,806  415,264,252 

Finance lease  -  -  -  -  - 
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 Liquidity Risk and Funding Management
 Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled 

by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company might be unable to meet its payment 
obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources in 
addition to its deposit base, and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in mind and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily 
basis.

 The Company’s primary objective in liquidity risk management is to ensure adequate funding for its businesses throughout market cycles, including 
periods of financial stress. To achieve this objective the Company regularly analyses and monitors liquidity positions and, maintain an adequate margin of 
safety in liquid assets.

 Further the Company is maintaining assets in the form of Sri Lankan government treasury bills and government securities equivalent to 7.5% of the 
average of its month end total deposit liabilities and unsecured borrowings of the 12 months preceding financial year. 

 Analysis of Financial Assets And Liabilities By Remaining Contractual Maturities

 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2018:

On demand

Rs. ’000

Less than 03
months
Rs. ’000

03 - 12 months

Rs. ’000

01 - 05 years

Rs. ’000

Over 05 years

Rs. ’000

Total

Rs. ’000

Financial assets

Cash in hand and at bank  423,729  -  -  -  -  423,729 

Placements with bank and other financial 
institutions

 -  562,260  -  -  -  562,260 

Financial investments - fair value through 
profit or loss

 -  186,307  -  -  -  186,307 

Financial investments - Loans and 
receivables

 234,168  -  -  -  -  234,168 

Financial investments -held to maturity  41,661  -  -  -  -  41,661 

Financial investments - available for sale  -  -  -  -  194  194 

Loans and advances  -  1,859,587  2,675,797  2,984,792  775,931  8,296,107 

Total financial assets  699,559  2,608,155  2,675,797  2,984,792  776,125  9,744,428 

Financial liabilities

Due to banks  701,238  763,410  227,087  492,609  -  2,184,344 

Borrowings  -  1,753,575  2,420,010  1,778,156  -  5,951,741 

Other financial liabilities  -  71,840  -  21,902  59,339  153,081 

Total financial liabilities  701,238  2,588,825  2,647,097  2,292,667  59,339  8,289,166 

Total net financial assets/(liabilities)  (1,679)  19,329  28,700  692,125  716,786  1,455,261 

 Market risk
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest 

rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Company classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non–trading portfolios and manages 
each of those portfolios separately.

 Interest rate risk
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 

Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest 
rates. The Company policy is to continuously monitor interest rates on regular basis. The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced 
portfolio of fixed and variable rate financial assets and financial liabilities.

 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March 2018 to a 
reasonable possible change in interest rates, with all other variable constant.

37. Risk management (Contd.)
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Impact on statement of profit or loss due to change in exchange rate

 31.03.2018  31.03.2017 

+0.5%  (5,379,590)  (4,075,447)

-0.5%  5,379,590  4,075,447 

 Currency risk
 Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

 Company has borrowing in foreign currency and two foreign currency saving accounts. There is an impact to the company due to change in exchange 
rate.

 31.03.2018  31.03.2017 

+ LKR1  (6,450,000)  (12,653,685)

- LKR1  6,450,000  12,653,685 

 Equity price risk
 The sensitivity analysis for equity risk reflects how changes in the fair value of equity securities at the reporting date will fluctuate in response to assumed 

changes in equity market prices. The movements in the fair value of equity securities monitored by assessing the projected changes in the fair value of 
equity securities held by the portfolios in response to assumed equity price movements of +/- 1%.

2017/2018 2016/2017

Carrying Value

Rs.

Profit before
tax

Rs.

Other
comprehensive

income
Rs.

Carrying Value

Rs.

Profit before
tax

Rs.

Other
comprehensive

income
Rs.

1% increase/decrease in equity market 
prices

Financial investment - fair value through 
profit or loss

 186,306,942  (5,357,663)  -  210,636,046  2,106,360  - 

Financial investments - available for sale  193,900  -  1,939  193,900  -  1,939 

 Operational risk
 Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to operate effectively, operational 

risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss.

 Operational risk of the Company are managed through a Board approved operational risk management policy control framework which consists of 
monitoring and responding to potential risks.

 Capital adequacy risk
 For a financial institution, capital is a buffer against insolvency. It is available to absorb unforeseen losses so the Company can remain in business. The 

more capital the Company has relative to the risks it takes, the more confidence the stakeholders are that it will meet its obligations to them. Capital 
adequacy risk arises from Company’s inability to maintain the required amount of capital which is perceived to be adequate to absorb the risk.

 The Company manages its capital considering regulatory capital requirements. The Central Bank of Sri Lanka (CBSL) sets and monitors capital 
requirements for licensed finance companies in Sri Lanka. Thus the Company’s operations are directly supervised by the CBSL and the Company is 
required to comply Directions on Risk Weighted Capital Adequacy Ratio issued by CBSL. Licensed Finance Companies in Sri Lanka need to maintain a 
minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 10 percent and a Core Capital Ratio (Tier 1) of at least 5 percent.

 As of 31 March 2018, the Company has maintained Risk Weighted Capital Adequacy Ratio above the CBSL’s capital requirements.
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38. Maturity analysis

Up to 3
Months
Rs. ’000

3 to 12
Months
Rs. ’000

More than
1 to 3 years

Rs. ’000

More than
3 to 5 years

Rs. ’000

More than
5 years
Rs. ’000

Total as at 
31.03.2018

Rs. ’000

Assets

Cash  94,767  -  -  -  -  94,767 

Due from banks  328,962  -  -  -  -  328,962 

Investments  513,353  511,044  -  -  194  1,024,591 

Loans and advances  1,859,587  2,675,797  1,236,528  775,931  972,333  7,520,176 

Property and equipment intangible assets 
and investment properties

 -  -  -  -  865,749  865,749 

Other assets  159,411  99,955  -  -  -  259,366 

Total assets  2,956,080  3,286,796  1,236,528  775,931  1,838,275  10,093,611 

Total capital fund  -  -  -  -  1,804,444  1,804,444 

Deposits  924,355  540,293  227,087  492,609  -  2,184,344 

Borrowings  1,753,575  2,420,010  1,488,336  289,820  -  5,951,741 

Other liabilities  71,840  -  21,902  -  59,339  153,081 

Total liabilities  2,749,770  2,960,303  1,737,325  782,429  1,863,784  10,093,611 

Maturity gap  206,310  326,493  (500,797)  (6,498)  (25,508)  - 

Cumulative gap  206,310  532,803  32,006  25,508  -  - 

38.1 Analysis of financial instruments by measurement basis
 Financial instruments are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortised cost. The summary of significant accounting policies 

describes how each category of financial instruments is measured and how income and expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognised. 
The following table analyses the carrying amounts of the financial instruments by category as defined in Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 39 
‘Financial Instruments : Recognition and Measurement’ under the headings of the Statement of Financial Position.

38.2 Analysis of financial instruments by measurement basis - as at 31.03.2018

 Held for trading  Loans and 
receivables 

 Held to maturity  Available for 
sale 

 Total 

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances  -  423,729,195  -  -  423,729,195 

Placements with banks  -  562,260,165  -  -  562,260,165 

Financial assets - fair value through profit or loss  186,306,942  -  -  -  186,306,942 

Financial assets - loans & receivables  -  234,168,463  -  -  234,168,463 

Financial assets - held to maturity  -  -  41,661,445  -  41,661,445 

Financial assets - available for sale  -  -  -  193,900  193,900 

Loans and advances  -  7,520,176,477  -  -  7,520,176,477 

Total financial assets  186,306,942  8,740,334,300  41,661,445  193,900  8,968,496,586 

 FL at FVTPL  Other FL  Total 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings  -  5,951,741,126  5,951,741,126 

Due to customers  -  2,184,344,230  2,184,344,230 

Other financial liabilities  715,800  12,343,877  13,059,677 

Total financial liabilities  715,800  8,148,429,233  8,149,145,033 
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38.3 Analysis of financial instruments by measurement basis - as at 31.03.2017  

 Held for trading  Loans and 
receivables 

 Held to maturity  Available for 
sale 

 Total 

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances  -  226,345,472  -  -  226,345,472 

Placements with banks  -  963,057,255  -  -  963,057,255 

Financial assets - Fair value through profit or loss  213,148,547  -  -  -  213,148,547 

 - 

Financial assets - loans & receivables  -  312,411,900  -  -  312,411,900 

Financial assets - held to maturity  -  -  37,711,584  -  37,711,584 

Financial assets - available for sale  -  -  -  193,900  193,900 

Loans and advances  -  9,309,190,146  -  -  9,309,190,146 

Total financial assets  213,148,547  10,811,004,773  37,711,584  193,900  11,062,058,804 

 FL at FVTPL  Other FL  Total 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings  -  5,379,976,646  5,379,976,646 

Due to customers  -  2,208,394,434  2,208,394,434 

Other financial liabilities  -  16,557,559  16,557,559 

Total financial liabilities  -  7,604,928,640  7,604,928,640 

39. Fair value of financial instruments
 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming 

that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in its highest and best use. The Company uses various valuation methodologies that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. The use of observable 
and unobservable inputs and their significance in measuring fair value are reflected in our fair value hierarchy assessment.

39.1 Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques.

 Level 1 : category of financial assets that are measured in whole or in party by reference to published quotes in an active market.

 Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

 Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

 The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy.

Level 1
Rs.

Level 2
Rs.

Level 3
Rs.

Total
Rs.

As at 31 March 2018

Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss  186,306,942  -  -  186,306,942 

Financial investments - available for sale  -  -  193,900  193,900 

Land  -  -  63,612,000  - 

Investment property  -  -  538,785,000  - 

 186,306,942  -  602,590,900  186,500,842 

As at 31 March 2017

Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss  210,636,047  2,512,500  -  213,148,547 

Financial investments - available for sale  -  -  193,900  193,900 

Land  -  -  78,257,000  - 

Investment property  -  -  206,019,000  - 

 210,636,047  2,512,500  284,469,900  213,342,447 
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For the Year Ended 31st march  2018 
Rs. 

2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2010
Rs.

2009
Rs.

Income Statement

Gross Income  3,100,025,471  3,237,912,561  2,592,637,989  796,332,427  343,146,167  139,120,333  79,341,192  65,827,980  51,541,554  28,942,297 

Interest income  2,757,768,652  2,909,518,308  2,241,235,409  672,377,529  277,369,545  125,402,239  67,915,067  59,288,755  47,857,856  28,605,069 

Interest expenses  1,164,059,773  865,757,156  747,609,329  174,051,415  82,841,572  37,350,090  23,114,742  19,186,538  10,762,915  1,314,167 

Net interest income  1,593,708,879  2,043,761,153  1,493,626,080  498,326,113  194,527,973  88,052,149  44,800,325  40,102,216  37,094,941  27,290,902 

Other income  342,256,819  328,394,253  351,402,580  123,954,899  65,776,622  13,718,094  23,688,824  6,539,226  3,683,698  337,228 

Operating Expenses  1,630,719,594  1,463,660,549  983,004,099  436,389,801  178,737,478  68,169,353  49,784,437  34,678,039  26,368,856  16,777,293 

Share of profit of associate company  -  -  (24,196,734)  24,196,734  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Profit before tax  305,246,105  908,494,857  837,827,827  210,087,944  81,567,117  33,600,890  18,704,712  11,963,403  14,409,783  10,850,837 

Provision for taxation  158,405,622  392,277,617  336,065,583  66,541,296  18,022,884  3,201,883  2,281,966  5,423,128  7,895,950  6,146,677 

Net profit for the year  146,840,482  516,217,240  501,762,244  143,546,648  63,544,233  30,399,007  16,422,746  6,540,275  6,513,833  4,704,160 

as at 31 March

Assets

Liquid Assets  699,559,098  576,468,957  421,860,195  240,069,715  102,908,505  61,341,627  58,988,145  36,010,508  12,466,498  15,476,283 

Investments  1,287,546,008  1,382,418,702  1,746,997,564  1,110,656,490  224,998,189  43,906,098  69,253,732  40,812,323  63,226,566  57,542,625 

Inventories  609,781  8,862,943  1,815,268  1,538,918  1,959,195  12,395,776  11,339,995  26,259,668  38,854,455  - 

Loans and advances to customers  7,520,176,474  9,309,190,146  6,766,981,181  3,091,160,842  991,323,156  678,289,199  460,305,059  236,472,859  216,345,914  148,724,890 

Other Assets  258,755,956  151,534,956  80,349,840  92,494,567  19,559,284  11,593,944  24,394,353  90,927,140  65,602,238  2,670,162 

Property and equipment  326,963,580  305,080,816  280,266,629  127,546,368  81,857,012  35,618,039  35,323,950  31,728,119  23,871,281  19,621,089 

Total Assets  10,093,610,897  11,733,556,518  9,298,270,676  4,663,466,899  1,422,605,341  843,144,683  659,605,235  462,210,617  420,366,952  244,035,049 

Liabilities

Bank overdraft  200,910,390  188,653,197  32,753,490  13,605,034  5,011,838  8,792,553  4,284,064  4,442,157  22,721,482  - 

Interest Bearing Borrowings  5,750,830,735  6,670,536,525  5,347,223,156  2,549,673,304  439,795,433  45,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  -  - 

Customer deposits  2,184,344,231  2,935,990,877  2,208,394,434  1,066,474,651  547,409,039  417,995,579  373,001,448  194,538,869  120,947,090  29,656,228 

Other Liabilities  153,081,048  193,258,917  319,424,466  146,486,040  22,545,697  26,841,391  20,648,921  18,325,153  63,334,217  7,528,490 

 8,289,166,404  9,988,439,517  7,907,795,547  3,776,239,030  1,014,762,007  498,629,523  422,934,433  242,306,178  207,002,788  37,184,719 

Share Holders Fund

Stated capital  616,100,061  616,100,061  616,100,061  616,100,061  279,433,361  279,433,361  202,000,020  202,000,020  202,000,020  202,000,020 

Reserves  1,188,344,432  1,129,016,940  774,375,069  271,127,808  128,409,973  65,081,799  34,670,782  17,904,419  11,364,144  4,850,311 

Total Liabilities and Equity  10,093,610,897  11,733,556,518  9,298,270,676  4,663,466,899  1,422,605,341  843,144,683  659,605,235  462,210,617  420,366,952  244,035,049 

Information on Ordinary Shares

Earning per share (Rs)  1.36  4.79  4.66  1.33  1.59  1.13  0.83  0.32  0.32  0.23 

Net Assets per share (Rs)  16.75  16.20  12.91  8.24  15.14  12.79  11.73  10.89  10.56  10.24 

Return on Equity 8.86% 42.01% 56.46% 19.30% 18.46% 9.68% 7.46% 3.07% 3.15% 2.33%

Market price of share  44.50  59.30  62.30  40.40  53.70  15.40  38.70  -  -  - 

Ratios %

Return on shareholders fund  23.83  83.79  81.44  23.30  22.74  10.88  8.22  4.89  5.48  4.48 

Liquid Assets as a % of Deposits  32.03  19.63  19.10  22.51  18.80  14.68  15.81  18.51  10.31  52.19 

Growth in Income  (4.26)  24.89  225.57  132.07  146.65  75.34  20.53  27.72  78.08  2,732.43 

Growth in Interest Expenses  34.46  15.80  329.53  110.10  121.80  61.59  20.47  78.27  718.99  250.99 

Growth in Other Expenses  11.41  48.90  125.26  144.15  162.20  36.93  41.13  23.77  59.83  4,367.68 

Growth in Profit After Tax  (71.55)  2.88  249.55  125.90  109.03  85.10  156.36  0.41  38.47  3,118.70 

Growth in Loans & advances  (19.22)  37.57  118.91  211.82  46.15  47.36  94.65  9.30  45.47  107.57 

Growth in Deposits  (25.60)  32.95  107.07  94.82  30.96  12.06  91.74  60.85  307.83  845.37 

Growth in Shareholders' Fund  3.40  25.51  56.72  117.54  18.38  45.57  7.62  3.07  3.15  2.33 

Ten Year Summary



BIMPUTH FINANCE PLC 
Annual Report 2017-18 103

For the Year Ended 31st march  2018 
Rs. 

2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2010
Rs.

2009
Rs.

Income Statement

Gross Income  3,100,025,471  3,237,912,561  2,592,637,989  796,332,427  343,146,167  139,120,333  79,341,192  65,827,980  51,541,554  28,942,297 

Interest income  2,757,768,652  2,909,518,308  2,241,235,409  672,377,529  277,369,545  125,402,239  67,915,067  59,288,755  47,857,856  28,605,069 

Interest expenses  1,164,059,773  865,757,156  747,609,329  174,051,415  82,841,572  37,350,090  23,114,742  19,186,538  10,762,915  1,314,167 

Net interest income  1,593,708,879  2,043,761,153  1,493,626,080  498,326,113  194,527,973  88,052,149  44,800,325  40,102,216  37,094,941  27,290,902 

Other income  342,256,819  328,394,253  351,402,580  123,954,899  65,776,622  13,718,094  23,688,824  6,539,226  3,683,698  337,228 

Operating Expenses  1,630,719,594  1,463,660,549  983,004,099  436,389,801  178,737,478  68,169,353  49,784,437  34,678,039  26,368,856  16,777,293 

Share of profit of associate company  -  -  (24,196,734)  24,196,734  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Profit before tax  305,246,105  908,494,857  837,827,827  210,087,944  81,567,117  33,600,890  18,704,712  11,963,403  14,409,783  10,850,837 

Provision for taxation  158,405,622  392,277,617  336,065,583  66,541,296  18,022,884  3,201,883  2,281,966  5,423,128  7,895,950  6,146,677 

Net profit for the year  146,840,482  516,217,240  501,762,244  143,546,648  63,544,233  30,399,007  16,422,746  6,540,275  6,513,833  4,704,160 

as at 31 March

Assets

Liquid Assets  699,559,098  576,468,957  421,860,195  240,069,715  102,908,505  61,341,627  58,988,145  36,010,508  12,466,498  15,476,283 

Investments  1,287,546,008  1,382,418,702  1,746,997,564  1,110,656,490  224,998,189  43,906,098  69,253,732  40,812,323  63,226,566  57,542,625 

Inventories  609,781  8,862,943  1,815,268  1,538,918  1,959,195  12,395,776  11,339,995  26,259,668  38,854,455  - 

Loans and advances to customers  7,520,176,474  9,309,190,146  6,766,981,181  3,091,160,842  991,323,156  678,289,199  460,305,059  236,472,859  216,345,914  148,724,890 

Other Assets  258,755,956  151,534,956  80,349,840  92,494,567  19,559,284  11,593,944  24,394,353  90,927,140  65,602,238  2,670,162 

Property and equipment  326,963,580  305,080,816  280,266,629  127,546,368  81,857,012  35,618,039  35,323,950  31,728,119  23,871,281  19,621,089 

Total Assets  10,093,610,897  11,733,556,518  9,298,270,676  4,663,466,899  1,422,605,341  843,144,683  659,605,235  462,210,617  420,366,952  244,035,049 

Liabilities

Bank overdraft  200,910,390  188,653,197  32,753,490  13,605,034  5,011,838  8,792,553  4,284,064  4,442,157  22,721,482  - 

Interest Bearing Borrowings  5,750,830,735  6,670,536,525  5,347,223,156  2,549,673,304  439,795,433  45,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  -  - 

Customer deposits  2,184,344,231  2,935,990,877  2,208,394,434  1,066,474,651  547,409,039  417,995,579  373,001,448  194,538,869  120,947,090  29,656,228 

Other Liabilities  153,081,048  193,258,917  319,424,466  146,486,040  22,545,697  26,841,391  20,648,921  18,325,153  63,334,217  7,528,490 

 8,289,166,404  9,988,439,517  7,907,795,547  3,776,239,030  1,014,762,007  498,629,523  422,934,433  242,306,178  207,002,788  37,184,719 

Share Holders Fund

Stated capital  616,100,061  616,100,061  616,100,061  616,100,061  279,433,361  279,433,361  202,000,020  202,000,020  202,000,020  202,000,020 

Reserves  1,188,344,432  1,129,016,940  774,375,069  271,127,808  128,409,973  65,081,799  34,670,782  17,904,419  11,364,144  4,850,311 

Total Liabilities and Equity  10,093,610,897  11,733,556,518  9,298,270,676  4,663,466,899  1,422,605,341  843,144,683  659,605,235  462,210,617  420,366,952  244,035,049 

Information on Ordinary Shares

Earning per share (Rs)  1.36  4.79  4.66  1.33  1.59  1.13  0.83  0.32  0.32  0.23 

Net Assets per share (Rs)  16.75  16.20  12.91  8.24  15.14  12.79  11.73  10.89  10.56  10.24 

Return on Equity 8.86% 42.01% 56.46% 19.30% 18.46% 9.68% 7.46% 3.07% 3.15% 2.33%

Market price of share  44.50  59.30  62.30  40.40  53.70  15.40  38.70  -  -  - 

Ratios %

Return on shareholders fund  23.83  83.79  81.44  23.30  22.74  10.88  8.22  4.89  5.48  4.48 

Liquid Assets as a % of Deposits  32.03  19.63  19.10  22.51  18.80  14.68  15.81  18.51  10.31  52.19 

Growth in Income  (4.26)  24.89  225.57  132.07  146.65  75.34  20.53  27.72  78.08  2,732.43 

Growth in Interest Expenses  34.46  15.80  329.53  110.10  121.80  61.59  20.47  78.27  718.99  250.99 

Growth in Other Expenses  11.41  48.90  125.26  144.15  162.20  36.93  41.13  23.77  59.83  4,367.68 

Growth in Profit After Tax  (71.55)  2.88  249.55  125.90  109.03  85.10  156.36  0.41  38.47  3,118.70 

Growth in Loans & advances  (19.22)  37.57  118.91  211.82  46.15  47.36  94.65  9.30  45.47  107.57 

Growth in Deposits  (25.60)  32.95  107.07  94.82  30.96  12.06  91.74  60.85  307.83  845.37 

Growth in Shareholders' Fund  3.40  25.51  56.72  117.54  18.38  45.57  7.62  3.07  3.15  2.33 



BIMPUTH FINANCE PLC 
Annual Report 2017-18104

Investor Information

1. Stock Exchange
 The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange.

2. (I) Ordinary Shareholders as at 31st March 2018

Resident Non - Resident Total
No. of shares held No. of

Shareholders
No. of

Shares
% No. of

Shareholders
No. of

Shares
% No. of

Shareholders
No. of

Shares
%

 1  - 1,000 699 82,578 0.08 2  410  - 701  82,988 0.08
 1,001  -  10,000 118 413,374 0.38 2  3,500  - 120  416,874 0.38
 10,001  -  100,000 31 958,055 0.89 - - - 31  958,055 0.89
  100,001  -  1,000,000 1 160,141 0.15 - - - 1  160,141 0.15

Over 1,000,000 15 106,115,286 98.50 - - - 15  106,115,286 98.50
864  107,729,434 100.00 4  3,910  - 868  107,733,344 100.00

 (II) Categorize of Shareholders

Resident Non - Resident Total
No. of shares held No. of

Shareholders
No. of

Shares
% No. of

Shareholders
No. of

Shares
% No. of

Shareholders
No. of

Shares
%

Individuals 817 38,730,908  35.95 4  3,910  - 821  38,731,318 35.95
Institutional 47 68,998,526  64.05 - -  - 47  68,998,526 64.05

864 107,729,434  100.00 4 3,910  - 868  107,733,344 100.00

3. I). Public shareholding was 5.88%

 II). Number of public shareholders was - 855

4. Twenty largest shareholders as at 31st March 2018

SHARE HOLDER NO OF SHARES %

1 DAYA GROUP (PRIVATE) LIMITED  16,361,199  15.19 
2 OLYMPUS CONSTRUCTION (PRIVATE) LIMITED  14,992,798  13.92 
3 MRS. A. GAMAGE  13,093,336  12.15 
4 MR. D.K. GAMAGE  13,093,336  12.15 
5 DAYA APPAREL EXPORT (PVT) LTD  9,245,066  8.58 
6 MISS. P.M.K. GAMAGE  8,151,200  7.57 
7 FIRST CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED/MR. C.K. GAMAGE  5,184,000  4.81 
8 COMMERCIAL BANK OF CEYLON PLC/DAYA APPAREL EXPORT (PVT) LTD  5,000,000  4.64 
9 PEOPLE'S LEASING & FINANCE PLC/OLYMPUS CONSTRUCTION (PVT) LTD  4,964,266  4.61 
10 PEOPLE'S LEASING & FINANCE PLC/DAYA APPAREL EXPORT (PVT) LTD  4,345,066  4.03 
11 SEYLAN BANK PLC./JANASHAKTHI PLC  3,200,000  2.97 
12 MR. C.K. GAMAGE  2,967,200  2.75 
13 FIRST CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED/DAYA GROUP (PVT) LIMITED  2,542,000  2.36 
14 COMMERCIAL BANK OF CEYLON PLC/JANASHAKTHI LIMITED  1,511,818  1.40 
15 PEOPLE'S LEASING & FINANCE PLC/DAYA GROUP (PVT) LTD  1,464,001  1.36 
16 MR. J.H. LEANAGE  160,141  0.15 
17 MR. R.E. RAMBUKWELLE  92,066  0.09 
18 MR. S.S. SOORIYARACHCHI  66,513  0.06 
19 MRS. G.S.M. PERERA  65,498  0.06 
20 MRS. P.M.K. DEHIDENIYA  63,544  0.06 

Shares hold by others  1,170,296  1.09 
 107,733,344  100.00 

5.  Market price per share

31-Mar-18

Highest 59.90

Lowest 34.00

Last traded 44.50
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GRI Context Index

GRI Standard Disclosure Page number Omission

GRI 101: Foundation 2016 (does not include any disclosures)

General Disclosures

GRI 102: General Disclosures 2016 102-1 Name of Organisation 16

102-2 Activities, brands, products and services 17

102-3 Location of headquarters 16

102-4 Location of operations 16

102-5 Ownership and legal form Inner back cover

102-6 Markets served 14

102-7 Scale of the organisation 4

102-8 Information on employees and other workers 34

102-9 Supply chain 17

102-10 Significant changes to the organisation and supply chain 3

102-11 Precautionary principle N/A

102-12 External initiatives 3

102-13 Membership of associations Finance House 
Association,

Micro Finance 
Practioners 
Association

102-14 Statement from senior decision maker 7

102-16 Values, principles, norms and standards of behaviour 34

102-18 Governance Structure 48

102-40 List of stakeholder groups 18

102-41 Collective bargaining agreements N/A

102-42 Identifying and selecting stakeholders 18

102-43 Approach to stakeholder engagement 18

102-44 Key topics and concerns raised 18

102-45 Entities included in the consolidated financial statements N/A

102-46 Defining report content and topic boundary 22

102-47 Material topics 22

102-48 Restatement of information 3

102-49 Changes in reporting 22

102-50 Reporting period 3

102-51 Date of most recent report 3

102-52 Reporting cycle 3

102-53 Contact point for questions regarding Report 3

102-54 Claims of reporting in accordance with GRI Standards 3

102-55 GRI context index 105

102-56 External assurance 3

Material topics

Economic Performance

GRI 103: Management Approach 103-1 Explanation of material topics and its boundaries 40

103-2 The Management Approach and its components 40

103-2 Evaluation of the Management Approach 40

GRI 201: Economic Performance 2016 201-3 Defined benefit plan obligations and other retirement plans 80
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GRI Context Index

GRI Standard Disclosure Page number Omission

Energy

GRI 103: Management Approach 103-1 Explanation of material topics and its boundaries 42

103-2 The Management Approach and its components 42

103-2 Evaluation of the Management Approach 42

GRI 302: Energy 2016 302-1 Energy consumption within the organization 42

Water

GRI 103: Management Approach 103-1 Explanation of material topics and its boundaries 42

103-2 The Management Approach and its components 42

103-2 Evaluation of the Management Approach 42

GRI 303: Water 2016 303-1 Water withdrawal by source 42

Environmental Compliance

GRI 103: Management Approach 103-1 Explanation of material topics and its boundaries 42

103-2 The Management Approach and its components 42

103-2 Evaluation of the Management Approach 42

GRI 307: Environmental Compliance 307-1 Non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations 42

Employment

GRI 103: Management Approach 103-1 Explanation of material topics and its boundaries 33

103-2 The Management Approach and its components 33

103-2 Evaluation of the Management Approach 33

GRI 401: Employment 2016 401-1 Employee hires and turnover 34, 36

Training and education

GRI 103: Management Approach 103-1 Explanation of material topics and its boundaries 35

103-2 The Management Approach and its components 35

103-2 Evaluation of the Management Approach 35

GRI 404: Training and education 404-1 Average hours of training per year per employee 34, 35

404-2 Programs for upgrading skills and transition assistance 
programmes

34, 35

404-3 Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and 
career development reviews

34, 35

Local Communities

GRI 103: Management Approach 103-1 Explanation of material topics and its boundaries 40

103-2 The Management Approach and its components 40

103-2 Evaluation of the Management Approach 40

GRI 413: Local communities 2016 413-1 Operations with local community engagement, impact 
assessments and development programmes

40

Marketing and labelling

GRI 103: Management Approach 103-1 Explanation of material topics and its boundaries 39

103-2 The Management Approach and its components 39

103-2 Evaluation of the Management Approach 39

GRI 417: Marketing and labelling 417-1 Requirements for product and service labelling 38, 39

417-2 Incidents of non-compliance concerning product and service 
information and labelling

38, 39

417-3 Incidents of non-compliance concerning marketing 
communications

38, 39
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GRI Standard Disclosure Page number Omission

Customer Privacy

GRI 103: Management Approach 103-1 Explanation of material topics and its boundaries 38, 39

103-2 The Management Approach and its components 38, 39

103-2 Evaluation of the Management Approach 38, 39

GRI 418: Customer Privacy 2016 418-1 Total number of substantiated complaints regarding breaches of 
customer privacy and losses of customer data 

38, 39

G4-Financial services sector disclosures

FS-6 Percentage of the portfolio for business lines by specific region, size and 
by sector

45

F3-13 Access points in low-populated or economically disadvantaged areas by 
type 

32

FS-14 Initiatives to improve access to financial services for disadvantaged 
people 

38
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Notice of Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the eleventh 
(11th) Annual General Meeting of Bimputh 
Finance PLC will be held at Fingara Town 
and Country Club (Pvt) Ltd, No. 50/21, 
Old Kesbewa Road, Raththanapitiya, 
Boralesgamuwa at 10.30 a.m on 28th 
September 2018 for the following purposes

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual 
Report of the Board of Directors and 
the Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended 31st March 
2018 and the Report of the Auditors 
thereon

2. To re-appoint Messrs S J M S Associates, 
Chartered Accountants as the Auditors 
of the Company for the financial year 
ending 31st March 2019 and to authorize 
the Board of Directors to determine their 
remuneration

3. To authorise the Board of Directors to 
determine donations for the ensuing year

By order of the Board

Mrs. Kashmi Kapuwella
Company Secretary

Notes :
1. Any shareholder entitled to attend and 

vote is entitled to appoint a proxy instead.

2. A proxy need not be a shareholder, 
instruments appointing proxies must 
be lodged at Bimputh Finance PLC, 362, 
Colombo Road, Pepiliyana, Boralesgamuwa 
not less than 48 hours before the time 
fixed for the meeting.

3. Shareholders / Proxyholders attending 
the meeting are requested to bring their 
National Identity Cards.
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Notes
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Form of Proxy

I/We  ...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  of

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... Being

a shareholder/s of Bimputh Finance PLC, hereby appoint Mr/Mrs/Miss  .................................................................................................................................................

........................................................................................................................................................................................... (NIC No. ...........................................................................................) of

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. whom failing.

Mr. Sudath Ajitha Samaradiwakara Jayasundara whom failing * 

Mr. Chamindra Kilittuwa Gamage whom failing *

Mr. Asoka Hemachandra whom failing *

Mrs. Sherani Ajantha Godamunne whom failing *

Mr. Kariyawasam Pathirage Chandrasoma Sudarshana Piyatillake whom failing *

Mrs. Pramodya Manjaree Kilittuwa Gamage

as my/our Proxy holder to represent me/us and to speak at the meeting and to vote on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting 
of Bimputh Finance PLC to be held on Fingara Town and Country Club (Pvt) Ltd, No. 50/21, Old Kesbewa Road, Raththanapitiya, 
Boralesgamuwa at 10.30 a.m on 28th September 2018 and at any adjournment thereof and at every poll which may be taken in 
consequence thereof.

 (Please indicate your preference by placing an “X” in the relevant box)

  For Against

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Report of the Board of Directors and the Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company for the Year ended 31st March 2018 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To re-appoint Messrs S J M S Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Auditors of the Company for the financial 
year ending 31st March 2019 and to authorize the Board of Directors to determine their remuneration. 

3. To authorize the Board of Directors to determine donations for the ensuing year.

Signed on this ....................................................... day of .............................................................................................................. Two Thousand and Eighteen.

 .................................................................... ....................................................................
 NIC/PP No./Co. Reg No of Shareholder/s Signature/s of Shareholder/s

NOTES
(a) Please delete inappropriate words.
(b) Instructions as to completion of Form of Proxy are given overleaf
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Instructions as to completion of Form of Proxy 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy who need not be a 
member, to attend and vote on behalf of him.

2. Kindly perfect the Form of Proxy after filling in legibly your full name and address and sign in the space 
provided. Please fill in the date of signature.

3. In the case of Corporate shareholder, the Form of Proxy must be executed under its Common Seal, which 
should be affixed and attested in the manner prescribed by the Articles of Association.

4. If the Form of Proxy is signed by an attorney, the relevant Power of Attorney should also accompany the 
completed Form of Proxy, in the manner prescribed by the Articles of Association.

5. The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at Bimputh Finance PLC, No.362, Colombo Road, 
Pepiliyana, Boralesgamuwa not less than forty eight (48) hours before the time appointed for the holding of 
the Meeting.



Name of Company
Bimputh Finance PLC

Legal Form
A public limited liability company incorporated in Sri Lanka on 27th 
July 2007 under the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and a licensed 
finance company under the Finance Business Act No. 42 of 2011 
and Finance Leasing Act No. 56 of 2000 

Company Registration No.
PB 3259 PQ

Central Bank License No.
RFC 033

Tax Payer Identification No.
(TIN) – 134032596

Board of Directors
Mr. Sudath Jayasundara – Acting Chairman
Mr. Chamindra Gamage 
Mr. Asoka Hemachandra
Mrs. Sherani Godamunne
Mr. Sudarshana Piyatillake
Mrs. Manjaree Gamage 

Company Secretary
Mrs. Kashmi Kapuwella – Attorney-at-Law

Stock Exchange Listing
Shares of the Company are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange

Registered Head Office
No. 362, Colombo Road, Pepiliyana, Boralesgamuwa
Telephone : +94-11-449 1491 / 92 / 
 +94-11-575 9037
Fax : +94-11-555 0368

Corporate Information

Bankers 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Bank of Ceylon
National Development Bank PLC
People’s Bank
Sampath Bank PLC
Seylan Bank PLC
Indian Bank PLC
Union Bank PLC

Auditors
Messrs S J M S Associates
Chartered Accountants
No. 11, Castle Lane
Colombo 04
Telephone : +94-11-258 0409  
 +94-11-250 3262
Fax :  +94-11-258 2452

Registrars
SSP Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd
No. 101, Inner Flower Road, Colombo 03
Telephone : +94-11-257 3894  
 +94-11-257 6871
Fax : +94-11-2573609 

Rating
Fitch Assigns ‘BB(lka)’ with a Negative Outlook
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